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R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Directors’ Statement

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the member together with the audited financial
statements of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited (the “Company”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2018.

1.

OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS
In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the accompanying financial statements are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
finaneial positions of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debis as and when they fall due.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Satinder Singh Rekhi
Chan Kum Ming
Harpreet Rekhi
Joydeep Sen Chaudhuri

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the
register of directors’ shareholdings, required to be kept under section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50, an interest in shares and share options of the Company and related
corporations as stated below:

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
names of directors deemed to have an interest
At beginning At end At beginning At end
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares

The Company
Satinder Singh Rekhi - - 5,780,768 5,780,768



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Directors' Statement — continued

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
names of directors deemed to have an interest
At beginning Atend At beginning Atend
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares of Rs. 1 each
The immediate and
ultimate holding company
- R Systems International

Limited
Satinder Singh Rekhi 1,281,556 3,148,044 50,973,302 21,226,949
Chan Kum Ming 8,000 8,000 - -
Harpreet Rekhi 760 1,508,452 - -

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year
had interests in shares, share options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related
corporations, either at the beginning of financial year or at the end of financial vear.

OPTIONS TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company was granted.

OPTIONS EXERCISED

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company issued by virtue of the exercise of
options to take up unissued shares.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION

At the end of the financial year, there are no unissued shares of the Company under option.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The independent auditor, HLB Atrede LLP has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment

as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors,

> 3. € Lnovndionr

ing Joydeep Sen Chaudhuri
Director

an Kum
Director

Singapore
30 January 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited (the Company), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(FRSs) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2018 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

i +65 6323 1928 3
f: +65 6225 3884
UEN T12LL0782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLE Atrade LLP is a member of [IE) International, A worid-wida network of independent aceounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

20 Peck Sesh Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t: +65 6323 1928 4

f: +65 6225 3884
UEN T12LL0782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLE Atrede LLP is a member of IR international. A world-wide network of independent accounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

=  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

=  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t: +66 6323 1928 5

f. +65 6225 3884
UEN T12LL0782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLB Atrede LLP 5 a member of [EIBY intemational, A world-wide network of independent accounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the member of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

HLEeMvede LLP

HLB Atrede LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
30 January 2019

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t: +65 6323 1928 6
f. +65 6225 3884
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R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018

Note 2018 2017
$ $

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 4 4177 4,592
Investment in associate 5 2,775,560 2,775,560
Investment in subsidiary 6 4,608,450 4,608,450

7,388,187 7,388,602
Current assets
Trade receivables 7 1,472,524 1,119,797
Other receivables 8 29,984 23,112
Contract asset 9 3,182 27,945
Prepayment 63,128 71,960
Amounts due from a holding company 10 51,176 47,300
Cash and cash equivalents 11 689,215 1,170,809

2,309,209 2,460,923
Current liabilities
QOther payables 12 634,673 1,120,585
Contract liability 13 20,087 892
Amounts due to related companies 14 337,272 543,425
Tax payable 15 869 11,829

092,901 1,676,731
Net current assets 1,316,308 784,192
Non-current liability
Other payables 12 ~ 137
Net assets 8,704,495 8,172,657
Equity attributable to owner
of the Company

Share capital 16 7,631,000 7,631,000
Accumulated profits 1,073,495 541,657
Total equity 8,704,495 8,172,657

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Prstribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other credits/(charges)
Profit before tax

Income tax credit/(expense)
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2018

Balance at 1 January 2017

Issuance of ordinary shares

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018

Note 2018 2017
5 $

17 7,220,642 7,711,795
(6,170,519) (6,582,198)

1,050,123 1,129,597

18 23,514 41,525
(4,972) (6,474)
(1,053,952) (996,940)

19 514,784 134,053

20 529,497 301,761
21 2,341 (11,437)
531,838 290,324

531,838 290,324

Share Accumulated
capital profits Total
5 ¥ $

7,281,000 251,333 7,532,333
350,000 - 350,000
- 290,324 290,324
7,631,000 541,657 8,172,657
— 531,838 531,838
7,631,000 1,073,495 8,704,495

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
{Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 529,497 301,761
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 2,545 9,733
Fair value adjustment of contingent consideration for business

combination (516,000) {135,000)
Interest income 906 910
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,948 177,404
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivabiles, contract asset (326,004) 237,820
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and contract liability 49,146 (15,472)
{Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related companies (193,762) 362,026
Cash (nsed in)/generated from operations (453,672) 761,778
Interest received (906) (910)
Tax paid (8,619) (10,321)
Net cash flows {used in)/from operating activities (463,197) 750,547

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment 2,130) (1,988)
Settlement of purchase contingent consideration

for business combination - (390,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,130) (391,988)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - 350,000
Decrease in amounts due from related companies - 2,838
(DPecrease)/increase in amounts due to related companies (12,391) 15,498
(Increase)/decrease in amounis due from a holding company (3,876) 10,070
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (16,267) 378,406
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (481,594) 736,965
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,170,809 433,844
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 689,215 1,170,809

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1‘

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and its
immediate and ultimate helding company is R Systems International Limited incorporated in India
listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

The registered office of the Company and its principal place of business are located at 16 Jalan
Kilang #04-01 Hoi Hup Building Singapore 159416.

The principal activities of the Company are those of camrying on business of software
development, consultancy services and executive search services.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where
otherwise described in the accounting policies below,

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (SGD or §) and all values are
rounded to the nearest one-dollar unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year
except in current financial year, the Company has adopted all applicable new and revised
standards and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for the current financial year. The adoption of these standards and INT FRS did not
have any material effect on the financial position or performance of the Company for the
current or prior financial years

The Company applied FRS 109 and FRS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the
changes as a result of the adopting of these new accounting standards are described below:

FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 109 Financial Instruments replaces FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all

three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement;
impairment; and hedge accounting,

10



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

FRS 109 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement

Under FRS 109, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss, amortised cost, or fair value through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the
Company’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments” contractual
cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount
outstanding.

The assessment of the Company’s business model was made as of the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial assets that
were not derecognised before 1 Jannary 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash
flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of FRS 109 did not have a significant
impact on the Company. The loans and receivable that are previously measured at amortised
cost will continue to be accounted for using amortised cost under FRS 109,

Impairment

The adoption of FRS 109 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for
impairment losses for financial assets by replacing FRS 39’s incurred loss approach with a
forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL”}) approach. FRS 109 requires the Company to
recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss and contract assets. FRS 109 reguires the Company to record ECL on all debt
securities, loans, trade receivable and financial guarantee, either on a 12 months or lifetime
basis. The Company has applied the simplified approach and record lifetime ECL on all trade
receivable. The change in mode! did not have a material impact to the financial statements on
initial recognition.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Custoniers

FRS 115 supersedes FRS 11 Construction Contracts, FRS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with its customers. FRS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services o a customer.

FRS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

11



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Under FRS 115, revenue is recognised when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transfer to the customer.

The Company provides consultancy and placement services and accordingly revenue is
recognised to their performance obligation when control over the corresponding service is
transferred to the customer. The timing of revenue recognition of each of these performance
obligations when provision for the relevant services are completed, are consistent with
previous practice.

The Company has changed the presentation of certain amount in the balance sheet to reflect
the terminology in FRS 115

=  Accrued revenue in other receivable from previous year were reclassified as part of
confract assets.

»  Advance billing to customer arising from service contract from previous year were
reclassified as part of contract liabilities.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretations which are
potentially relevant to the Company that has been issned but not yet effective:

Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

FRS 116 Leases 1 January 2019
Improvements to FRSs (December 2016):
— Amendment to FRS 28: Long—term interests in Associate

and Joint venture 1 January 2019

Improvements to FRSs (March 2017):

— Amendment to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2019
~ Amendment to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2019
INT FRS 123: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

12



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a} Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of
the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of the Amendments to FRS is
described below.

FRS 116 Leases

FRS 116 requires lessees to recognise most leases on balance sheets, The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low value® assets and short-term leases,
FRS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company plans to adopt FRS 116 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment to the opening retained earnings at the date of initial

application, 1 January 2019.

On the adoption of FRS 116, the Company expects to choose, on a lease-by-lease basis, to
measure the right-of-use asset at either:

(i) its carrying amount as if FRS 116 had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019; or

(ii) an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019,

In addition, the Company plans to elect the following practical expedients:

(i) not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application
and to apply FRS 116 to all contracts that were previously identified as leases;

(i) to apply the exemption not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease liabilities to leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months as of 1 January 2019; or

(iii} to apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics,

13



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
FRS 116 Leases (continned)

The Company has performed a preliminary impact assessment based on currently available
information, and the assessment may be subject to changes arising from ongoing analysis
until the Company adopts FRS 116 in 2019.

Functional and foreign currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates i.e, functional currency, to be SGD,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in SGD and are recorded on initial
recognition at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated to the functional
currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of initial recognition. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.

Plant and equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, The cost of an item of plant and equipment 1s recognised as an asset if,
and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Computer - 1 to 3 years
Furniture and fittings - 3 years
Office equipment - 5 years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

14



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(¢) Plant and equipment (continued)

For acquisition and disposals of plant and equipment, depreciation is provided in the month
of acquisition and no depreciation is provided in the month of disposal.

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not have control or joint control of
those policies.

The Company has exempted in accordance to FRS 28 in accounting for its investments in
associates using the equity method from the date on which it becomes an associate.

The Company’s investments in associates are accounted for at cost less any impairment
losses.

Exemption from accounted the investment in associate using equity method

The financial statements of the associate have not been equity accounted for with the
Company’s financial statements as the Company itself is a wholly owned subsidy of R
Systems International Ltd, a company incorporated in India, which prepares consolidated
financial statements on a worldwide basis. Such financial statements are publicly available.

The registered address of R System International Ltd is B-104 A Grater Kailash-I, New Delhi,
110 048 India.

(e} Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary is accounted for at
cost less impairment losses.

15



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Subsidiary (continued)

Consolidated Financial Statements (Non-consolidated)

The financial statements of the subsidiary has not been consolidated with the Company’s
financial statements as the Company itself is a wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems
International Ltd, incorporated in India, which prepares consolidated financial statements on
a worldwide basis. Such financial statements are publicly available.

The registered address of R Systems International Ltd is B-104A Grater Kailash-I, New Delhi
India, India 110048.

Investments in subsidiary in the financial statements of the Company are stated at cost, less
any impairment in recoverable value.

(f) Financial instrument
(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the entity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third party, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition.

16



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

WNotes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(Y Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Tnvestments in debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three

measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are:

Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Financial assets measured at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair
value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses and interest calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified

from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset
is de-recognised.

Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iD)

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recogaised in other comprehensive income for debt
instruments is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a paity
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
methed. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged

or cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(iil) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee contracts.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractnal cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms,

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL}).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered o have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using ali reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in defanlt when contractual payments are 90 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in fill before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g} Impairment of financial assets {continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(11) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(iif) the lender(s} of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficuity, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset, may be impaired. If any such an indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount.

For the purpose of impairmment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not genecrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an

Impairment loss in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case,
such impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

)

(k)

(D

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer, If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset 1s recognised for

the earned consideration that is conditional.

Coniract lighilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade payables are normally settled on
30 to 60 days’ terms while other payables have an average ferm of six months.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is
amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Government grant shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in profit or loss, either
separately or under a general heading such as “Other income”. Alternatively, they are
deducted in reporting the related expenses.
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20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Provisions

(n)

(0)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation
¢an be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is matierial, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee benefits
(1) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods,

In particular, the Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”)
scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. These contributions are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

(1) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to
employees. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor cffectively retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of
ownerships of the leased are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(p) Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
a promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of
the good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time.
The amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

ity

Consultancy services

The Company recognises revenue from consultancy services over time, using an output
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.
The output methods recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the services transferred to date relative services promised under the
contract.

(i1) Placement fee

(iiD)

(iv)

Placement fee is related to recruitment services provided and it is recognised as revenue
at the point of time when the services is rendered,

Software development services

The Company recognises revenue from software development services over time, using
an output method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
becanse the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company. The cutput methods recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value to the customer of the services transferred to date relative services promised
under the contract.

Tnterest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(q) Taxes

(1)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

23



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
{Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Taxes (continued)

(i) Current income tax (continued)

Current income taxes are recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that iax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the fax
retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be availabie to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in comrelation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right

exists to set off cwirent tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Taxes (continued)

(iit} Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
(*GST”) except:

= Where the goods and services tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the goods and services tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable; and

= Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of goods and services tax
included.

The net amount of goods and services tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(r) Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that

person:

(i)  Has control or joint control over the Company;

(iiy Has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is & member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venfure of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

{(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Company;

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a};

(vii} A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

25



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a materal adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

(i) Judgement made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has the mest significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

= Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

The Company concluded that revenue for contract services is to be recognised over time
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company. The fact that another company would not need to re-perform the services that
it has provided to date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Company’s performance as it performs.

The Company recognises revenue over time by measuring its progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation using the cutput method. The Output methods
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of
the goods or services transferred to date relative services promised under the contract.
The Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance
completed to date. Therefore the Company recognises revenue in the amount to which it
has a right to invoice for service provided.

(ii) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the contrel of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(it) Estimates and assumptions {continued)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for various customers
segments that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the
Company’s historical observed default rates

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 7.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture Office
Computer and fittings  equipment Total
$ $ 5 i

Cost:
At 1 January 2017 99,346 - 3,500 102,846
Additions 1,988 - - 1,988
At 31 December 2017

and 1 January 2018 101,334 - 3,500 104,834
Additions - 950 1,180 2,130
Written off (4,820) — - (4,820)
At 31 December 2018 96,514 950 4,680 102,144
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2017 89,401 - 1,108 90,509
Charge for the year 9,033 — 700 9,733
At 31 December 2017

and 1 Jannary 2018 98,434 - 1,808 100,242
Charge for the year 1,457 211 877 2,545
Written off (4,820) — - (4,820)
At 31 December 2018 95,071 211 2,685 97,967
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2017 2,900 — 1,692 4,592
At 31 December 2018 1,443 739 1,995 4,177
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5.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
2018 2017
$ $
Un¢quoted equity shares at cost 2,775,560 2,775,560

The Company held approximately 30.38% (2017: 30.38%) equity interest in ECnet Limited,
incorporated in Singapore.

The principal activities of the associate are those of providers of collaborative Internet-based
supply chain solutions and management services, customers technical and administrative support
services and information technology consultancy services.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Unquoted equity shares at cost 4,608,450 4,608,450

The details of the investment in subsidiary at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Proportion (%)

Name and Country of of ownership
principal activities incorporation Cost of investments interest

2018 2017 2018 2017

b 5 % %

Held by the Company
IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd.
(Formerly known as IBIZCS
Group Pte. Lid.)
(I T. integrated solution
services and I.T support) Singapore 4,608,450 4,608,450 100 100

The details of the indirect subsidiaries held by IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. at 31 December 2018 are
as follows:

Country of Proportion (%) of

Name and principal activities incorporation ownership interest
2018 2017
% %

Held by direct subsidiary company
— IBIZ Consulting Pte. Lid.
IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd
(I.T. integrated solution services and L.T. support) Singapore 100 100
IBIZ Consulting Services Sdn. Bhd.
(LT. integrated solution services and L.T. support) Malaysia 100 100

28



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements ~ 31 December 2018

6. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY {(continued)

Country of Proportion (%) of
Name and principal activities incorporation ownership interest
2018 2017
% %
Held by direct subsidiary company
— IBI7Z Consulting Pte, Ltd. (continued)
PT. IBIZCS Indonesia
(I.T. integrated solution services and L.T. support) Indonesia 100 100
IBIZ Consultancy Services India Private Limited
(I.T. integrated solution services and LT, support) India 100 100
IBIZ Consulting Services Limited
(LT. integrated solution services and I.T. support) Hong Kong 100 100
Held by indirect subsidiary company
— IBIZ Consulting Services Limited, Hong Kong
IBIZ Consulting Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
(L.T. integrated solution services and LT. support) China 100 100

In financial year 2016, the Company had subscribed additional equity shares for a cash
consideration of $150,000 and a revision contingent consideration with the measurement period of
$90,370 for acquisition of the subsidiary in 2015.

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
$ $
Trade receivables 1,473,407 1,119,797
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (883) -
1,472,524 1,119,797

The average credit period on sale of goods 1s 30 to 90 days (2017 30 to 90 days). No interest s
charged on the trade receivables. Loss allowance for trade receivables has always been measured
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that are impaired

The trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement in
allowance for expected credit losses of based on lifetime ECL. are as follows:

2018 2017
$ $
The movement in allowance for expected
credit losses as follows:
Balance at beginning of year - -
Allowance for expected credit losses (883) #—
Balance at end of year (883) —

There has been no change in the estimation technigues or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, €.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been
written off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers
based on the Company’s provision matrix. As the historical credit loss experience does not show
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss

allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between the different customer
base.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables for individual customers as at 31 December 2018:

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
% 3 5

2018 @

Current (not past due) 0.01 804,601 81 No
1 to 30 days past due 0.03 575,858 173 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.03 126,146 36 No
61 10 90 days past due 0.03 8,079 2 No
91 1o 120 days past due 0.50 8,079 40 No
121 to 150 days past due 0.50 8,079 40 No
151 to 180 days past due 0.50 8,110 41 No
181 to 365 days past due 200 23,501 470 No

* 1,556,453 883
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7.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amotnt allowance impaired
% A3 b}

2017 @

Current (not past due) 0.01 628,005 63 No

1 to 30 days past due 0.03 455,667 137 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.03 84,642 25 Ne
61 to 90 days past due 0.03 6,758 2 No.
91 to 120 days past due 0.50 6,250 31 No
121 to 150 days past due 0.50 9,877 49 No
151 to 180 days past due 0.50 - - No
181 to 365 days past due 2.00 1,164 23 No

* 1,192,363 # 330

*  The carrying amount inclusive of related companies’ debts of $83,046 (2017: $72,566).
#  The expected credit loss of $330 is not recognised in vear 2017.
@ In case of non-collection, the default rate of ECL is 100%.

Trade receivables denominated in following currencies as at 31 December are as follows:

2018 2017
$ b
Singapore Dollar 1,468,430 1,115,628
United States Dollar 4,094 4,169
1,472,524 1,119,797

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
trade receivables are credit impaired.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposit 20,000 20,0600

Sundry receivable 9,984 3,112
29,984 23,112

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets primarily relate to the right to consideration for work completed but not yet billed
at reporting date for services rendered. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company invoices the customer.
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10.

11.

12,

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Management always estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future
prospects of the Technology industry. None of the amounts due from customers at the end of the
reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation technigues or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the contract assets.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM A HOLDING COMPANY

The amounts due are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be
settled in cash.

CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
$ )
Cash at bank 589,215 1,170,809
Short term deposit 100,000 —
689,215 1,170,809

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term deposits
are made for a varying period of three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Company, and eam interests at the rate of 0.92%.

Cash and cash equivalents amounting to $32,086 (2017: $21,036) is denominated in United States
Dollar.

OTHER PAYABLES

Current:

Accrued liabilities 79,087 51,539

CPF payable 44,079 38,350

Deferred grant 137 410

GST payable 73,777 77,911

Sundry pavables 2,593 1,375

Contingent consideration for business combination 435,000 951,000
634,673 1,120,585

Non-corrent:

Deferred grant - 137
634,673 1,120,722
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12.

13.

14,

OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Contingent consideration for business combination

As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owners of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. in
financial year 2015, a contingent consideration has been agreed and payment is based on the
carning from operation before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA} applicable
for financial year according to the following:

(i) By no later 31 March 2016, 62% of EBITDA financial year 2015;
(ii) By no later 31 March 2017, 70% of EBITDA financial year 2016; and
(iii) By no later 31 March 2018, 78% of EBITDA financial year 2017.

The purchase contingent consideration was $2,603,080 as at the date acquisition of the subsidiary.

h)
Financial liability for the contingent consideration as at 31 December 2017 951,000
Fair value adjustment as at 31 December 2018 516,000
Financial liability for the contingent consideration as at 31 December 2018 435,000

CONTRACT LIABILITY

A contract liability is relating to the advance billing to customer for the consultancy services to be
provided. The revenue relating to the consultancy services is recognised when services rendered.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

2018 2017
3 $

ECnet Limited
Trade 183,106 527,927
Non-trade (3,026) 15,498

180,080 543,425
IBIZ Consulting Services Pte. 1.td.
Trade 151,058 -
Non-trade 6,134 -

157,192 -

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.,

33



R Systems (Singapore) Pte Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199707692G)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

14. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

Non-cash
2017 Cash flows changes 2018
3 5 i $
Amounts due from a
holding company 47,300 3,876 - 51,176
Amounts due to related
companies (15,498} 12,391 — (3,107)
31,802 16,267 - 48,069
15. TAX PAYABLE
2018 2017
h Y hY
Balance at beginning of year 11,829 10,713
Current year’s tax expense on profit 869 11,829
Overprovision for prior year (3,210) (392)
Income tax paid (8,619) (10,321)
Balance at end of year 869 11,829
16. SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017
Number Number
of shares $ of shares 3
Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares:
At beginning of year 5,780,768 7,631,000 5,570,925 7,281,000
Issued during the year - - 209,843 350,000
At end of year 5,780,768 7,631,000 5,780,768 7,631,000

In previous year, 209,843 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued for total cash consideration
of $350,000. The proceeds were used for working capital purposes.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares have no par value carry one vote per share without restriction.
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17. REVENUE
2018 2017
$ $

Type of goods and services:
Consultancy services 7,083,597 7,621,576
Placement fees 127,301 75,052
Software development services 9,744 15,167

7,220,642 7,711,795
Timing of revenue recognition,
Services transferred at a point in time 127,301 75,052
Services transferred over time 7,093,341 7,636,743

7,220,642 7,711,795

There were no significant judgement and methods in estimating revenue during the financial year.

18. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Government grants — PIC cash payout 410 5,138
— Special employment credit 2,444 1,912

— Temporary employment credit 3,164 8,589

— Wage credit scheme 16,590 15,478

Interest income from current accounts 906 910
Sundry income — 0,408
23,514 41,525

19, OTHER CREDITS/(CHARGES)

Allowance for expected credit loss (383) -
Bad debt written off (1,146) -
Fair value adjustment of contingent consideration for
business combination 516,000 135,000
Foreign exchange adjustment, gain/(loss) §13 (947)
514,784 134,053

20. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

Foreign worker levy 38,330 46,434
Insurance 57,899 69,821
Rental of premise 53,700 53,700
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21. INCOME TAX (CREDITY/EXPENSE

@

(ii)

Major components of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the vears ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 are:

2018 2017
$ $
Statement of comprehensive income:
Current tax 369 11,829
Overprovision for prior year (3,210) (392)
(2,341) 11,437

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the applicable tax rate for the yvears ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Profit before tax 529,497 301,761
Tax expense on profit before tax at 17% 90,015 51,299
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses 248 2,689
Income not subject to tax {88,098) (23,823)
Tax rebate (114) (2,943)
Tax exemption (1,419 (15,567)
Deferred tax assets on temporary difference

not recognised (177) 119
Overprovision for prior year (3,210) (392)
Others 414 35
Total tax (credit)/expense {2,341) 11,437

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits expenses (including directors)

Salaries, bonuses and allowances 3,815,497 5,307,149
Central provident fund contributions 227,982 191,539
Staff commission 8,120 13,726

4,051,599 5,512,414
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23. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

24,

The Company has entered into residential lease and motor vehicle lease. These leases have
remaining term ranging from 9 months to 1 year and 5 months with renewal option included in the
contracts. There is no restriction placed upon the Company by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable leases as at the end of reporting period are
as follows:

2018 2017
5 $
Not later than one vear 153,577 153,507
Later than one year but not later than five years 09,807 20,500
253,384 174,007

The lease payment related to the above commitment for the year of $186,777 (2017: $193,027)
was billed cost to cost to related companies.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In addition to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions between the Company and related parties that took place at
terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

(i) Significant related party transactions

Related companies

Accounting fee 91,992 91,902
Human resource recruitment fee 50,400 50,400
Management fee 117,108 117,108
Other consuitant cost — ECnet Limited 1,870,589 1,369,256
Professional fee 118,800 118,800
Rental of premise 53,700 53,700
Consultancy Services 158,779 -

Software development cost 9,744 14,042
Administrative Services 4,930 -

Other consultant cost — IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd 597,566 -
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24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(ii} Compensation of key management personnel!

Key management personnel of the Company are those persons having the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities, directly or indirectly, of
the Company. The directors of the Company and the general management of the Company
are considered as key management personnel of the Company.

2018 2017
$ h
Director’s remuneration 210,143 190,009

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to, where appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Company. The Company does not have any written financial risk management policies and
guidelines and there has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the financial risks
associated with financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other debtors. Guidelines on credit terms provided to trade
customers are established and continnally monitored. For other financial assets including cash
and short-term deposits, the Company minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with
reputable and well-established local and foreign banks, and companies with high credit
ratings and no history of defaults.

The Company’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposures. Credit policies with guidelines on credit terms
and limits set the basis for risk control. New customers are subject to credit evaluation while
the Company continues to monitor existing customers, especially those with repayment
issues. In addition, appropriate allowances are made for probable losses when necessary for
identified debtors.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(1) Credit risk (continued)

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Company has developed and maintain the credit risk
gradings to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Company
uses publiciy available financial information and the Company’s own trading records to rate
its major customers and other debtors. The Company exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded
is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising
Category Description expected credit losses (ECL)
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default | 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts.
Doubtful Amount is >30 days past due or there has | Lifetime ECL — not credit-
been a significant increase in credit risk impaired
since initial recognition.
In defauit Amount is >90 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL - credit-
evidence indicating the asset is credit- impaired
impaired.
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is wriiten off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
has no realistic prospect of recovery.

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets, as well as

maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

2018

Trade receivables

Other receivables
Contact assets

Amounts due from a
holding company

External [nternal

credit credit 12-month or
Note  rating rating lifetime ECL
7 N.A. (a} Lifetime ECL
{simplified
approach)
8 N.A, Performing 12m ECL
9 N.A, {a) Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)

10 N.A. Performing 12m ECL
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amount allowance amount

3 $ ]
1,473,407 (883) 1,472,524
29,984 - 29,984
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25, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(1)

(ii)

Credit risk (continued)

External Internal Gross Net
credit eredit 12-month or earrying Loss carrying
Note  rating rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
$ $ $
2017
Trade receivables 7 N.A. {a) Lifetime ECL 1,119,797 - 1,119,797
(simplified
approach}
Other receivables 8 N.A. Performing 12m ECL 23,112 - 23,112
Contact assets 9 N.A. {a) Lifetime ECL 27,945 - 27,945
(simplified
approach)
Amounts due froma 10 NLA, Performing  12m ECL 47,300 - 47,300

holding company

(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company has applied the simplified
approach in FRS 109 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the
debtors, adjusied as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented
based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix (Note 7).

Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance
sheet. No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk concentration profile

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk due
to the Company’s many varied customers.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates, Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign
currencies.

The Company provides services in several countries other than Singapore and transacts in
foreign currencies. As a result, the Company is exposed to movements in foreign currency
exchange rates arising from normal trading transactions, primarily with respect to United
States doilar (USD). However, the Company does not use any financial derivatives such as
foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency options or swaps for hedging purposes.

The Company has no significant foreign currency exposure at the end of the financial period.
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25, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

26,

27.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk may arises

primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company’s liguidity risk management policy is to monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Company’s operations

and mitigate the fluctuations in cash flows.

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting period

based on contractual undiscounted cash flow is less than a year.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial instrument recorded at the end of

the reporting period by FRS 109 categories.

2018 2017
$ 3
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,472,524 1,119,797
Other receivables 29,934 23,112
Contract asset 3,182 27,945
Amounts due from a holding company 51,176 47,300
Cash and cash equivalent 689,215 1,170,809
2,246,081 2,388,963
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables 560,759 1,042,264
Contract liability 20,087 892
Amounts due to related companies 337,272 543,425
913,118 1,585,581

FATR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABHLITIES

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date,
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27.

28.

29.

30.

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The Company categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is
dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

—  Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date,

—  Level 2 — Inputs other that quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or lability, either directly or indirecily, and

—  Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company has no assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Current trade and other receivables and payables (including amounts due from/{to) related
companies), cash and cash equivalents, and accrued operating expenses.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of
fair values, either due to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that
are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that if maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy working capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may issue new shares,
obtain new borrowing, sell assets to reduce debts or funding from holding company.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The Company manages capital by regularly monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements. The Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequently to the balance sheet date, the Company is in the process of entering into a share
purchase agreement with IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. to acquire 100% share capital of IBIZ
Consulting Services Pte. Ltd. at the consideration based on its net tangible assets as at 31
December 2018.

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 January 2019.

42



. - Chartered Accountants
D l tt 7" Floor, Building 10, T B
e o'_ e DLF(??I;erEItyT’.gornplezwer
DLF City P -1
HaSklns & sells LLP Guruggm .a‘|s§2 00z
Haryana, India

Tel; +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Board of Directors of R SYSTEMS, INC.
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of R SYSTEMS, INC. (“the
Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2018,
and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controis. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimate made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Chartered

Accountants
ra, India,

(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)



Deloitte
Haskins & Selis LLP

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
aforesaid accounting principles, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31,
2018, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Place: Noida Partner

Date: February 08, 2019 {Membership No. 87104)




R Systems, Inc.

Statement of financlal position as at December 31, 2018

(Amount in USD)

Particulars Notes As at As at
Decernber 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ASSETS
A. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 323,771 202,297
(b} Intangible assets 4 - 5,003
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 140,975 409,836
{d} Other financfal assets & 245,000 -
{#) Other non-current assets 7 30,568 1,771
Total non-current assets (A) 744,314 618,907
B. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(I} Trade recelvables 8 3,484,446 3,233,558
(liy Cash and bank balances 9 6,526,478 5,651,370
(iii} Cther financial assets 6 663,451 953,139
(b) Current tax assets (net) 18,913 -
(c) Other current assets 7 215,336 242,396
Total current assets (B) 10,908,624 10,080,463
Total assets (A+B) 11,652,938 10,699,370
EQUITY AND LIABPILITIES
A. Capital and reserve
{a) Share capiltal 10 1,537,401 1,537,401
{b) Retained earnings 11 7,918,875 7,554,231
Total capital and reserve (A) 9,456,276 9,091,632
B. Current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(1) Trade and other payables 12 1,525,639 1,012,112
(il Other financial llabilities 14 7,988 58,577
{b) Provisions 13 551,890 516,259
(c) Current tax liabllity {net) 73,000 9,037
(d) Other current liabllities 15 38,145 11,753
Total current liabilities {(B) 2,196,662 1,607,738
Total equity and liabilities {(A+B) 11,652,938 10,699,270
Summary of significant accounting policles 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-25

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

R %TEMS, INC.

—

1

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner

SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Noida
Date: February 08, 2019

Place: Singapore
Date: February 08, 2019



R Systems, Inc.

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018

{Amount in USD)

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Revenue from cperations 16 23,544,151 20,801,105
Cost of revenues 19 (18,413,347} {16,713,688)
Gross profit 5,130,804 4,087,417
Other income 17 132,089 345,019
Depreciation and amortisation expense 18 (128,628) {122,533)
Selling general and administrative expenses 19 (4,337,803) {3,703,344)
Profit before tax 796,462 606,559
Income tax expense 20 {431,818) {266,922}
Profit after tax 364,644 339,637
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 364,644 339,637
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-25

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

a3

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner

Place: Noida
Date: February 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the board of divectors of

R SYSTEMS, INC.

-—""""-‘-'

SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Singapore
Date; February 08, 2019



R Systems, Inc.

Statement of Changes in Equity as at December 31, 2018

{Amount in USD}

Particulars Share capital Retained earnings Total
Balance at January 1 2017 1,537,401 7,214,594 8,751,995
Changes in ordinary shares during the year - - -
Profit for the year 339,637 339,637
Balance at December 31, 2017 1,537,401 7,554,231 9,091,632
Changes in ordinary shares during the year - - =
Profit for the year 364,644 364,644
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,537,401 7,918,876 9,456,277

See accompanying notes to the financial staternents

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

OLMAM @W\
JITENDRA AGARWAL

Partnear

Place: Noida
Date: February 08, 2019

1-25

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

R SYSTEMS, INC.

1
SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Singapore
Date: February 08, 2019



R Systems, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2018

{Amount in USD}

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit after tax

Adjustments for:

By operating activities

Income tax expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Profit on sale of asset

Provision / (reversal) for doubtful debts and advances (net)

Liability no longer required written back
Interest income

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables

Other financial agssets and other assets

Trade and other payables, cther financial liabilities and other liabilities
Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid, net of refunds

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in bank deposits

Proceeds from bank deposits

Disbursement of loan to related party

Proceeds from loan to related party

Interest received on loan to related party

Interest received from bank deposits

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year (Refer to Note 9)

364,644 339,637
431,818 266,922
128,628 122,533

{6,300) :
44,583 (68,639)
23,056 96,944

(102,739) (23,737)

(295,471) 194,426
291,355 (21,832)
466,280 (579,327)

35,631 107,501

1,381,479 434,828
(117,908) (43,263)

1,263,571 391,565

(10,628,000)

{2,974,000)

8,185,000 :
: (35,000)
33,103 100,000
16,897 19,132
49,336 2
(245,099) (64,382)
6,300 s
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R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. General information

R Systems, Inc. (the ‘Company’) is a wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems International Limited (RSIL) a
company incorporated in India. The Company was incorporated under the laws of the State of California
on March 9, 1993,

The address of the registered office is 5000, Windplay Drive, Suite # 5, El Dorado Hills, Sacramento,
California, USA, 95762.

The Company provides IT staffing and consulting services for customers primarily in USA geographies,

The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on
February 08, 2019.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a)

b)

<)

Statement of compliance

The financial staternents as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and its interpretations ("IFRS™), as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB").

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where otherwise
described in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an assets or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out below,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time., The amount of revenue
recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

(i) IT Staffing and consultancy services

The Company recognizes revenue from IT staffing and consultancy services over time, using
an output method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.
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d)

e)

f)

The output methods recognize revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to
the customer of the services transferred to date relative services promised under the contract.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
Functional currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in USD which is the currency of the primary
econamic environment in which the Company operates.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than functional currency are recognised, on initial recognition, at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
The tax expense comprises the sum of the tax currently payable by the Company and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current taxes are based on the taxable profit for the year of the Company and are calculated
according to local tax rules, using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date. Taxable profit differs from *profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit
or loss because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive. income .or directly in equity respectively.
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g)

h)

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses, arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the item is derecognised.

Assets which are under construction and cost of assets not ready to use before the year end, are
disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over the useful lives
as estimated by the management. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial
year end or whenever there are indicatérs for review, and adjusted prospectively.

The useful lives estimated by the management are as follows;

Leasehold property improvements: 7 years or period of lease, whichever is less

Property, plant and equipment:

- Electric installation 5 years
- Networking equipment’s 5 years
- Furniture and fittings 7 years
- Computer hardware 3 years
- Vehicles 7 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis, Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis for events or
changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Amortisation is calculated so as to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method, on the following bases:

- Softwares Lower of llcense period or 3 years
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i)

)

Leasing

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased term, are classified as operating leases.

Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All reqular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way. purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets. Loans and other
receivable with maturity greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date are classified as non-
current assets.

Loans and other receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Cash and bank balance comprise cash in hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks. For the
purposes of the cash flow staternent, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, in banks and
demand deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recagnises its retained interest in the asset and an assaciated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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k)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,

(i) held for trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a8 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective Interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amertised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and accrued income. The expected
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

§)] Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Company’s core operations.

(ii) Definition of default

The Company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 120 days past
due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
tagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit Impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

[ EMS
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(iv)  Write off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward {ooking
information. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective intarest rate.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists., An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable armount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

m) Employee benefits

n)

a) Social security plans

Employer's Contributions payable to the social security plans, which are a defined contribution
scheme, are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the employee renders
services, The Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits, The related
actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee,

b) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled for compensated absence. The employees can carry
forward a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absence and utilize it in future years or
receive cash at retirement or termination of employment,

The Company records an obligation for compensated absence in the year in which the employee
renders the services that increases this entitlement, The Company measures the expected cost of
compensated absence as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes
accumulated compensated absence based on actuarial valuation. The Company recognizes actuarial
gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The Company presents the entire
leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer
its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date,

Critical accounting judgments and key sources estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabifities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experlences, management expertise and
other contributing factors, the results which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities that may not be readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Critical accounting judaments

The Company’s major tax jurisdiction is USA. Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes. (Also refer to note 20)

There are no other judgments that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Company has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014}
and the related consequential amendments to other IFRS Standards that are effective for an annual
period that begins on or after January 1, 2018, The transition provisions of IFRS 9 allow an entity not
to restate comparatives, The Company has elected not to restate comparatives in respect of the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. Additionally, the Company adopted
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that were applied to the
disclosures for 2018 and to the comparative period.

IFRS ¢ introduced new requirements for:
1) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,

2} Impairment of financial assets, and
3) General hedge accounting.
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Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Company’s financial statements are
described below,

The Company has applied IFRS ¢ in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9,
a) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Company has assessed its existing financial
assets and financial liabilities in terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is January 1, 2018, Accordingly,
the Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments that continue to be recognised as
at January 1, 2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at January 1, 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to
be recognised as at January 1, 2018 have not been restated.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the Company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

* debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost;

* debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

= all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss (FYTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset:

* the Company may irrevecably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination in other comprehensive income: and

» the Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or
FVTQCI criteria as measured at FVTPL If doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

In the current year, the Company did not have any debt investments that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL,

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is derecagnised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
subsequently transferred to retained earnings. Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

b} Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires the
Company to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires the Company to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:
1} Debt investments measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCT;

2) Lease receivables;

3) Trade receivables and unbilled revenue: and

4) Financial guarantee contracts to which the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply.

In particular, IFRS 9 requires the Company to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument is a
purchased or originated credit@impaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition {except for a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset), the Company is
required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 months
ECL. IFRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, unbilled revenue and lease receivables in certain circumstances.

For the purpose of assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of financial instruments that remain recognised on the date of initial application of IFRS 9
{(i.e. January 1, 2018), the Company has compared the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments on the date of their initial recognition to their credit risk as at January 1, 2017.

The application of the IFRS 9 impairment requirements has resulted in additional loss allowance to be
recognised in year ended Decernber 31, 2018 as the impact is not material,

¢) Classification and measurement of financial liabilitles

A significant change introduced by IFRS 9 in the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the accounting for changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as at FVTPL
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the issuer,

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires that the changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability be presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, but are
instead transferred to retained earnings when the financial liability is derecognised.

Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the classification and measurement of the Company's
financial liabilities as there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

d) General hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of
risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
the Company’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

The application of the IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements has had no other impact on the results
and financial position of the Company for the current and/or prior years as there are no hedge
accounting within the Company.
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e) Disclosures in relation to the initial application of IFRS 9

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Company had previously designated as
at FVTPL under IAS 39 that were subject to reclassification or which the Company has elected to
reclassify upon the application of IFRS 9. There were no financial assets or financial Kabilities which
the Company has elected to designate as at FVTPL at the date of initial application of IFRS 9,

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the cash flows of the Company.
Impact of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended in April 2016) which is effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 1,
2018. IFRS 15 introduced a 5 step approach to revenue recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Details of the new requirements as well as
their impact on the Company’s financial statements are described below.

The Company has applied IFRS 15 in accordance with the fully retrospective transitional approach
without using the practical expedients for completed contracts in IFRS 15:C5(a), and (b), ot for
modified contracts in IFRS 15:C5(¢} but using the expedient in IFRS 15:C5(d) aliowing bhoth
nonadisclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations, and an explanation of when it expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all
reporting periods presented before the date of initial application, i.e. January 1, 2018.

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract llability’ to describe what might more commonly
be known as 'unbilled revenue’ and ‘deferred revenue’, however the Standard does not prohibit an
entity from using alternative descriptions in the statement of financial position. The Company has not
adopted the terminology used in IFRS 15 to describe such balances.

The Company’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in note 2 above.
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures for the Company’s revenue transactions, the
application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/or financial
performance of the Company.
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p) New and revised IFRS in Issue but not yet effective

The Company has not yet applied the foliowing new and revised IFRS that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

New and revised IFRSs Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or

after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle amending IFRS 3, IFRS January 1, 2019
11, IAS 12 and IAS 23.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss)}, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically considers;

« Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;

« Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;

s+ The determination of taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and

The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment features with January 1, 2019
negative compensation. This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding

termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending

on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in

the case of negative compensation payments.

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and disclose
leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or
less or the underlying asset has a low value, Lessors continue to classify leases as
operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substantially
unchanged from its predecessor, 1IAS 17.

IFRS 16 Leases

On January 13, 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 16,
Leases. IFRS 16 will replace the existing leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations.
The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses
are charged to the statement of cormprehensive income. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17. The effective date for adoption of IFRS 16 is annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019, though early adoption is permitted for companies applying IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of IFRS 16 and the impact on the
financial statements. Further, the Company plans to adopt IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard as an adjustment to the opening retained earnings at the date of
initiat application, i.e. January 01, 2019.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments should have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company in the year of initial application.
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R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

4I

Intangible assets

(Amount in USD)

Particulars Softwares
At cost
Gross carrying value
As at January 1, 2017 334,711
Additions -
Disposals {46,598)
As at December 31, 2017 288,113
Additions -
Disposals -
As at December 31, 2018 288,113
Accumulated amortlzation
As at January 1, 2017 322,190
Charge for the year 7,518
Disposals {46,598)
As at December 31, 2017 283,110
Charge for the year 5,003
Disposals -
As at December 31, 2018 288,113
Net carrying value -
As at December 31, 2017 5,003

As at December 31, 2018
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

5 Deferred tax assets (net)

7

.

(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Deferred tax assets 178,786 409,836
Deferred tax liabilities {37,811)
Deferred tax asset (nat) 140,975 409,836
2018 Opening balance Recognised in profit or Closing balance
loss
Deferred tax asset / (liability} in relation to
Provision for compensatad absences 205,626 {51,157) 154,439
Provision for doubtful debts 16,834 7,453 24,347
Braught forward business losses 53,449 {53,449) -
Tatal 275,969 (97,183) 178,786
Deferred tax liability in relation to
Propearty, plant and equipment 133,867 {171,678) (37.811)
Total 133,867 (171,678} (37,811)
Deferred tax asset (net) 409,836 (268,861) 140,975
2017 Opening balance Recognised in profit or Closing balance
loss

Defarred tax asset in relation to
Froperty, plant and equipment 159,682 {29,815} 133,867
Provision for compensated absences 162, 649 42,977 205,626
Provision for doubtful debts 194,273 {177,379 16,894
Brought forward business losses 158,939 {105,490) 53,449
Total 675,543 {265,707) 409,826

Other financial assets {carried at amortised cost)
{Amount in USD}
Particulars As at As at
Decembear 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
hdvance to related parties 92,960 481,060
Loan te related party 310,837 343,940
Bank deposits {refer Lo Mote 9) 249,000 -
Unbilled reveniie 175,458 87,212
Staff advance 38,309 34,893
Security deposit 1,200 1,429
Interest accrued but not due 41,111 4,605
Others 3,545 -
912,451 953,139
Non-current 249,000 -
Current 663,451 53,139
912,451 953,139

Other current assets

(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at,

December 31, 2018 Dacember 31, 2017

Prepaid expenses 245 904 244,167
245,904 244,167

Non-current 30,568 1,771
Current 215,336 242,396
245,904 244,167




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

8. Trade recelvables
{Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at

Dacember 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Unsecured, considerad good 3,484,446 3,233,558
Cradit impaired 87.000 42,418
Less: Provision for doubtful dabts (87,0003 {42,418)
3,484,446 3,233,558

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 days’ terms. They are racognised at thelr original invoice
amounts, which represents their fair values on Initial recognition.

The Company assesses at the end of each reparting period whether there is objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired.

An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the orlginal terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivabla is
Impaired. The amount of the allowance is recognised In the profit or loss.

Movement of provision for doubtful debts

For the year endad For the year ended
Decembear 31, 2018 Decamber 31, 2017
Balance at beginning of year 42,418 487,757
Amount written off against receivablas - (376,700)
Charge for the year 54,582 10,333
Reversal for the year (10,000) (78,977)
Balance at end of the year 87,000 42,418
Age of impaired trade receivables

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

91 to 180 days 2,832
181+ days 84,168 42,418
87,000 42,418

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Company have trade receivables amounting to USD 1,449,628 (previous year USD 1,441,392) respectively that is past due at
the end of raporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsacured and the analysis of their aging at the and of reporting
pariod Is as follow:

As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

0-60 days 1,337,880 1,239,988
61-30 days 65,748 64,325
91 to 180 days 39,342 9,921
181+ days 6,658 127,158
1,449,628 1,441,392

The Company uses 3 provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based
on its historically observed default rates over the expected Iife of the trade recefvable and Is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.
AL every reporting date, the historlcally observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed.
The Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date,

Ageing Default rate *

Mot due 0.01%
0-90 days 0.02%
90-180 days 0.27%
180-365 days 0.58%
More than 365 days 2.00%

* In case of probability of non-collectton, default rate ts 100%,




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

9.

10.

11.

Cash and bank balances

For the purposes of statement of cash flow, ¢ash and bank balances include cash on hand and in banks. Cash and bank
balances at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flow can be reconciled to the related items

in the statement of financial pasition as follows:

{Amount in USD)

Particulars

As at
December 31, 2018

As at
December 31, 2017

Balances with banks

{i) In current accounts 1,358,478 2,677,370
(it} In deposit accounts 5,417,000 2,974,000
6,775,478 5,651,370
Less : Bank deposit with original maturity for more than 12 months (249,000) -
(refer to Note &)
Cash and bank balances 6,526,478 5,651,370
Less: Bank deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but {5,168,000) {2,974,000)
less than 12 months
Cash and bank balances for the purpose of cash flow 1,358,478 2,677,370
Share capital
{Amount in USD)
Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Common stock
Authorised
5,000 (Previous year 5,000) common stock at "no par value"

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
2,150 (Previous year 2,150) common stock at "no par value"

Notes:

1,537,401

1,537,401

1,537,401

1,537,401

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares. Each holder of ardinary share is entitled to one vote per share and

carry a right to dividends.

Retained earnings

(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Opening balance 7,554,231 7,214,594
Add: Profit for the year 364,644 339,637
Total 7,918,875 7,554,231

Retained earnings comprises the Company's prior years' undistributed earnings after taxes.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

Trade and other payables

(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Trade and other payables 1,525,639 1,012,112
1,525,639 1,012,112

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade payables are nermally settled on 30 to 60 days’ terms.

Provisions

{Amount in USD}

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Pravision for compensated absences 551,890 516,259
551,890 516,259
Non-current - =
Current 551,890 516,259
551,890 516,259

Other financial liabilities
(Amount in USD)
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Payable to related parties 7,988 58,577
7,988 58,577
Nan-current - %
Current 7,988 58,577
7,988 58,577

Other liabilities

{Amount in USD}
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
401K contributton payable 13,678 11,753
Advance from Customer 4,650 -
Other payable 19,817 -
38,145 11,753
Non-current Pt =
Current 38,145 11,753
38,145 11,753
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16,

17.

18.

Revenue

(Amount in USD)

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Rendering of services

Information about major customers:

23,544,151

20,801,105

23,544,151

20,801,105

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the largest customer constitute 13.40% and 16.01% of total

revenues, respectively.

Other income

{Amount in USD}

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost

~ Bank deposit 85,842 4,605
- Others 16,897 19,132
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) - 68,639
Liability no longer required written back 23,050 96,944
Profit on sale of fixed assets 6,300 -
Amount received on settlement with customer - 129,675
Miscellaneous income - 26,024
132,089 345,019

Depreciation and amortisation expense
{Amount in USD)
Particutars Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

123,625 115,015
5,003 7,518
128,628 122,533
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19.

Expenses by nature

{Amount in USD)

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Employee benefits (See note 1 below)
Sub-contracting expenses (See note 2 helow)
Power and fuel

Rent - premises

Rent - equipments

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Advertising and sales promotion

Travelling and conveyance (See note 3 below)
Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fees

Auditers' remuneration

Foreign exchange fluctuation {net)

Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)
Recruitment and training expenses
Membership and subscription

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Note 1: Employee benefits
Salaries and wages
Contribution towards 401K plan
Staff welfare expense

The employee benefits are recognized in the following line items in the statement of profit or loss:

Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Note 2: Sub-contracting expenses
Outsourcing expenses third party
Cutsourcing expenses from fellow subsidiary
QOutsourcing expenses from Holding company

13,165,128 12,742,552
7,158,969 5,499,244
4,870 5,839
154,263 148,045
7,908 7,470
45,858 33,151
47,242 64,676
132,387 143,568
233,824 159,346
946,670 821,633
59,144 54,892
3,925 3,180
594,797 486,957
18,202 26,090
2,335 4,763
44,583 -
68,812 114,394
43,238 83,735
17,172 15,653
1,823 1,844
22,751,150 20,417,032
11,799,770 11,178,560
35,022 24,493
1,330,336 1,539,499
13,165,128 12,742,552
11,329,937 11,270,415
1,835,191 1,472,137
13,165,128 12,742,552
4,397,838 3,267,806
2,378,739 1,627,267
382,392 604,171
7,158,969 5,499,244

The Sub-contracting expenses are recognized in the following line items in the statement of profit or loss:

Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Note 3: Travelllng and conveyance

6,847,377 5,222,273
311,592 276,971
7,158,969 5,499,244

Travelling and conveyance expenses are recognized in the following line items in the statement of profit or

loss:
Cost of revenues

Selling, general and admipistrative expenses

236,033 221,000
710,637 600,633
946,670 821,633
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Note 4: Break up of expenses
Cost of revenues (A)
Employee benefits
Sub-contracting expenses
Travelling and conveyance

Selling, general and administrative expenses (B)
Employee benefits

Sub-contracting expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Others

Total expenses (A+B}

11,329,937 11,270,415
6,847,377 5,222,273
236,033 221,000
18,413,347 16,713,688
1,835,191 1,472,137
311,592 276,971
710,637 600,633
1,480,383 1,353,604
4,337,803 3,703,344
22,751,150 20,417,032
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20.

Taxation

The provision far income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:

(Amount in USD)

Particulars

For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2017

Components of income tax expense

Current income tax expense

In respect of the current year

In respect of the prior periods

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year

In respect of the prior periods

Income tax {credit}/expense reported in income statement

Reconclliation of income tax charge to accounting profit:

Profit before tax

Effective income tax rate in USA
Expected tax expense
Adjustment of current tax of prior periods

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable
income

Impact of reduction in federal income tax rate on deferred
tax assets

Provision for prior years for deferred tax
Tax provision due to state filings
Others (net)

Break up of effective tax rate

138,000 1,215
24,957 -
219,978 228,976
48,883 36,731
431,818 266,922
796,462 606,559

27.98% 39.83%
222,850 241,592
24,957 -
4,617 o
96,770 =
48,883 36,731
17,556 ™
16,184 (11,401}
431,818 266,922

Particulars

For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2017

Federal statutory rate*
State tax rate, net of federal benefit
Effective income tax rate

21.00%
6.98%
27.98%

34.00%
5.83%
39.83%

The Company files combined tax return along with its fellow subsidiary R Systems Technologies Ltd {"RSTL").
In the combined tax return, the tax payable by RSTL is adjusted with the operating losses available at R

Systems, Inc. ("RSI") for the purposes of Federal income tax.

*W.e.f January 01, 2018, federal tax rate has changed from 34% to 21%.
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21. Financial instruments and risk management

a) Categories of financial instruments

The Company has the following categories of financial instrurments, measured at amortised cost,
at the balance sheet date:
{(Amount In USD)

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Financial assets

Trade receivables 3,484,446 3,233,558
Cash and bank balances 6,526,478 5,651,370
Other financial assets 912,451 953,139
10,923,375 9,838,067

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,525,639 1,012,112
Other financial liabilities 7,988 58,577
1,533,627 1,070,689

b) Capital risk management

The Company aims toc manage its overall capital so as to ensure the Company continues to
operate as a going concern, whilst providing an adequate return to shareholders.
The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged for 2018 and it is nat subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.
The Company's capital structure represents the equity attributable to shareholders of the company
together with cash and bank balances as follows:

{Amount in USD)

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Cash and Bank Balances 6,526,478 5,651,370
6,526,478 5,651,370
Equity 9,456,276 9,091,632
9,456,276 9,091,632
Capital and net funds 2,929,798 3,440,262

¢) Risk management objectives

The Board of Directors of the Company charged with the overall responsibility of establishing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies and processes. The Company’s risk
management policies and processes are determined in order to identify, analyse and monitor the
risks that are faced by the Company.

The principal risks to which the Company is exposed are market risk including currency risk, price
risk and interest rate risk, credit risk and liguidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may
result from changes in the foreign currency exchange rate, prices and interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are depominated in foreign
currencies,

The Company has limited exposure to movements in foreign currency exchange rates arising from
normal trading transactions. Therefore, the risk associated with the movement of foreign
exchange rates has no significant impact on the Company.
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Interest rate risk

The Company has very limited exposure to interest rate risk as it has no interest bearing
borrowings/ investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter-party will cause a financial loss to the Company by failing to
discharge its obfigation to the Company.

The Company trades only with recognised, credit worthy customers. All customers who wish to
trade on credit are subject to credit verification reviews. Customer balances are reviewed regularly
te ensure that the risk of exposure to bad debts is minimised.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables, bank balances and other
financial assets is represented by their carrying amount.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5

customers:
{Amount in USD)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Revenue from top customer 3,156,036 3,331,043
Revenue from top 5 customers 7,824,334 8,839,312

One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue during year ended December 31,
2018 and December 31, 2017. One customer accounted for more than 10% of the receivables for
the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting abligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company has given responsibility of liquidity risk
management to the Board of Directors who have formulated liquidity management tocls to service
this requirement.

Management of liquidity risk is achieved by monitoring budgets and forecasts and actual cash
flows. In addition, the Company benefits from strong cash flow from its normal trading activities.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no bank loans and borrowings or finance lease
liabilities.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

{(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Less than 1 year

Trade and other payables 1,525,639 1,012,112
Other financial liabilities 7,988 58,577
1,533,627 1,070,689

d) Fair values

The Board of Directors consider that the carrying values of all the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The Cornpany does not hold any financial instruments that are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss or available for sale and therefore are measured at fair value,

Chartered
Accountants
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22. Related party disclosures

i) Names of related parties
Parent entity R Systems International Limited, India

Fellow subsidiaries Following are the subsidiaries of R Systems International Limited, India
R Systems (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore
R Systems Technologies Limited, USA
ECnet Ltd, Singapore
Computaris International Limited, U.K,
RSYS Technologies Limited, Canada

Following are the subsidiaries of ECnet Ltd, Singapore
- ECnet {M) Sdn Bhd, Malaysia

- ECnet Systems (Thailand) Co. Ltd., Thailand

- ECnet (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., People's Republic of China

- ECnet (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong

- ECnet, Inc., USA

- ECnet Kabushiki Kaisha, Japan

Following are the subsidiaries of Computaris International Limited, U.K,
- Computaris Romania Srl, Romania

- Computaris Polska sp z 0.0., Poland

- ICS Computaris International Srl, Moldova

- Computaris Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

- Computaris USA, Inc., USA (liquidated on October 22, 2018)

- Computaris Philippines Pte. Ltd. Inc., Phillippines

- Computaris Suisse Sarl (incorporated on April 27, 2018)

Following are the subsidiaries of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore

IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore (formerly known as IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd} with
the following step down subsidiaries:

- IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd, Singapore

- IBIZ Consulting Services Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

- PT. IBIZCS Indonesia., Indonesia

- IBIZ Consultancy Services India Private Limited, India
- IBIZ Consulting Services Limited, Hong Kong (IBIZ HK)

- IBIZ Consulting Services {Shanghai) Co,, Ltd., People's Republic of China
(wholly owned subsidiary of IBIZ HK)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Key management personnel Satinder Singh Rekhi, Director

Harpreet Rekhi, Director

Sartaj Singh Relkhi, Director

Vinay Narjit Singh Behl, Director

Relatives of key management Ramneet Singh Rekhi, Vice President
personnel (related to Satinder Singh Rekhi)
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il) Details of transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
{Amount in USD)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Information technology services rendered to

Computaris USA, Inc,, USA 360,057 1,696,677
Computaris International Limtted, U.K. 1,044,595 -
Total 1,404,692 1,696,677
Information technology services received from

R Systemns International Limited, India 70,800 327,200
R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA 2,378,739 1,627,267
RSYS Technologies Ltd., Canada 41,607 43,940
Total 2,491,146 1,998,407
Off-shore support services received from

R Systems International Limited, India 338,688 301,056
Total 338,688 301,056
Loan given to

R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA - 35,000
Total - 35,000
Loan repaid by

R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA 33,103 100,000
Total 33,103 100,000
Interest income

R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA 16,897 19,132
Total 16,897 19,132
Purchase of assets

Computaris USA, Inc., USA 11,350 -
Total 11,350 -

Travel & other expenses reimbursed by the company to

RSYS Technologies Ltd., Canada 50,074 36,950
R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA - 15,385
R Systems Internatlonal Limited, India 228,869 101,943
ECnet Ltd, Singapore 26,040 21,359
Total 304,983 175,637
Travel & other expenses reinmbursed to the company by

R Systerns Technologies Ltd., USA 33,895 31,254
R Systerns International Limited, India 552,404 614,189
Computaris International Limited, U.K, 19,516 -
Computaris USA, Inc., USA 11,128 58,296
Total 616,953 703,739
Other services

Yinay Narjit Singh Behl 101,192 125,665
Total 101,192 125,665
Remuneration

Short term employee benefit 300,714 236,188
Other long term employee benefit (1,776) (3,680)
Total 298,938 232,508
Rent

Satinder Singh Rekhi 79,200 79,200

Total 79,200 79,200
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ili) Details of balances of related parties as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

{Amount in USD)

Particulars

As at
December 31, 2018

As at
December 31, 2017

Trade receivable
Computaris USA, Inc., USA
Computaris International Limited, U.K.

Total

Trade payable

RSYS Technologies Ltd., Canada

R Systems International Limited, India
R Systems Technologies Ltd., USA.
Vinay MNarijit Singh Behl

Total

Loan given to
R Systermns Technologies Ltd,, USA*

Total

- 391,978
118,528 "
118,528 391,978

5,918 7,705
4,000 25,600
176,202 88,113
55,549 83,260
241,669 204,678
310,837 343,940
310,837 343,940

*The loan bears interest at 5% per annum and is repayable on demand. The maximum amount outstanding during 2018

and 2017 was USD 356,999 and USD 419,919 respectively.

Other receivables

RSYS Technalogies Ltd., Canada

R Systems International Limited, India
Computaris International Limited, U.K.
R Systerns Technalogies Ltd., USA,
Computaris USA, Inc., USA

Total

Other financial liabilities
R Systems International Limited, India
ECHNet Ltd., Singapore

Total

712 454,544
82,166 -
1,298 -
8,784 -

- 26,516

92,960 481,060

- 33,300

7,088 25,277

7,988 58,577




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

23.

Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into commercial leases on office & apartment premises and equipment rental. These
leases have an average life of between 1 and S years with no renewal option or contingent rent provision included
in the contracts. There are no restriction placed upon the Company by entering intc these leases.

{Amount in USD)
Payments recognised as an expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Lease payments for the year 162,171 155,515
Total 162,171 155,515

Future minimum lease payments payable under nen-cancellable leases as at year-end are as follows:

{Amount in USD}

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Not later than 1 year 49,968 27,854
Later than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 31,267 -

Future minimum lease payments 81,235 27,854




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

24. Employee Benefit

The Company has calculated the benefits provided to employees as under:

Defined contribution plans

The Company contibutes to a defined contribution retirement scheme, qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code, for certain eligible employees. Pursuant to the scheme, eligible employees may contribute a portion of
their compensation, subject to a maximum amount per year as specified by law. The Company provides a matching
contribution based on specified percentages of amounts contributed by participants. In addition to the matching
contributions, the Company, at its discretion, can provide profit-sharing contributions. Dring the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017 there were no discretionary contributions made.

During the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:
{Amount in USD)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
401 (k) contribution 35,022 24,493

Compensated absences

Compensated absences are provided for based on actvarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected
unit credit method. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
(Amount in USD)

Particulars December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Discount rate(s}* 3.65% 2.20%
Rate of increase in compensation level 3.50% 3.50%
Average Expected Future Working life {Years) 3.93 3.92

*Discount rate

Under JAS 19 R the discount rate is deteremined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corperate bonds (or, in countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, government bonds) of a
currency and term consistent with the currency and term of the post-employment benefit obligations,

Components of expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss in respect of:
{(Amount in USD)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current service cost 200,588 206,430
Past service cost - -
Loss/{gain) on settlement - B
Net interest cost/(income)} on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 9,876 6,923
Immediate recognition of {gains}/losses - other long term benefits (135,233) {55,509)
Expenses recognised in profit and loss 75,231 157,844

The amount included in the batance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of compensated absence is as
follows:
(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Present value of obligation 551,890 516,259
Fair value of plan assets - -
Deficit/ (Surplus) 551,890 516,259

Effects of asset ceilling, if any - -
Net liability / (asset) 551,890 516,259




R Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financiat Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

Movement in the present value of obligation for accumulated compensated absences is as follows:

{Amount in USD)

Particulars For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2017

Present value of obligation as at the beginnig 516,259 408,358
Current service cost 200,588 206,430
Interest expense or cost 9,876 6,923
Remesaurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

- change in financial assumptions (26,575) (4,330}
- experence variance (108,659) {51,178}
Benefits paid (39,600) (49,944}
Present value of obligation as at the end 551,889 516,259

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have ben determined based on reasonably possible changes in respective
assumption occurring at the end of reperting period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis presented below may not be reprentative of the actual change in the obligation for compensated
absence as it unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

(Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Discount rate

a. Discount rate - 50 basis points 560,739 525,001
b. Discount rate + 50 basis points 543,352 507,836
Salary increase rate

a. Rate - 50 basis points 543,299 508,349
b. Rate + 50 basis points 560,236 524,827

25, subsequent events

a} Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2018, R Systems, Inc. has completed the acquisition of 100% interest in
Innovizant LLC, (Innovizant), a Chicago {USA} based company engaged in providing IT Services focused on advanced
analytics, data engineering, and digital connected systems,

b) Other than above, the Company evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and disclosure through February
08, 2019, the date the financial statements were issued.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
R SYSTEMS, INC.

S

—y

SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Singapore
Date: February 08, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Board of Directors of R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at
December 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrels, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimate made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
\h Chartered

Regd. Office: Indlabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (Wast), Mumbai - 400 013, M Mepdudiants
{LLP Identification No, AAB-8737}
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
aforesaid accounting principles, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31,
2018, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the

year ended on that date.

Place: Noida
Date: February 08, 2019

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Chartered
Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner
{Membership No. 87104)



R Systems Technologies Limited

Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018

{Amount in USD)

Particulars Notes As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ASSETS
A, Non-current assets
Deferred tax assets (net) 3 = -
Total non-current assets (A) - -
B, Current assets
{a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 176,202 88,113
(i) Cash and bank balances 5 26,163 42,409
(i) Other financial assets 6 6,555 500
(b) Other current assets 7 31 -
Total current assets {B) 208,951 131,022
Total assets (A+B) 208,951 131,022
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A. Capital and reserve
(a) Share capital 8 243,750 243,750
{b) Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses) 9 (372,958) (462,764)
Total capital and reserve (A) (129,208) (219,014)
Liabilities
8. Current liabilities
(a) Financial tiabilities
(i) Trade and other payables 10 2,538 5,809
(ii} Short term borrowings 11 310,837 343,940
(iii} Other financial liahilities 12 8,784 -
(b) Current tax liability (Net) 16,000 287
Total current liabilities {(B) 338,159 350,036
Total equity and liabilities (A+B) 208,951 131,022
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

Finrvn M m

Chartered
JITENDRA AGARWAL Accountants
Partner
Place: Noida

Date: February 08, 2019

L ren-

1

SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Singapore
Date: February 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the board of directors
R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED



R Systems Technologies Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018

(Amount in USD)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Revenue from operations 13 2,378,739 1,627,267
Cost of revenues 14 (2,203,174) (1,549,778}
Gross profit 175,565 77,489
Selling general and administrative expenses 15 {40,919) (35,854)
Finance Cost 16 {16,897) (19,132)
Profit before tax 117,749 22,503
Income tax expense 17 (27,943) (4,217)
Profit after tax 89,806 18,286
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 89,806 18,286
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

t

Chartered

JITENDRA AGARWAL Accountants

Partner

Place: Noida ——
Date: February 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the board of directors
R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

SATINDER SINGH REKHI

Director

-—""'""{‘

Place: Singapore

Date: February 08, 2019



R Systems Technologies Limited

Statement of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2018

{Amount in USD)

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit after tax

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense

Interest expense

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables

Other financial assets and other current assets

Trade and other payables, and other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid, net of refunds
Net cash flows from operating actlvities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Receipt of short term borrowings

Repayment of short term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Casbh flows from investing activities:

Net cash flows from from investing activities

Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year

89,806 18,286
27,943 4,217
16,897 19,132

(88,089) 22,734
{6,086) -
5,513 4,119
45,984 68,488
(12,230) (513)
33,754 67,975
‘ 35,000
(33,103} (100,000}
(16,897} (19,132}
(50,000) (84,132)
(16,246) (16,157)
42,409 58,566
26,163 42,409

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner

Chartered
Accounlants

Place: Noida —
Date: February 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the board of directors
R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

y

SATINDER SINGH REKHI

Director

Place: Singapore

Date: February 08, 2019



R Systems Technologies Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity as at December 31, 2018

{(Amount in USD)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
earnings
Balance at January 1 2017 243,750 (481,050} (237,300)
Changes in ordinary shares during the year - & =
Profit for the year - 18,286 18,286
Balance at December 31, 2017 243,750 {462,764) (219,014)
Changes in ordinary shares during the year = - -
Profit for the year - 89,806 89,806
Balance at December 31, 2018 243,750 (372,958) (129,208)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Chartered Accountants R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Qlem Gm

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner

Chartered
Accountants

Director

Place: Noida

Place: Singapore

o
'y

SATINDER SINGH REKHI

Date: February 08, 2019 Date: February 08, 2019



R Systems Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. General information

R Systems Technologies Limited (the ‘Company’) is a wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems International
Limited (RSIL} a company incorporated in India. The Company was incorporated under the laws of the
State of Delaware on November 6, 1996.

The address of the registered office is 5000, Windplay Drive, Suite # 5, El Dorado Hills, Sacramento,
California, USA, 95762,

The Company provides IT staffing and consulting services for customers primarily in USA geocgraphies,

The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Company’'s Board of Directors on
February 08, 2019,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and its interpretations ("IFRS”), as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASB").

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where otherwise
described in the accounting policies below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an assets or a liability, the Company takes inte account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis.

The principal accounting poficies adopted by the Company are set out below.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration te which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service.
A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

Consultancy & IT staffing services
The Company recognizes revenue from consultancy and IT staffing services over time, using an output

method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. The output methods

Chartered
Accountants




R Systems Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

d)

f)

9)

recognize revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the services
transferred to date relative services promised under the contract.

Functlonal currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in USD which is the currency of the primary
econamic environment in which the Company operates.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than functional currency are recognised, on initial recognition, at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
The tax expense comprises the sum of the tax currently payable by the Company and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current taxes are based on the taxable profit for the year of the Company and are calculated
according to local tax rules, using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit
or loss because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Chartered

Accounlants




R Systems Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

All financial instruments are recognised inittally at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Cash and bank balance comprise cash in hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, in banks and
demand deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or |ess.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
(i) held for trading, or (iii} designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability,

Derecognition of financial fiabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial positlon if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

/ Chartered
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R Systems Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

h} Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate,

(1) significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic Information that relate to the Company’s core operations.

(i) Definition of default

The Company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 120 days past
due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred,

(iv) Write off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there Is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward looking
information. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date,

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.




R Systems Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

i)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and risks specific to the asset,

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed Iif there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment lass is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If it is ne longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences, management expertise and
other contributing factors, the results which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities that may not be readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Critical accounting judgments
The Company’s major tax jurisdiction is USA. Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, {Also refer to note 17)

There are no other judgments that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Chartered
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R Systems Technologies Limlted
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

k) New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financlal Instruments

In the current year, the Company has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014)
and the related consequential amendments to other IFRS Standards that are effective for an annual
period that begins on or after January 1, 2018. The transition provisions of IFRS 9 allow an entity not
to restate comparatives. The Company has elected not to restate comparatives in respect of the
classification and measurement of financial Instruments. Additionally, the Company adopted
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that were applied to the
disclosures for 2018 and to the comparative period.

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for;

1) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
2} Impalrment of financial assets, and
3) General hedge accounting.

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Company’s financial statements are
described below,

The Company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.

a) Classlfication and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Company has assessed its existing financial
assets and financial liabilities in terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is January 1, 2018. Accordingly,
the Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments that continue to be recognised as
at January 1, 2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at January 1, 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to
be recognised as at January 1, 2018 have not been restated,

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

* debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

» debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

= all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset:

* the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination in other comprehensive income; and

= the Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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In the current year, the Company did not have any debt investments that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL.

When a debt investment measured at FVTQCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
subsequently transferred to retained earnings. Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

b) Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires the
Company to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires the Company to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:
1} Debt investments measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI;

2} Lease receivables;

3} Trade receivables and unbilled revenue; and

4} Financial guarantee contracts to which the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply.

In particular, IFRS 9 requires the Company to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument is a
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since Initial
recognition (except for a purchased or originated creditBimpaired financial asset), the Company is
required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12B8months
ECL. IFRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, unbilled revenue and lease receivables in certain circumstances.

For the purpose of assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of financial instruments that remain recognised on the date of initial application of IFRS 9
(i.e. January 1, 2018), the Company has compared the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments on the date of their Initial recognition to their credit risk as at January 1, 2017.

The application of the IFRS 9 impairment requirements has not resulted in additional loss allowance to
be recognised in year ended December 31, 2018 as the impact is not material.

¢) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

A significant change introduced by IFRS @ in the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the accounting for changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as at FVTPL
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the issuer.

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires that the changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability be presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified te profit or loss, but are
instead transferred to retained earnings when the financial liability is derecognised.

Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.
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The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the classification and measurement of the Company’s
financial liabilities as there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

d) General hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of
risk components of non-financial items that are eliglble for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been replaced with the principle of an 'economic relationship’. Retraspective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
the Company’s risk management activities have also been introduced,

The application of the IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements has had no other impact on the results
and financial position of the Company for the current and/or prior years as there are no hedge
accounting within the Company.

@) Disclosures in relation to the initial application of IFRS ¢

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Company had previously designated as
at FVTPL under IAS 39 that were subject to reclassification or which the Company has elected to
reclassify upon the application of IFRS 9. There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which
the Company has elected to designate as at FVTPL at the date of initial application of IFRS 9.

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the cash flows of the Company.
Impact of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended in April 2016) which is effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 1,
2018. IFRS 15 introduced a 5 step approach to revenue recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Details of the new requirements as well as
their impact on the Company’s financial statements are described below,

The Company has applied IFRS 15 in accordance with the fully retrospective transitional approach
without using the practical expedients for completed contracts in IFRS 15:C5(a), and (b), or for
modified contracts in IFRS 15:C5(c) but using the expedient in IFRS 15:C5(d) allowing both
nongdisclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations, and an explanation of when it expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all
reporting periods presented before the date of initial application, i.e. January 1, 2018,

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract liability’ to describe what might more commonly
be known as ‘'unbilled revenue’ and 'deferred revenue’, however the Standard does not prohibit an
entity from using alternative descriptions in the statement of financial position. The Company has not
adopted the terminology used in IFRS 15 to describe such balances.

The Company’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in note 2 above,
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures for the Company’s revenue transactions, the
application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/or financial
performance of the Company.
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1} New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRS that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

New and revised IFRSs Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle amending IFRS January 1, 2019
3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23,

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss),

tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is

uncertainty over ijncome tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically

considers:

Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;

Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;

The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,

unused tax credits and tax rates: and

The effect of changes in facts and circlimstances.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment January 1, 2019
features with negative compensation. This amends the existing requirements

in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at

amortised cost {or, depending on the business model, at fair value through

other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation

payments.

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the
lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value.
Lessors centinue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor,
IAS 17.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments should have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company in the year of initial application.
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3 Deferred tax assets {net)

{Amount in USD)

Particulars As at

As at

Deceamber 31, 2018

D ber 31, 2017

Ceferred tax assats
Deferred tax liablity

Deferred tax asset (net) =

2018 Opening balance Recognised in profit

or loss

Closing Balance

Deferred tax assets in relation to
Pravision for doubtful debts

Total - - ]
2017 Opening balance  Recognised in profit Closing Balance
or loss
Daferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for doubtful debts 3,417 (3,417
Total 3,417 (3,417) -
Trade receivables
{Amount in USD)
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Unsecured, considered good 176,202 858,113
Credit impatred
Less: provision for doubtful debts -] .
176,202 88,113

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days’ terms, They are recognised at their original invgice amounts,

which represents their fair values on Initial recognition.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired,

An allowance for impairment |s established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts dua
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable Is impaired.

The amount of the allowance |s recognised in the profit or loss,

The Company has no provision for doubtful debt as per expected credit loss as all trade recelvables from related party.

Movement of provision for doubtful debts

For the year ended
December 21, 2018

Far the year ended
December 31, 2017

Balance at beginning of year ¥
Armount written off against recelvables

8,580
{8,580}

Balance at end of the year ]

Age of Impaired trade receivables

For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
Decembar 31, 2017

181+ days

Receivables that are past due but not Impaired
The Company has NIL trade receivables that is past due at the end of reporting peried but not impalred,

Cash and bank balances

{Amount in USD)

As at
December 21, 2018

Particulars

As at
December 31, 2017

Balances with banks

In current account 26,163

42,409

26,162

42,409
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6 Other financial assets (carried at amortised cost)

(Amount in USD)

Particulars

Unbilled revenue
Staff advance

Non-current
Current

7 Other current assets
Prepald expenses

Non-current
Current

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
6,555 -
- 500
6,555 500
6,555 S00
6,555 500
3 -

a -

31 -

31 -

--m=mmeaeeees- This space has been intentionally left blank --------------
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10

11

12

Share capital
{Amount in USD)
Particulars Az at As at
Pecember 31, 2018 Decambar 31, 2017
Ordinary shares
Authorised

250,000 {Previous year 250,000) ordinary shares at "no par valua” -

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
243,750 (Prevlous year 243,750) ordinary shares at "no par valug” 243,750

243,750

243,730

243,750

Notes:

The Company has only cne class of ordinary shares, Each holder of ordinary share (s entitled to one vote per share and carry a right to dividends,

Retained earnings

{Amount in USD)

Particulars Asg at Asg at

December 31, 2018 Decembar 31, 2017

Opening batance (462,764} {461,050}
Add: Profit for the year 89,806 13,286
Total {372,958) (462,764)

Retained eamings comprises the Company's prior years' undistributed gamings after taxes.

Trade and other payables

{Amoun In USD}

Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Trade and cther payables 2,538 5,809
2,538 5,809

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade payables are normally settled on 30 to 60 days’ terms,

Short tarm borrowinas

{Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Lean from related party* 310,837 343,940
310,837 343,940

* The aforesaid borrowing bear interest at 5% per annum and are repayable on demand.

Othar financial liabilities

{Amount in USD)

As at As at
Dacember 31, 2018 Dacember 31, 2017
Payable to related party 8,784 -

8,784
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13 Revenue

{Amount in USD)

Particulars

Year ended

December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Rendering of services

2,378,739

1,627,267

2,378,739

1,627,267

Information about major customers:

The Company has generated revenue from billing to a related party for the years ended December 31, 2018 and

2017.

14 Cost of revenues

{(Amount in USD)

Particulars

Year ended

December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Salaries and wages 2,203,174 1,549,759
Staff welfare expense = 19
2,203,174 1,549,778
15 Selling general and administrative expenses
{Amount in USD)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Sub-contracting expenses 27,096 24,084
Legal and professional fees 10,769 8,770
Auditors’ remuneration 3,034 2,500
Travelling Administrative 20 -
Miscellanecus expenses * 500
40,919 35,854

Expense by nature
Salaries and wages 2,203,174 1,549,759
Staff welfare expense E 19
Sub-contracting expenses 27,096 24,084
Legal and professional fees 10,769 8,770
Travelling Administrative 20 -
Auditors' remuneration 3,034 2,500
Miscellaneous expenses - 500
2,244,093 1,585,632

16 Finance cost
(Amount in USD)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Interest paid 16,897 19,132
16,897 19,132
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17 Taxation
The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 comprised the following:

{Amount in USD)

Components of income tax expense Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Current income tax expense

In respect of the current year 26,000 800
In respect of the prior periods 1,943 -
Deferred tax - 3,417
Income tax {credit)/expense reported in income 27,943 4,217
statement

Reconciliation of income tax charge to accounting profit:

Profit before tax 117,749 22,503
Effective income tax rate in USA 21.00% 39.83%
Expected tax expense 24,727 8,963
Losses adjustment in combined tax return - (4,746)
Adjustment of current tax of prior periods 1,943 -
Others (net) 1,273 -
27,943 4,217

The Company files combined tax return along with its fellow subsidiary R Systems, Inc. {"RSI"). In the
combined tax return, the tax payable by the Company is adjusted with the operating losses available in RSI for
the purposes of Federal income tax.
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18 Related party disclosures

i) Names of related parties
Parent entity R Systems International Limited, India

Fellow subsidiaries Following are the subsidiaries of R Systems International Limited, India
R Systerns {Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore
R Systems, Inc., USA
ECnet Ltd, Singapore
Computaris International Limited, U.K.
RSYS Technclagies Limited, Canada

Following are the subsidiaries of ECnet Ltd, Singapore
- ECnet (M) Sdn Bhd, Malaysia

- ECnet Systems (Thailand) Co. Ltd., Thailand

- ECnet (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., People's Republic of China

- ECnet (Hong Kong} Ltd., Hong Kong

- ECnet, Inc., USA

- ECnet Kabushiki Kaisha, Japan

Following are the subsidiaries of Computaris International Limited, U.K.

- Computaris Romania Srl, Romania

- Computaris Polska sp z 0.0., Poland

- ICS Computaris International Srl, Moldova

- Computaris Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

- Computaris USA, Inc., USA (liquidated on October 22, 2018)

- Computaris Philippines Pte, Ltd. Inc., Phillippines {incorporated on May 23, 2016)
- Computaris Suisse Sarl (incorporated on April 27, 2018)

Following are the subsidiaries of R Systems (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore

IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore (formerly known as IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd) with the
following step down subsidiaries:

- IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd, Singapore

- IBIZ Consulting Services Sdn, Bhd., Malaysia

- PT. IBIZCS Indonesia., Indonesia

- IBIZ Consultancy Services India Private Limited, India
- IBIZ Consulting Services Limited, Hong Kong {IBIZ HK)

- IBIZ Consulting Services {Shanghai) Co., Ltd., People's Republic of China (whally
owned subsidiary of IBIZ HK)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Key management parsonnel Satinder Singh Rekhi, Director

Harpreet Rekhi, Director

Sartaj Singh Rekhi, Director
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il)

iiii}

Detaits of transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

{Amount in USD)

Particulars Year ended

December 31, 2018

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Information technology services rendered to

R Systems Inc. USA 2,378,739 1,627,267
Total 2,378,739 1,627,267
Interest Expenses

R Systems Inc. USA 16,897 19,132
Total 16,897 19,132
Travel & other expenses reimbursed by the company to

R Systerns In¢, USA 33,895 31,254
Total 33,895 31,254
Travel & other expenses reimbursed to the company by

R Systems Inc. USA - 15,385
Total = 15,385
Loan taken from

R Systems Inc. USA - 35,000
Total & 35,000
Loans repaid to

R Systems Inc, USA 33,103 100,000
Total 33,103 100,000

Outstanding balances of related parties as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

{Amount in USD)

Year ended
December 31, 2018

Particulars

Year ended
December 31, 2017

Trade receivable

R Systems Inc. USA 176,202 88,113
Total 176,202 88,113
Unbilled revenue

R Systems Inc. USA 6,555

Total 6,555 -
Short term borrowings

R Systermns Inc, USA* 310,837 343,940
Total 310,837 343,940

*The loans bear interest at 5% per annum and are due on demand, The maximum amount cutstanding during 2018 and 2017

was USD 356,999 and USD 419,919 respectively,

Other financial liabilities

R Systems Inc. USA 8,784

Total 8,784

Chartered
Accounla
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19 Financial instruments and risk management

Categories of financial instruments
The Company has the following categories of financial instruments at the balance sheet date:

{(Amount in USD)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 176,202 88,113
Cash and bank balances 26,163 42,409
Other financial assets 6,555 500
208,920 131,022
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,538 5,809
Short term borrowing 310,837 343,940
Other financial liabilities 8,784 -
322,159 349,749

Capital risk management

The Company aims to manage its overall capital 50 as to ensure the company continues to operate as a
going concern, whilst providing an adequate return to shareholders. The Company’s averall strategy
remains unchanged for 2018 and it is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company’s current and total liabilities exceeded its current and total assets as at the year end. The
holding company undertakes to continue providing financial support to the Company to discharge its
liability,

The Company’s capital structure represents the equity attributable to shareholders of the company together
with cash and bank balances as follows:

(Amount in USD)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Cash and bank balances 26,163 42,409
Total 26,163 42,409
Equity (129,208) (219,014)
Total (129,208) (219,014)
Capital and net funds (155,371) (261,423)

Risk management objectives

The Board of Directors of the company is charged with the overall responsibility of establishing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies and processes. The Company's risk management
policies and processes are determined in order to identify, analyse and monitor the risks that are faced by
the Company.

The principal risks to which the Company is exposed are market risk including currency risk, price risk and
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes
in the foreign currency exchange rate, interest rates and prices.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Company has no significant exposure to movements in foreign currency exchange rates arising from

normal trading transactions. Therefore, the risk associated with the movement of foreign exchange rates
has no significant impact on the company.

o Chartered
L/ = | Accountanis
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Interest rate risk
The carrying amount of borrowings as at reporting date having interest rate risk is as follows:

{Amount in USD)

As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Short term borrowings 310,837 343,940
310,837 343,940

The company has used a sensitivity analysis technique that measures the estimated change to the income
statement from 10% change in the Interest rate on cutstanding borrowings. Under this assumption, with a
10% upward or downward change in Interest rate profit before tax would have decreased by USD 1,696
(Previous year USD 1,913) or increased by USD 1,696 (Previous year USD 1,913).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter-party will cause a financial loss to the Company by failing to discharge
its obligation to the Company,

The Company trades only with recognised, credit worthy customers. All customers who wish to trade on
credit are subject to credit verification checks. Customer balances are checked regularly to ensure that the
risk of exposure to bad debts is minimised.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables, bank balances and other financial
assets is represented by their carrying amount.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The Company has generated revenue from billing to a related party for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting abligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Company has given responsibility of liquidity risk management to the Board of
Directors who have formulated liquidity management tools to service this requirement.

Management of liquidity risk is achieved by monitoring budgets and forecasts and actual cash flows. In
addition, the Company benefits from strong cash flow from its normal trading activities.

At the balance sheet date the Company had no bank loans or finance lease liabilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments:
{Amount in USD)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Less than 1 year

Trade and other payables 2,538 5,809

Short term borrowings 310,837 343,940

Other financial liabilities 8,784 -

322,159 349,749
Fair values

The Board of Directors consider that the carrying values of all the company's financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The Company does not hold any financial instruments that are classified as fair value through profit or loss
or available for sale and therefore are measured at fair value.

Chartared

Accountants
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20 The Company has accumulated losses of USD 372,958 as at December 31, 2018 (as at

21

December 31, 2017 USD 462,764), this has resuilted in erosion of its net worth as at December
31, 2018. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by USD 129,208
as on December 31, 2018 (previous year USD 219,014). These conditions indicate the existence
of a uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, During the year ended December 31, 2018 the Company has earned profit of USD
89,806 (previous year USD 18,286). The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern
is dependent on the improvement of the Company's future operations and continued financial
support from R Systems International Limited, the holding company. The financial statements of
the Company have been prepared on the basis that the Company is a going concern, as tha
holding company has confirmed to provide requisite financial support for the continued
operations of the Company as and when required. Accordingly, the financial statements do not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amagunts or to the classification of liabilities that might be necessary, should the Company be
unable to ¢continue as a going concern.

Subsequent events

The Company evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and disclosure through
February 08, 2019, the date the financial statements were issued.

For and on behalf of the board of directors
R SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

y

SATINDER SINGH REKHI
Director

Place: Sinqapore
Date: February 08, 2019
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Directors’ Statement

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of ECnet Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
and balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for financial year ended
31 December 2018.

1.

OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS
In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheets and statement of
changes in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and the financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date; and

{b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Sartaj Singh Rekhi
Chan Kum Ming
Teo Lye Choon

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the
register of directors’ shareholdings, required to be kept under section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50, an interest in shares and share options of the Company and related
corporations as stated below:

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
names of directors deemed to have an interest
At beginning Atend At beginning At end
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares

The Company
Sartaj Singh Rekhi - - 91,870,697 91,870,697



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Directors’ Statement — continued

4.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
names of directors deemed to have an interest
At beginning At end At beginning At end
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares of Rs. 1 each
The immediate and ultimate
holding company
— R Systems International

Limited
Sartaj Singh Rekhi 5,864,656 5,864,656 38,822,571 38,822,571
Chan Kum Ming 8,000 8,000 - -

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year
had interests in shares, share options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related
corporations, either at the beginning of financial year or at the end of financial year.

OPTIONS ON SHARES TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group was granted.

OPTIONS EXERCISED

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group
issued by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group under option.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The independent auditor, HLB Atrede LLP has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment
as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors,

sy 0

Chan Kum Ming Teo Lye Choon
Director Director
Singapore

30 January 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of ECnet Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ECnet Limited (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2018, and the statements of changes in equity of the Group and of the Company, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group, the balance sheet and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act Chapter 50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(FRSs) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in
equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and
Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t. +65 6323 1928 s By
f: +65 6225 3884
LEN T12LL0782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLE Atrede LLP is a member of (888 Intarnational, A world-wide network of independent accounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of ECnet Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
{=]

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

20 Peck Sesh Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t +65 6323 1928 <z
f: +65 6225 3884
LEN T12LLO782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLB Atrede LLP is a member of International, & world-wide network of independent accounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of ECnet Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

=  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t. +65 6323 1928 = & g

f: +65 6225 3884
UEN T12LL0782L

www.hlbatrede.com HLE Atrade LLP is a member of International. A warld-wide network of independent accounting firms and business advisers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of ECnet Limited — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company of
which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

HLB Atveole LLP

HLB Atrede LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
30 January 2019

20 Peck Seah Street #04-00
Singapore 079312

t; +65 6323 1928 = B =
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2018

Group Company
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
$ h $ $
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 4 103,586 57,387 21,095 22,392
Investment in subsidiaries 5 - - 301,445 1
103,586 57,387 322,540 22,393
Current assets
Trade receivables 6 1,184,143 1,023,533 571,491 619,051
Other receivables 7 255,069 239,971 105,260 136,266
Contract assets 8 503,310 351,782 48,006 152,634
Amounts due from holding
company 9 12,564 5,512 12,564 5,512
Amounts due from
subsidiary companies 10 - - 1,158,576 1,056,263
Amounts due from related
companies 11 210,029 601,985 206,604 588,996
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,639,210 2,126,706 1,516,672 1,002,345
4,805,025 4,349,489 3,619,173 3,561,067
Current Habilities
Trade payables 13 92,293 183,986 39,790 163,442
Other payables 14 681,708 442,442 508,197 325,968
Contract liabilities 15 197,826 725,902 189,701 700,126
Amounts due to a holding
company 16 193,280 209,674 193,280 209,674
Amounts due to subsidiary
companies 10 - - 18,872 130,353
Tax payable 2,209 — — —
1,167,316 1,562,004 949,840 1,529,563
Net current assets 3,637,709 2,787,485 2,669,333 2,031,504
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 14 808 1,168 808 1,168
Deferred taxation 17 - - - -~
808 1,168 208 1,168
Net assets 3,740,487 2,843,704 2,991,065 2,052,729
Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Share capital 18 36,549,523 86,549,523 86,549,523 86,549,523
Foreign currency
translation adjustment
reserve i9 (103,552) (59,520) - -
Accumulated losses (82,705,484) {83,646,299) (83,558,458) {84,496,794)
Total equity 3,740,487 2,843,704 2,991,065 2,052,729

The accontpanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Note
Revenue 20
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Other operating income 21
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other credits/{charges) 22
Finance cost 23
Profit before tax 24
Income tax expense 25

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to
prafit or loss:

Foreign currency translation

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company

2018 2017
h $

11,846,725 9,450,288
(8,685,536) (6.476,771)
3,161,189 2,973,517
486,898 501,535
(699,167) (557,337)
(2,110,654) (2,120,545)
138,705 134,002
- 3)
976,971 931,169
(36,156) (11,607)
940,815 919,562
(44,032) 24,472
(44,032) 24,472
896,783 944,034
940,815 919,562
896,783 944,034

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries

(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Group

Balance at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2018

Company

Balance at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2018

Foreign
currency
translation
Share adjustment Accumulated
capital reserve losses Total
$ $ $ $
86,549,523 (83,992) (84,565,861) 1,899,670
- 24,472 919,562 944,034
86,549,523 (59,520) (83,646,299) 2,843,704
— {44,032) 940,815 896,783
86,549,523 (103,552) (82,705,484) 3,740,487
86,549,523 - (85,054,920} 1,494,603
- - 558,126 558,126
86,549,523 - (84,496,794) 2,052,729
- - 938,336 938,336
86,549,523 = (83,558,458) 2,991,065

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Payable written back
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expenses
Allowance for expected credit losses
Bad debts expense — trade
Reversal of allowance for impairment on trade receivables
Currency alignment
Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in fixed deposits pledged
Increase in trade and other receivables, contract assets
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables, contract liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from related companies
Decrease in amounts due to a holding company
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Interest received
Tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of plant and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activity

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in amount due from holding company

Increase in amounts due to a holding company
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from related companies
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 12)

2018 2017
5 5
976,971 931,169
(32,249) -
38,425 29,106
(5,203) (3,848)
- 3
23,875 19,590
- 365
(17,925) (102,822)
(44,583) 24,321
939,311 897,884
(15) (16)
(333,187) (79,644)
(348,614) 706,448
350,548 (370,322)
(12,600) (88,080)
595,443 1,066,270
(3)
5,203 3,848
(33,934) (16,968)
566,712 1,053,147
(84,085) (38,431)
(834,085) (38,431)
(7,052) (3,687)
(3,793) 1,019
41,407 (18,097)
30,562 (20,765)
513,189 993,951
2,096,645 1,102,694
2,609,834 2,096,645

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements,
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199602109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a public company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Singapore.
The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding is R Systems International Limited, a company
incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited.

The registered office of the Company is located at 16 Jalan Kilang #04-01 Hoi Hup Building
Singapore 1594186,

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are those of providers of collaborative
Internet-based supply chain solutions and management services, customers technical and
administrative support services and information technology consultancy services. There have been
no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of comprehensive
income, the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRS’).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar (SGD or $) and all values are
rounded to the nearest one-dollar unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year
except in current financial year, the Group and the Company has adopted all applicable new
and revised FRS and INT FRS that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current
financial year. The adoption of these new and revised FRS and INT FRS did not result in any
changes to the Group and the Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on
the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.

The Group and the Company applied FRS 109 and FRS 115 for the first time. The nature and
effect of the changes as a result of the adopting of these new accounting standards are
described below:

FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 109 Financial Instruments replaces FRS 39 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all

three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement;
impairment; and hedge accounting.

=11 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E})

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

FRS 109 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement

Under FRS 109, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss, amortised cost, or fair value through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the
Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments® contractual
cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding,.

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial application,
1 January 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial assets that were not
derecognised before 1 January 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on
debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts
and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of FRS 109 did not have a significant
impact on the Group. The loans and receivable that are previously measured at amortised cost
will continue to be accounted for using amortised cost under FRS 109,

Impairment

The adoption of FRS 109 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for impairment
losses for financial assets by replacing FRS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach. FRS 109 requires the Group to recognise an
allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and
contract assets. FRS 109 requires the Group to record ECL on all debt securities, loans, trade
receivable and financial guarantee, either on a 12 months or lifetime basis. The Group has
applied the simplified approach and record lifetime ECL on all trade receivable. The change
in model] did not have a material impact to the financial statements on initial recognition.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRS 115 supersedes FRS 11 Construction Coniracts, FRS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with its customers. FRS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer.

FRS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract,

-~ 12 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109F)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
ERS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customters (continued)

Under FRS 115, revenue is recognised when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transfer to the customer.

The Group provides IT contract services and accordingly revenue is recognised to their
performance obligation when control over the comresponding service is transferred to the
customer. The timing of revenue recognition of each of these performance obligations when
provision for the relevant services are completed, are consistent with previous practice.

The Group has changed the presentation of certain amount in the balance sheet to reflect the
terminology in FRS 115:

*  Accrued revenue in other receivable from previous year were reclassified as part of
coniract assets.

=  Advance billing to customer arising from service contract from previous year were
reclassified as part of contract liabilities.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards that has been issued but not yet effective:
Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

FRS 116 Leases 1 January 2019

Improvements to FRSs (December 2016):
~ Amendment to FRS 28: Long—term interests in Associate
and Joint venture 1 January 2019

Improvements to FRSs (March 2017):

— Amendment to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2019
INT FRS 123: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of
the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of the Amendments to FRS is
described below.

- 13 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards issued bur not yet effective (continued)
FRS 116 Leases

FRS 116 requires lessees to recognise most leases on balance sheets. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low value’ assets and short-term leases.
FRS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Group plans to adopt FRS 116 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment to the opening retained eamings at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019,

On the adoption of FRS 116, the Group expects to choose, on a lease-by-lease basis, to
measure the right-of-use asset at either:

(i) its carrying amount as if FRS 116 had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019; or

(ii) an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before I January 2019,

In addition, the Group plans to elect the following practical expedients:

(1) not to reassess whether a contract is, or confains a lease at the date of initial application
and to apply FRS 116 to all contracts that were previously identified as leases;

(i1) to apply the exemption not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease liabilities to leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months as of 1 January 2019; or

(iii} to apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

The Group has performed a preliminary impact assessment based on cuirently available

information, and the assessment may be subject to changes arising from ongoing analysis
until the Group adopts FRS 116 in 2019.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of conselidation and business combination

(i)

(ii)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared
for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied
to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
resuits in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accountted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained,

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

- Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
Identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in profit or
loss.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No, 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation and business combinations {(continued)
(i1) Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling
interest in the acquiree (if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation, is recognised on
the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless ancther measurement basis is
required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. In
instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on
bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date,

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goedwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment [osses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to the Group’s cash generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units.

The cash-generating units to which goodwill have been allocated is tested for
impairment annuaily and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each cash-generating unit {or group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates.

(c) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to owners of the Company.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

w16 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No, 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements ~ 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.

@

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies
of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net
investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The
foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the
Group on disposal of the foreign operation.

Consolidated financial statements

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
into SGD at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interest and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that are foreign
operations, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(e) Plant and equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if,
and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Computer equipment - 3 years
Computer software - 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fitting - 5 years
Leasehold improvement - 5 years
Office equipment - 3 years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

For acquisition and disposals of plant and equipment, depreciation is provided in the month
of acquisition and no depreciation is provided in the month of disposal.

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual value, usefut life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

() Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee,

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment losses.

- 18 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments

)

Financial assets
Initial vecognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the entity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third party, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Investmenis in debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three
measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are:

= Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Financial assets measured at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair
value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses and interest calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset
is de-recognised.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

@

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Investments in debt instruments (continued)

»  Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Investments in equily instruments

On initial recognition of an investment in equity instrument that is not held for trading,
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCIL
Dividends from such investments are to be recognised in profit or loss when the right to
receive payments is established. For investments in equity instruments which the Group
has not elected to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, changes in fair value
are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the camrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurentent

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

()

Financial instruments (continued)
(i1) Financial Habilities (continued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(i} Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right
{o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee contracts. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and coniract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasenable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(W) Impairment of financial assets {continued)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(iii) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(v} the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

)

(k)

D

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial
asset, may be impaired. If any such an indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount,

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an
impairment loss in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case,
such impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Contract balances

Coniract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for

the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank, demand deposits and short-
term that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade pavables are normally settled on
30 to 60 days’ terms while other payables have an average term of six months,

- 23 -



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Government grant

()

(0)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with,

Government grant shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in profit or loss, either
separately or under a general heading such as “Other operating income”. Alternatively, they
are deducted in reporting the related expenses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee benefits

(i} Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assefs to pay all employce benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.

The defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related service is performed.

(1) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to

employees. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(@)

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownerships of the leased are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains conirol of the
good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time.
The amount of revehue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation,

(i) IT Professional services

The Group provides business IT implementation and integration services, and support
services under fixed-price and variable price contracts. Revenue from providing services
is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the estimated total man days service performed to be
provided because the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. This is
determined based on the actual man days service performed relative to the total expected
man days services.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or
costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise
to the revision become known by management,

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as the sale of hardware,
implementation supporting services. However, the implementation and support service
are simple and could be performed by another party. It is therefore accounted for as a
separate performance obligation. Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on the stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus margin. If confracts include the installation of
hardware, revenue for the hardware is recognised at a point in time when the hardware is
delivered, the legal title has passed and the customer has accepted the hardware.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(qQ) Revenue (continued)

(i) Other contract services

The Group also provides management services to the related companies and accounting
services under fixed-price contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment
schedule. If the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If
the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is recognised in the amount to which the
Group has a right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and
consideration is payable when invoiced.

(iit) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method)
unless collectability is in doubt.

(iv) Commission income

Commission income is recognised upon the completion of services performed and
acceptance by customers.

(t) Taxes

(1) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period,

Current income taxes are recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that tax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Taxes (continued)

(i) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax
arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(ii1) Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
(“GST™) except:

= Where the goods and services tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the goods and services tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable; and

= Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of goods and services tax
included.

The net amount of goods and services tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and the

Company if that person;

(i)  Has control or joint control over the Company;

(i)  Has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a

parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is refated to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions
applies:

(D
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

™)

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of exployees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Company;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

(i) Judgement made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

& Revenue from contracis with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination
of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

For the implementation and commissioning of IT services, revenue is recognised over
time based on the actual man days service preformed relative to the total estimated man
days to be performed. The estimated man days to be performed are based on coniracted
amounts and, in respect of amounts not contracted for, management relies on past
experience and knowledge of the project engineers to make estimates of the amounts to
be incurred. In making these estimates, management takes into consideration the
historical trends of the amounts incuwrred in its similar implementation and
commissioning IT services.

(i) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.

e Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for various customers segments
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed defauit rates

When calculating ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking

information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect
to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in Note 6 and Note 8 respectively.

Income tax

The Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is involved in determining the wide provision for income taxes. There are certain
transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final fax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 1996091 09E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

5.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2018 2017
$ $
Unquoted shares, at cost 2,019,896 819,896
Less: Impairment losses (1,718,451) (819,895)
301,445 1

Details of the subsidiary companies at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Proportion of

Name and Country of ownership
principal activities incorporation Cost of investments interest
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ % %
ECnet (M) Sdn Bhd *

(Provision of internet
electronic commerce and
online information services) Malaysia 1,407,460 207,460 100 100

ECnet Systems (Thailand)
Co. Ltd *

(Provision of internet

electronic commerce and

online information services) Thailand 90,000 90,000 100 100
ECnet (Shanghai) Co., Ltd *

(Provision of internet People’s

electronic commerce and Republic of

online information services) China 358,415 358,415 100 100

ECnet (Hong Kong) *
(Provision of internet
electronic commerce and

online information services) Hong Kong 1 1 100 100
ECnet Inc. +

(Provision of internet

electronic commerce and United States

online information services) of America 3,420 3,420 100 100

ECnet Kabushiki Kaisha +

{Provision of internet

electronic commerce and

online information services) Japan 160,600 160,600 100 100
2,019,896 819,896

* Audited by other firms
+ Not required to be audited by law in the respective countries of incorporation

During the financial year, the Company has subscribed additional 3,600,000 ordinary share in a
subsidiary ECnet (M} Sdn. Bhd for consideration of $1,200,000.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

6.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
8 $ 5 $

Trade receivables 1,255,581 1,216,787 578,844 637,442
Less: Allowance for

expected credit

losses (71,438) (193,254) (7,353) (18,391)

1,184,143 1,023,533 571,491 619,051

The average credit period on sale of goeds is 30 to 90 days (2017: 30 to 90 days). No interest is
charged on the trade receivables, Loss allowance for trade receivables has always been measured
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL}. The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past defauli experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against certain receivables over 180 days past
due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not
recoverable.

Receivables that are impaired

The table below shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach.

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
not credit credit
impaired impaired Total
collectively
assessed
$ $ 5
Group
Balance as at 1 January 2017 - 276,815 276,815
Allowance of expected credit loss - 19,590 19,590
Amount written off - (439} (439)
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement - (102,822) (102,822)
Foreign exchange gain or loss - 110 119
Balance as at 31 December 2017 — 193,254 193,254
Allowance of expected credit loss 1,244 22,631 23,875
Amount written off - {128,835) (128,835)
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement - (17,925) (17,925)

Foreign exchange gain or loss - 1,069 1,069
Balance as at 31 December 2018 1,244 70,194 71,438
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 Pecember 2018

6.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
not credit credit
impaired impaired Total
collectively
assessed
3 $ $
Company
Balance as at 1 Janmary 2017 - 26,116 26,116
Allowance of expected credit loss - 5,440 5,440
Amount written off - - -
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement - (13,251) (13,251)
Foreign exchange gain or loss ~ 86 86
Balance as at 31 December 2017 - 18,391 18,391
Allowance of expected credit loss 1,230 485 1,715
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement - (12,866) (12,866)

Foreign exchange gain or loss - 113 113
Balance as at 31 December 2018 1,230 6,123 7,353

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been
written off is subject to enforcement activities,

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from conftracts with customers
based on the Group’s provision matrix. As the historical credit loss experience does not show
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between the different customer
base.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

6. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables for individual customers as at 31 December 2018:

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
% $ ¥
Group
2018*
Current (not past due) 0.14 853,770 1,195 No
1 to 30 days past due 0.22 203,476 448 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.22 64,568 142 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.22 14,344 31 No
91 to 180 days past due 1.34 33,075 443 No
Past due more than 180 days 83.08 36,348 71,736 Yes
1,255,581 73,995
2017*
Current (not past due) 0.14 601,484 842 No
1 to 30 days past due 0.22 180,745 398 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.22 73,873 163 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.22 142,306 313 No
91 to 180 days past due 1.34 13,314 178 No
Past due more than 180 days 94.36 205,065 193,491 Yes
1,216,787 195,385
Company
2018*
Current (not past due) 0.14 434,258 608 No
1 to 30 days past due 0.22 62,575 138 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.22 51,997 114 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.22 535 1 No
91 to 180 days past due 1.24 13,929 186 No
Past due more than 180 days 40.55 15,550 6,306 Yes

578,844 7,353
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199602109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

6. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
% 3 $

Company (continued)

2017*

Current {not past due) 0.14 383,192 536 No

1 to 30 days past due 0.22 91,749 201 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.22 25,344 56 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.22 116,765 257 No
91 to 180 days past due 24.39 2,616 638 Yes
Past due more than 180 days 100.00 17,776 17,776 Yes

637,442 19,464

* In case of non collection the default rate is 100%.

The Group and the Company are not recognised the loss allowance that are no credit impaired
under collectively assessed of $2,557 and $Nil (2017: $2,131 and $1,073 respectively.

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ $
Chinese Renminbi 23,065 67,909 - -
Others 1,738 4322 (68) (62)
Malaysia Ringgit 444,528 240,464 - -
Singapore Dollar 516,752 500,973 516,752 500,974
Thai Baht 139,217 91,726 - -
United States Dollar 58,843 118,139 54,807 118,139
1,184,143 1,023,533 571,491 619,051
7. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances payment to
suppliers 17,186 52,168 17,186 52,168
Deposits 73,382 90,490 37,353 37,353
Prepayments 76,079 59,113 45,871 39,018
Tax receivables - 5,428 - -
Sundry receivables 88,422 32,772 4.850 7,127
255,069 239971 105,260 136,266
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 1996091 09E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

7.

10,

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ 3 A

Chinese Renminbi 9,978 6,910 - -
Others - 5,543 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 17,213 15,839 - -
Singapore Dollar 42,203 45,080 42,203 45,080
Thai Baht 90,777 53,719 - -
United States Dollar 1,633 1,599 — —

161,804 128,690 42,203 45,080
CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets primarily relate o the right to consideration for work completed but not yet billed
at reporting date for services rendered. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group invoices the customer.

Management always estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future
prospects of the Technology industry. None of the amounts due from customers at the end of the

reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the contract assets.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

The amounts due are denominated in Singapore dollar, non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free,

repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Amount due from
Trade - - 3,082,066 3,566,773
Less: Allowance for
impairment - - (2,066,633) (2,552,397)
- - 1,015,433 1,014,376
Non-trade - - 607,311 417,563
Less: Allowance for
impairment - — (464,168) (375,676)
- - 143,143 41 887
- - 1,158,576 1,056,263
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

10. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (continued)

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ 8
Amount due to
Trade - - - 39,047
Non-trade - - (18,872) (169,400}
- — (18,872) (130,353)

11,

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.

The movement in allowances accounts used to record the impairment as follows:

Balance at beginning of year - - 2,928,073 2,311,303
Reversal for the year - - {1,484,928) (217,908)
Charge to for the year - - 1,004,798 834,678
Foreign currency adjustment - — 82,858 -
Balance at end of the year - - 2,530,801 2,928,073

The amount due from/ (to) subsidiaries companies are denominated in the following currencies:

Malaysia Ringgit - - - (5,022)

Singapore Dollar - - 1,158,576 927,891

United States Dotlar — — (18,872) 3,041
- — 1,139,704 925,910

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to $830,854 (2017: $823,412) that is past due at the
end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of
their aging at the end of the reporting period is as follow:

Receivables past due but not

impaired:

Not more than 60 days - - 260,347 249278
More than 60 days - - 564,507 574,134
- - 830,854 823412

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
Trade 202,153 552,702 198,728 539,713
Non-trade 7,876 49,283 7.876 49,283
210,029 601,985 206,604 588,996

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg, No. 199609109E)

Naotes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

11.

12,

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

The amount due from related companies are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
¥ \) $ $
Malaysia Ringgit 3,425 12,989 - -
Singapore Dollar 195,702 588,996 195,702 588,996
United States Dollar 10,902 - 10,902 -
210,029 601,985 206,604 588,996
A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:
Non-cash
2017 Cash flows changes 2018
;) $ $ 8
Amounts due from related
comparnies 49,283 {41,407) - 7,876
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Cempany
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ $
Cash and bank balances 2,309,834 2,096,645 1,186,596 972,284
Short-term deposit 330,076 30,061 330,076 30,061
2,639,910 2,126,706 1,516,672 1,002,345
Less: Short-term deposit
pledged (30,076) (30,061) (30,076) {(30,061)
Cash and cash equivalents
as stated in cash flow 2,609,834 2,096,645 1,486,596 972,284

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term deposit
made for periods of 1 to 3 month (2017: 1 month) and earn interest respective short term deposit
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2018 were 0.05% to 0.92%

(2017: 0.05%) per annum.

The fixed deposits amounted $30,076 (2017: $30,061) were pledged to a bank for unutilised

banking facilities granted to the Company.
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
b $ b $

Chinese Renminbi 282,491 421374 - -
Others 94,468 157,089 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 526,360 428,279 — -
Singapore Dollar 763,289 871,775 763,289 871,775
Thai Baht 184,292 83,556 - -
United States Dollar 789,010 164,633 753,383 130,570

2,639,910 2,126,706 1,516,672 1,002,345

13. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payable are denominated in the following currencies:

Others 586 — - -
Malaysia Ringgit 46,056 14,804 - -
Singapore Dollar 28,105 80,336 28,105 80,336
Thai Baht - - - -
United States Dollar 17,546 88,846 11,685 83,106
92,293 183,986 39,790 163,442

14, OTHER PAYABLES

Current:
Accrued liabilities 84,839 105,471 27,955 75,672
Accrued salaries and related

cost 370,154 105,223 331,992 74,086
Advances receipts from

customers 6,099 - 6,099 -
Deferred grant 2,595 4 060 2,595 4060
GST payable 129,152 130,194 76,352 85,078
Provision for unutilised

leave 88,869 97,494 63,204 77,072

681,708 4472 442 508,197 325,968

Non-current:
Deferred grant 808 1,168 808 1,168
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

14.

150

16.

17,

OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Other payable are denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
8 $ ) $

Chinese Renminbi 4,125 6,194 - -
Others 8,319 8,370 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 108,836 66,486 - -
Singapore Dollar 436,299 244,837 436,299 244,836
Thai Baht 25,764 15,001 - -
United States Dollar 802 — - -

584,145 340,888 436,299 244,836
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities are relating to the advance billing to customer for the consultancy services to
be provided. The revenue relating to the consultancy services is recognised when services
rendered.
AMOUNTS DUE TO A HOLDING COMPANY
Trade 177,520 192,640 177,520 192,640
Non-trade 15,760 17,034 15,760 17,034

193,280 209,674 193,280 209,674
The amounts due are denominated in Singapore dollar, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon
demand and to be settled in cash.
DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets:

Difference in depreciation 101,641 99,444 101,641 99,444
Impairment loss on trade

receivables 145,776 - - -
Unrealised gain on forex

exchange (5,204) - - -
Capital allowances carry

forward 890,181 1,005,013 886,837 994,713
Tax losses carry-forward 5,252,690 5,311,731 4,396,302 4,468,060
Total deferred tax assets 6,365,084 6,416,188 5,384,780 5,562,217
Deferred tax assets on

temporary differences not

recognised (6,385,084) (6,416,188) (5,384,780) (5,562,217)
Balance - - - —
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199602109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

17.

18.

19,

20.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Unrecognised tax losses

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised capital allowances and tax losses
carry forward amounting to $31,077,000 (2017: $32,991,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses and capital allowance arose, for
which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to uncertainty of its recoverability. The use of these
tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions
of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the companies operate,

The realisation of these future income tax benefits will only be obtained if the Group derives
future taxable income of a nature and of sufficient amount to enable the tax benefits to be realised
and the Group continues to comply with the conditions imposed by the law.

SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2018 2017
Number Number
of shares ¥ of shares ]
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares 92,103,530 86,549,523 92,103,530 86,549,523

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares have no par value cary one vote per share without restriction.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are
different from that of the presentation currency.

REVENUE
Group
2018 2017
3 $

Type of goods and services:
Professional services 4,234,119 3,663,323
Commission income 585,333 756,574
Consultant service income 4,835,595 2,744,335
Accounting services income 106,917 113,984
Sales of goods 515,424 515,550
Supply chain management subscriptions income 1,563,503 1,654,756
Supply chain installation services 5,834 1,766

11,846,725 9,450,288
Timing of revenue recognition.
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,106,591 1,273,891
Services transferred over time 10,740,134 8,176,397

11,846,725 9,450,288
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ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Interest income from current accounts
Government grants — PIC cash payout
— Wage credit scheme

— Temporary employment credit

— Specizl ernployment credit
- Others

Management services

Others

22. OTHER (CREDITSYCHARGES
Allowance on expected credit losses

Bad debt expenses — trade
Payable written back

Reversal of allowance on impairment receivables — trade

Foreign exchange adjustment, (gain)/loss

23. FINANCE COST

Other interest

24. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

Consultation and professional fee
Rental expenses

Repair and maintenance

Staff welfare

Telecommunication

Travelling and transportation

- 44 -

Group
2018 2017
$ 3
5,203 3,848
10,032 17,883
1,963 1,155
3,193 8,514
222 -
2,526 1,482
456,000 463,735
7,759 4,918
486,898 501,535
23,875 19,590
- 365
(32,249) -
(17,925) (102,822)
(112,406) (51,135)
(138,705) {134,002)
- 3
1,876,736 179,205
273,261 328,526
95,910 33,647
79,004 79,563
68,229 63,129
342,206 302,097




ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

25,

26.

27.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(i) Mujor components of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 are:

Group
2018 2017

$ $
Statement of comprehensive income:
Current tax 4,676 4,995
Tax overprovided in prior year (3,742) (3,446)
Foreign tax paid 35,222 10,058

36,156 11,607

(i) Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiptied by
the applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Profit before tax 976,971 931,169
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profit in the country
where the Group operates 148,817 54,803
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in
determining taxable profit 28,693 36,068
Tax overprovided in prior year (3,742) (3,446)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised (172,834) (85,876)
Foreign tax paid 35222 10,058
Total tax expense 36,156 11,607
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Salaries, bonuses and others 7,893,413 3,722,524
Contribution to defined contribution plan 410,140 211,554
8,303,553 4,034,078

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered into commercial leases mainly on office premise, These leases have an
average life of between 2 and S years with no renewal option or contingent rent provision included
in the contracts. There are no restriction placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.
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27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

28.

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable leases as at 31 December are as
follows:

Group
2018 2017
b $
Within one vear 244,730 295,216
From two to five years 133,540 232,444
378,270 527,660

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 amounied to $273,011 (2017: $354,494).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
In addition to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions between the Group and Company and related parties that took

place at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

(i) Significant related party transactions

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 5 3 5

Holding company
R System International

Limited
Sub-contract expenses 1,066,898 699,160 1,066,898 699,160
Related companies
Revenue 2,010,655 1,383,298 1,906,333 1,407,298
Professional fee 456,000 470,438 456,000 470,438
Sub-contract expenses 158,779 - 158,779 —
Subsidiary
Impairment of

receivables - - 1,004,798 834,678
Reversal of impairment - - 1,484,923 217,907

Services income

The Company provided services, and recharged certain expenses based on specific
identification to some of its subsidiaries. The total value recharged to these related parties
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is $485,823 (2017: $703,189).
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(1) Significant related party transactions (continued)

Management fee received

The Company outsourced information technology and general administration services, which
includes customer services and accounting support, to some of its subsidiaries. The cost of
these services were supplied amounted $558,212 (2017: $461,212).

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Group are those persons having the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities, directly or indirectly, of
the Group. The directors of the Group and the general management of the Group are
considered as key management personnel of the Group.

Group
2018 2017
$ $
Directors’ remuneration — Company 363,480 335,758
Directors’ remuneration — Subsidiaries 135,124 144,983

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group and the Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use
of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seck to, where appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Group. The Group does not have any written financial risk
management policies and guidelines and there has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure to the financial risks
associated with financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its cbligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(1) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from trade and other debtors. Guidelines on credit terms provided to trade customers are
established and continually monitored. For other financial assets including cash and short-
term deposits, the Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with reputable and
well-established local and foreign banks, and companies with high credit ratings and no
history of defaults.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposures. Credit policies with guidelines on credit terms and
limits set the basis for risk control. New customers are subject to credit evaluation while the
Group continues to monitor existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. In
addition, appropriate allowances are made for probable losses when necessary for identified
debtors.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed and maintain the credit risk
gradings to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Group uses
publicly available financial information and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major
customers and other debtors. The Group exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising

Category Description expected credit losses (ECL)
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default | 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts.
Doubtful Amount is >30 days past due or there has | Lifetime ECL — not credit-
been a significant increase in credit risk impaired

since initial recognition.

In default Amount is >90 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL — credit-
evidence indicating the asset is credit- impaired
impaired.

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
has no realistic prospect of recovery.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well as maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

External  Internal Gross Net
credit credit 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note  rating rating lifetime ECL. amount  allowance  amount
b b b3
Group
2018
Trade receivables 7 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL. 1,255,581 (71,438) 1,184,143
(simplified
approach)
Other receivables $ N.A. Performing 12m ECL 161,804 - 161,804
Contact assets 9 N.A (a) Lifetime ECL 503,310 - 503,310
(simplified
approach)
(71,438)
2017
Trade receivables 7 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 1,216,787 (193,254 1,023,533
{simplified
approach)
Other receivables ] N.A. Performing 12m ECL 91,885 - 91,885
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 351,782 - 351,782
{simplified
approach)
(193,254)
Company
2018
Trade receivables 7 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 578,844 {7,353) 571,491
{simplified
approach)
Other veceivables 8 N.A, Performing 12m ECL 42,203 — 42302
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a} Lifetime ECL 48,006 - 48,006
{simplified
approach)
{7,353)
2017
Trade receivables 7 N.A. {(a} Lifetime ECL 637,442 {18,391 619,051
{simplified
approach)
Other receivables 8 N.A. Performing 12m ECL 45,080 - 45,080
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a} Lifetime ECL 152,634 - 152,634
{simplified
approach)
{18,391)

- 49 .



ECnet Limited and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 199609109E)

Notes to the Financial Statements ~ 31 December 2018

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(1)

(if)

Credit risk (continued)

(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in FRS 109 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these iterns by using a provision matrix, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as
appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.
Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due
status in terms of the provision matrix (Note 6).

Exposure to credit visk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance
sheet. No ather financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk concentration profile

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk due
to the Group’s many varied customers.

It is the Group’s policy to sell to a diversity of creditworthy customers so as to reduce
concentration of credit risk.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign
currencies.

The Group operates and sells their products in several countries other than Singapore and
transacts in foreign currencies. As a result, the Group is exposed to movements in foreign
currency exchange rates arising from normal trading transactions, primarily with respect to
United States Dollar (USD), Chinese Renminbi (RMB) and Malaysia Ringgit (RM).

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD,

RMB and RM, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and
equity.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(it) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Profit before tax
2018 2017
$ b

USD

- strengthened 2% (2017: 8%) 16,841 15,579
— weakened 2% (2017: 8%) (16,841) (15,579
RMB

— strengthened 3% (2017: 1%) 9,043 4,900
— weakened 3% (2017: 1%) (9,043) (4,900)
RM

— strengthened 1% (2017: 2%) 11,239 12,066
— weakened 1% (2017: 2%) (11,239) (12,066)

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to their
interest-bearing debt obligations. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a
mix of fixed and variable rate debts as well as by rolling over its borrowings on a short-term
basis.

The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect of interest
rate risk exposure is considered not significant.

(iv) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of standby
credit facilities.

The Group’s liquidity risk management policy is to monitor its working capital projections,
taking into account the available banking and other borrowings facilities of the Group, and
ensuring that the Group has adequate working capital to meet obligations and commitments
due,

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period
based on contractual undiscounted payments are due within one year.
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30. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial instrument recorded at the end of
the reporting period by FRS 109 categories.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
i $ 5 3
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,184,143 1,023,533 571,491 619,051
Other receivables 161,804 128,690 42,203 45,080
Contract assets 503,310 351,782 48,006 152,634
Amounts due from holding
company 12,564 5,512 12,564 5,512
Amounts due from
subsidiary companies - 1,158,576 1,056,263
Amounts due from related
companies 210,029 601,985 206,604 588,996
Cash and cash equivalents 2,639,910 2,126,706 1,516,672 1,002,345
4,711,760 4,238,208 3,556,116 3,469,881
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
Trade payables 92,293 183,986 39,790 163,442
Other payables 454,993 210,694 359,047 149,758
Contract liabilities 197,826 725,902 189,701 700,126
Amounts due to a holding
company 193,280 209,674 193,280 209,674
Amounts due to subsidiary
companies - - 18,872 130,333
038,392 1,330,256 801,590 1,353,353

31. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market pariicipants at the measurement
date.

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent
on the valuation inputs used as follows:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date,

— Level 2 — Inputs other that quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

— Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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31.

32,

33.

34,

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has no financial instruments that are carried at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Current trade and other receivables and payables (including amounis due from/(to) related
companies), cash and cash equivalents, and accrued operating expenses.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of
fair values, either due to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that
are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value.
In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may issue new shares,
funding from holding company or obtain new borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged for 2018 and it is not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors its cash flow, debt maturity profile and overall liquidity position on a
continuous basis.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY FOR FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Company has undertaken to provide financial support to one of its subsidiaries to enable it to
operate as a going concern and to meet its obligations for a period of not less than twelve months
from the date of the directors’ statement.

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 January 2019,
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2017: €nil).

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page 5.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There are no significant events since the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS
The directors set out in the table below have held office during the whole of this year from 1 January 2018
to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

R M Rusu
S S Rekhi

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The objective of the group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit ratings and
capital ratios. This will ensure that the business is correctly supported and shareholder value is maximised.

Details of risk management policies used by the group can be found in note 13 to the financial statements.

POLICY AND PRACTICE ON PAYMENT OF CREDITORS
The group’s policy is to settle supplier accounts within 30 days of the invoice date.

GOING CONCERN

The Company and the Group’s business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future
development and its financial position, are described in the Strategic Report on page 5, along with its
financial risk management policy and details of its exposure to risk.

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP was appointed independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2018 and in accordance
with section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 have expressed their willingness to continue in office as
auditor.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

Each person who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirm that so far as the Director is
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the
Directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of
that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 8418 of the
Companies Act 2006. '

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

As permitted by the Articles of Association, each of the Directors has the benefit of an indemnity, which is
a qualifying third-party indemnity as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity
was in force throughout the tenure of each Director during the last financial year, and is currently in force.
The Company also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Approved by the board on ... il oG Dl T
and signed on its behalf by

Fand #mcpz,] 20lg
- _

R M Rusu
Director
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The purpose of the strategic report is to inform members of the company and help them assess how the
directors have performed their duty under s172 (duty to promote success of the company).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group’s principal activity continues to be providers of real time communication software solutions and
associated services. The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in
the Group’s principal activities in the next year.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The results for the year are set out on page 11. The following financial analysis includes an exceptional
item of circa €784k included in administration expenses relating to the reversal of a prior year provision as
set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

The Group has seen an increase in turnover in 2018 of 6.9%, and due to projects at improved margins the
gross profit margin percentage has increased from 17.9% to 32%. The increase in turnover and the gross
profit margin percentage improvement has resulted in a return to profitability of €1.1m and a net profit
before tax percentage of 8.8% compared to a loss in 2017 of nearly €1.4m. The return to profitability was
achieved by maintaining an administration expenses percentage of 29%. Although trading conditions
remain difficult in a highly competitive market the directors are confident of continued profitability. The
directors believe adequate finance is available to take advantage of business opportunities and consider, in
the current economic climate, the state of affairs to be satisfactory.

The Group operates geographically through subsidiaries in Romania, Poland, Moldova, Malaysia and
Philippines. During the year the USA subsidiary was dissolved, due to other USA presence within the
parent R Systems group, and a subsidiary was established in Switzerland although no trading activity had
commenced by the year end. The Polish subsidiary incurred a loss of €977k in 2017 which specifically
related to provisions on projects with a particular customer, however this was carefully controlled resulting
in a return to profitability in 2018. The Romanian subsidiary had a successful 2017 due to obtaining a
substantial new client and increasing turnover to 3" parties over the past three years from €500k, (2016),
to €2m, (2017) and to nearly €3m in 2018. The Philippine subsidiary currently operates at low levels in
respect of providing services to customers outside the group but continue to support the UK parent whereas
the subsidiaries in Moldova and Malaysia currently only provide support to the UK parent.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk management is integrated into the process of planning and performance measurement and involves
management of R Systems International Limited, the parent company. The principal risks identified
including currency, market, credit and liquidity are disclosed in Note 13.

The terms and impact of the UK’s proposed departure from the European Union (“Brexit”) remains
uncertain and hard to predict. However, the company has considered the potential impact on the business
and analyzed the “worst case” scenario of a hard/no deal Brexit and in such case the company believes that
the impact will not be significant due to the fact that very few of the Group’s economic activities are carried
out in the UK. For the software services delivered by the group subsidiaries (Poland, Romania, Moldova)
to UK, the fiscal treatment is likely to remain unchanged. Some changes might apply to taxes related to
payments of dividends from subsidiaries (Romania and Poland) to the UK.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Directors consider that the forthcoming financial year will still be another year of difficult trading
conditions with increased competition and tighter margins. There are good prospects and their aim is to
continue to implement the management policies which have been introduced in recent years and which
have assisted in successfully overcoming the difficulties and uncertainties in the market place.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Directors moitor the group’s performance by reviewing revenue and profit on project by project and
overall country basis. The revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out on page 1L,
The directors monitor the current order book and potential pipeline to plan for the future resource
requirements of the Group.

¥ 7o bhu 046/ 2619

Approved by the board on ... olinoiion MRl . and signed on its behalf by

....................................................

R M Rusu
Director
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

. properly select and apply accounting policies;

° present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

° provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are

insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance; and
° make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 |

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
In our opinion:
» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;
o the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;
»  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Computaris International Limited (the ‘parent company’) and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) which comprise:
e the consolidated income statement;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;
the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position;
the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated and parent company statement of cash flows; and
the related notes 1 to 24. '

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
o the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

, statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
¢ the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
o the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the
Strategic report and the Directors’ report. '

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, -in our
opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Peter McDermott, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

7 February 2019
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED |
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €

Revenue 3 12,893,851 12,057,214
Cost of sales (8,761,759)  (9.901,425)
GROSS PROFIT 4,132,092 2,155,789
Other operating income ' 20,995 1,103
Administrative expenses (3,021,690) (3,535,514)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 4 1,131,397 (1,378,622)
Income from investments 7 990 | 946
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 1,132,387 (1,377,676)
Income tax expense - 8 (196,854) (72,515)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 935,533 (1,450,191)

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 935,533 (1,450,191)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 70,791 (110,096)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD,
NET OF INCOME TAX - 70,791 (110,096)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 1,006,324 (1,560,287)

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.

Page 12



¢l abed

“Sjuawale}s [ejoueuy asay) o ued wioj o5 03 6} sabed uo sajou ay L

vLE889'E 0vS E6Y'T L8OY61°1 LyL .. LT0T 12quIad3(J [ € e sdue[eq
(L8T095°T) (019°¢Ts D (LL99E) = 189A 31} 10J SSO] POSTUS0001 [BI0,
(161°0S¥°1) (161°05¥°1) B - ; IeaA 1)) 10J SSO]
(960°011) (61¥°€L) (LL99¢E) - Aymbo w1 Apyoarrp pasrudooal deak oy} 10J SSO [BIO],
- (611°€L) 61¥°EL : ) s3urures paurejar (WOy)/03 JoJsuel],
(960°011) c (960°011) 2 SO0URIRJJIP UOHE[SUEI} AousLny)
199°8¥T°S 0SI°L10% POLOET'] L¥L L10T Arenuef | je souejeq
3 3 3 3
Aymba fer01, SSUILIBD PIuIe)ay SIAIISAI JIYIQ 1ended aaeys Auedwod 3y Jo sxapjoy £mba 03 Ijqenquny
panss| _
869769t 612960 TELL6S L¥L 8107 12quiada( [ £ & aoue[ey
¥Z€°900°1 6L9°209°1 TEL'L6S - . Tea4 a1} 10 SSO] PASTUG00aI [EI0],
£€5°5€6 €€5°5€6 B G IeaA 9y} 10J HJOI
[6L°0L 9%1°L99 TELL6S " Ajnbe ur Apoanp pastu8ooal JesA oy 10J Jyoid [ejo ],
" 9¥1°L99 (91°L99) - sSuruIes pourejol 0)/(Woy) JoJSuRI]
16L°0L - 16L°0L . . SOOUSISJJIP UOTIB[SURI} AOUSLIN))
¥L€°889°¢C 0vS°E6¥°T L80F61T LYL $107 Arenuef [ je aduefeyq
3 2 3 3
Lmba o, SSUIWIEa pPaule)ay SIAIISAI IO ended aaeys Auedwod 2wy jo saapjoy {unbs 03 syqeInquny
ponssy

8102 ¥39IN3030 L€ A3AN3 ¥V3IA FHL 404
ALIND3 NI SIONVHO 40 LN3N31VLS ad31valmosSNOD

. @3L1INIT TVNOILVNY¥ILNI SRIVLINdINOD



vl abed

*SjuawWaje)s jeloueuly asayj jo Jed uuoj g 03 g sabed uo sajou ay |

61L°586°C 708786°C
(g61°1EL) (e61°1€L)
(g61°1€L) (e61°1€L)
ZI69IL'E  L66°SIL'E
3 3
Amba [ejo], S3UINIBY paure)ay
90£°L96°C 16£996°C
(€1¥°81) (€1¥°81)
(c1t'81) (€1+°81)
61L°586°C $08°v86°T
3 3
~Hmbs oy, sdurmaes pauie)ay

891

891

3
SOAIISAL IO

[

89

891

3

S2AIASAL YO

[euded aueys
ponss|

reyded saeys
panssy i

L10T 1oquiada(] [ € 1k aoue[eq
Teak 2y} J0J $SO] pasiuS02al 810,

JedA 91} 0] SSOT
L10T Axenuey | Je aoue[eg

Kaeduarod ayy yo siapjoy Aymba 03 sjqeINqLIY Y

810T 19qUIRd9(J | £ I8 doue[eg
JeaA oUf) 10J SSO| PasIu500al [BJ0 ],

Ieak ayj 10J SSOT
810T Arenuef T 1e ooue[eq

Auedurod 3y} jo s1apjoy £3mmba 03 syqeInquyy

8102 ¥39IN3030 L€ d3AN3 J¥V3A FHL ¥04
ALINO3 NI SIONVHO 40 LNJINILVYLS ANVdINOD

d3LINIT TVNOILVNY¥ILNI SIHV.LINdINOD



COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

behalf by

Company registration number; 06000234

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 10 325,610 270,748
Intangible assets 11 38,112 148,125
Deferred tax assets 21 - 73,533
363,722 492,406
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 15 13,155 10,351
Tax recoverables . 31,418 62,518
Trade and other receivables 16 4,187,539 3,800,170
Prepayments 17 159,005 83,912
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,807,599 2,428,020
6,198,716 6,384,971
TOTAL ASSETS 6,562,438 6,877,377
EQUITY
ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued share capital 19 747 747
Other Reserves 20 597,732 1,194,087
Retained profits 4,096,219 2,493,540
~ TOTAL EQUITY 4,694,698 3,688,374
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax 21 3,142 3,353
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defetred income 465,333 670,260
Tax payables 139,741 70,285
Trade and other payables’ 22 _ lr,2-59_,524 2,445,105,
1,864,508 3,185,650
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,562,438 6,877,377
e
Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on + f ﬁé ;U“ C‘E% ..... 1" : { 7 and signed on its



COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 20138

Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
; € €
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 10 - -
Intangible Assets 11 2 111,042
[nvestments 12 222,937 205,928
222,937 316,970
CURRENT ASSETS
Tax recoverables - 44,996
Trade and other receivables 16 3,520,277 2,788,630
Prepayments 17 110,717 47,245
Cash and cash equivalents 18 941,414 ].,_{}4_5_,521
4,572,408 3,926,392
TOTAL ASSETS 4,795,345 4243362
EQUITY
ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES '
Issued share capital 19 747 747
Other Reserves . 20 168 168
Retained profits : : 2,966,391 2,984,804
TOTAL EQUITY 2,967,306 2,985,719
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income 368,143 465,967
Tax payables - -
Trade and other payables 22 1,459,896 791,676
1,828,039 1,257,643
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES : 4,795,345 4,243,362

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 of €18,413 (2017: loss of
€731,193)

Approved by the Board and authorised for issued on ... of i L e b
on its behalf by '

hosserinane - and signed

M Rusu, Dm:ct

Company reg__lstratlon number: 06000234

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) for the year
-ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO PROFIT FROM
OPERATIONS
Interest income

NON-CASH ADJUSTMENTS
Depreciation
Amortisation of other intangible non-current assets
Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Recognition of deferred tax asset/liability (net)

CASH FLOWS BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

INCREASE IN WORKING CAPITAL
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments
Decrease in trade and other payables
Decrease in deferred income
(Decrease)/Increase in accruals
Increase in tax payable

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Income taxes paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment
Payments to acquire intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Interest received, classified as investing

NET CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January
Net foreign exchange difference

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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31.12.2018
€

935,533

(990)
934,543

178,070
189,682

(2,897)
77,572

442,427
1,376,970

(2,804)
(370,191)
(75,093)
(816,534)
(204,927)
(385,343)
119,282

(1,735,610)

(358,640)
(19,609)

(378,249)

(241,670)

(79,498)
14,323
990

(305,855)

(684,104)

2,428,020
63,683

1,807,599

31.12.2017
€

(1,450,191)

(946)
(1,451,137)

182,767

244,773
(1,980)

(35,591)

389,969

(1,061,168)

1,549
742,221
32,016

(265,178)

(254,649)
345,295
69,350

670,604

(390,564)
(139,635)

(530,199)

(237.819)

(57,855)
2,513
639

(292,522)

(822,721)

3,363,276
(112,535)

2,428,020




COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total operating Loss
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO PROFIT FROM
OPERATIONS
Interest income
Dividend income

NON-CASH ADJUSTMENTS
Depreciation
Amortisation of other intangible non-current assets

CASH FLOWS BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

INCREASE IN WORKING CAPITAL
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
Decrease in deferred income
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals
Decrease in tax payable

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS
Income taxes received/(paid)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received, classified as investing
Increase in investment in subsidiaries
Disposal of investment in subsidiary
Dividend received

NET CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER

The notes on pages 19 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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31.12.2018
€

(18,413)

(4,954)
(103,215)

(126,582)

111,042
111,042
(15,540)

(731,647)
(63,472)
357,979
(97,824)
310,241

(224,723)

(240,263)
44,996

(195,267)

4,954

(17,087)
78

103,215

91,160

(104,107)

1,045,521

941,414

31.12.2017
€

(731,193)

(307)

(731,500)
451
167,184
167,635

(563,865)

672,294
18,683
(703,164)
(367,473)
(47,851)
(44,718)

(472,229)

(1,036,094)
(48,778)

(1,084,872)

(1,084,872)

2,130,393

1,045,521




COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS

Computaris International Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United
Kingdom under the companies Act 2006 and registered in England & Wales.

The address of the registered office is 11 Queens Road, Brentwood, Essex, CM14 4HE United
Kingdom.

Basis of preparation

The group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The group’s financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
The principal accounting policies adopted by the group are set out in note 2.

Going concern

The group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance, show that the group should be able to operate within the level of its current cash
reserves and as such have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The results of operations of subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidated financial
statements as from the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control of the acquired
subsidiary is effectively transferred to the buyer. The results of operations of subsidiary undertakings
disposed of are included in the consolidated income statement until the date of disposal which is the
date on which the parent ceases to have control of the subsidiary undertaking. Intragroup balances
and intragroup transactions and resulting unrealised profits are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses
resulting from intragroup transactions are also eliminated unless cost can be recovered.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether the price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement purposes in these financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

20

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition :
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

- Client software solution
- Maintenance and support

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Client software solution .

The Group undertakes the provision and installation of various real time software products in the
communication industry. These are contracted on a fixed-price or time and material based contracts.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time since they are bespoke
to customer’s requirements. The services cannot be separated into distinct performance obligations.
Revenue for time and material based contract is recognised based on time incurred for providing the
services. Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised for these services based on the stage of
completion of the contract, using the input method. The directors have assessed that the stage of
completion determined as the proportion of the total time expected to provide the product that has
elapsed at the end of the reporting period is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under IFRS 15.

Maintenance and support
Maintenance and support revenue is made up of fixed payments of certain levels for support made

_available for customers. This is normally a single performance obligation which is consumed by

customer as it is provided. The maintenance and support revenue is therefore generally recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the contract.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Interest expense recognition :
Expense is recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest method, to the net carrying
amount of the financial liability.

Foreign currency exchange

The group’s financial statements are prepared in Euros which is also the parent company’s functional
currency. The exchange rate used in retranslating Pounds Sterling and American Dollar assets and
liabilities at the financial position date was 0.898 (2017 — 0.889) and 1.144 (2017 - 1.20)
respectively.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the group are recorded at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of financial position date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency exchange (continued)

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period, except for
exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where the changes in fair value
are recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the group's overseas operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the group's translation
reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which
the operation is disposed of.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss except for items that are recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
-income.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in respect of temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences
reverse, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. '

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of
unused tax assets and unused tax’losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or production cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, on the following basis:

Leasehold property improvements 1 - 6 years
_Pr()perty, Plant and equipment 2 -5 years
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets
Non-internally generated intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are capitalised at cost.

The carrying value of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis for events or
changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets are stated at cost or fair value on recognition less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment in value.

Amortisation is calculated so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Software, licences etc; 1 -3 years
Intellectual Property 3 years
Customer Contract Over the period of vespectwe customer contract

Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement in equal annual amounts
over the period of the leases.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs comprise direct materials, and where applicable, purchase cost, cost of direct material and
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity but
excluding borrowing costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition and are determined on a first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statément of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss. '

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee

contracts issued by the Group, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set
out below.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
(ii) held-for-trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and

of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of tax effects.

Legal and statutory reserve

The legal and statutory reserves are classified as equity. The legal and regulatory reserves are created
and adjusted based on profit by transfer from retained earnings according to the local applicable laws
and statutory regulations in the subsidiary jurisdictions.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and accrued
income. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and accrued income. The expected
credit losses: on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, -the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

(ii) Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 120 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
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2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
‘to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Critical accounting judgmelits and key sources estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences, management expertise and
other contributing factors, the results which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities that may not be readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. :

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Anticipated cost to complete revenue-generating projects

Project profitability is estimated at a project’s inception based on the agreed contractual value and
budgeted total costs. Profitability is then reviewed and reassessed on a regular basis by management,
with adjustments made to budgeted costs if necessary. Amendments to estimated costs to complete
a project can impact the amount of profit recognised in a given period.

Variations from contracted revenue is only recognised when it is probable that the revenue variation
will be certified by the client and approved and the amount that will be approved can be measured
reliably.

Critical accounting judgments
There are no judgments that have significant llSk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and
the related consequential amendments to other [FRS Standards that are effective for an annual period
that begins on or after 1 January 2018. The transition prov1smns of IFRS 9 allow an entlty not to
restate comparatives. The Group has elected not to restate comparatives in respect of the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. Additionally, the Group adopted
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that were applied to the
disclosures for 2018 and to the comparative period.

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for:

1) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities;
2) Impairment of financial assets; and

3) General hedge accounting.

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are described below.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year (continued)
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has assessed its existing financial
assets and financial liabilities in terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments that continue to be recognised as at
1 January 2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to
be recognised as at 1 January 2018 have not been restated.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

e debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost;

e debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and _

e all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset:

e the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination in other comprehensive income; and

e the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

In the current year, the Group has not designated any debt investments that meet the amortised cost
or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
subsequently transferred to retained earnings. Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

Page 27
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year (continued)
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FYTOCI are subject to
impairment.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires the
Group to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:
(1) Debt investments measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,

(2) Lease receivables;

(3) Trade receivables and contract assets; and

(4) Financial guarantee contracts to which the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply.

" In particular, IFRS 9 requires the Group to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at

an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument is a
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased’ significantly since initial
recognition (except for a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset), the Group is
required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-months
ECL. IFRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables in certain circumstances.

For the purpose of assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

~ recognition of financial instruments that remain recognised on the date of initial application of IFRS

9 (i.e. 1 January 2018), the directors have compared the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments on the date of their initial recognition to their credit risk as at 1 January 2017.

The application of the IFRS 9 impairment requirements has not resulted in additional loss allowance
to be recognised in year ended 31 December 2018 as the impact is not material.

(c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
A significant change introduced by IFRS 9 in the classification and measurement of financial

~ liabilities relates to the accounting for changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as

at FVTPL attributable to changes in the credit risk of the issuer.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year (continued)
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires that the changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability be presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, but
are instead transferred to retained earnings when the financial liability is derecognised.

Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial liabilities as there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

(d) General hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about the Group’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

The application of the IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements has had no other impact on the results
and financial position of the Group for the current and/or prior years as there are no hedge accounting
within the Group.

(e) Disclosures in relation to the initial application of IFRS 9 .

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Group had preVIOuSIy demgnated as
at FVTPL under IAS 39 that were subject to reclassification or which the Group has elected to
reclassify upon the application of IFRS 9. There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which
the Group has elected to designate as at FVTPL at the date of initial application of IFRS 9.

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the consolidated cash flows of the Group.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year (continued)
Impact of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended in April 2016) which is effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January
2018. [FRS 15 introduced a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Details of the new requirements as well
as their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements are described below.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 in accordance with the fully retrospective transitional approach
without using the practical expedients for completed contracts in IFRS 15:C5(a), and (b), or for
modified contracts in IFRS 15:C5(c) but using the expedient in IFRS 15:C5(d) allowing both
non-disclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations, and an explanation of when it expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all
reporting periods presented before the date of initial application, i.e. 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset” and ‘contract liability’ to describe what might more
commonly be known as ‘accrued revenue’ and ‘deferred revenue’, however the Standard does not
prohibit an entity from using alternative descriptions in the statement of financial position. The Group
has not adopted the terminology used in IFRS 15 to describe such balances.

The Group’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in note 2 below. Apart
from providing more extensive disclosures for the Group’s revenue transactions, the application of
[FRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/or financial performance of
the Group.

New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective
IFRS 16 Leases

On 13 January 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS
16, Leases. IFRS 16 will replace the existing leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related
Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. IFRS 16 introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating
lease expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. The Standard also contains
enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17. The effective date for adoption of IFRS 16 is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, though early adoption is permitted for companies applying
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Group is currently evaluating the
requirements of IFRS 16 and the impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRS that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Annual Tmprovements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle = 17 2019
amending IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23, e
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit
(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under
IAS 12. It specifically considers:

e Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;

e Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;

e The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to 1 January 2019
prepayment features with negative compensation. This amends

the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights

in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on

the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive

income) even in the case of negative compensation payments.

IFRS 16 Leases ? 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure,
present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less
or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to
classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach

to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor,
IAS 17.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts : 1 January 2021

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current
fulfilment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These
requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent,
principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17
supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of 1 January 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and Effective date deferred
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) indefinitely

relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from :

and investor to its associate or joint venture.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the Group’s financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments should have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company in the year of initial application.

3. REVENUE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €

Rendering of services 12,893,851 12,057,214

The group derives revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services over
time in the following major mcome streams.

Maintenance and support 3,770,245 3,736,741
Client software solution 9,123,606 8,320,473

12,893,851 12,057,214

4. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Operating profit is stated after chérging/{crediting) the following:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 178,071 182,767
Amortisation of intangible assets . 189,682 244,773
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (2,897) (1,980)
Operating leases — Land and buildings . 555,584 500,289
Reversal of contract penalty provision (see below) (784,321) ' -
Net foreign cﬁ_urrency differences 31,764 135,313
Included in cost of sales: 5. b j ;

Employee benefits expense , 5,730,773 5,685,996
Included in administrative expenses:

Employee benefits expense 1,492,378 1,287,396
Depreciation and amortisation 367,752 427,540
Net foreign currency exchange 31,764 135,313
Reversal of contract penalty provision (see below) (784,321) -

1,107,573 1,850,249

Reversal of contract penalty provision

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company received a claim for a penalty from one of its
customers and recorded a provision of €784,321 in respect of this claim. The Company had
subcontracted a certain part of its scope of services to one of its vendors and on the basis of the
contractual terms, has claimed an equivalent amount from the vendor. However, pending acceptance
of the claim, the recoverable amount claimed from the vendor had not been recorded in previous
financial statements and due to being time barred has now been removed without effect on the financial
statements. The provision in respect of the penalty claim received from the customer has also been
reversed in the year to 31 December 2018 due to it being time—barred. This result in a credit of €784,321
has been included in administration expenses where the claim was originally expensed.
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OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (continued)

Auditor’s remuneration
Company

Audit of Financial Statements
Audit related services

" Non-audit services

Subsidiaries

Audit of Financial Statements
Audit related services
Non-audit services

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES

Wages and salaries
Other employee benefits
Social security costs

The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows:

Administration and management

Production

’

Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for directors included in staff costs above comprised:

Receivable from subsidiaries:
Short-term employee benefits

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Receivable from subsidiaries:

Short-term employee benefits

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

Interest earned on loans and deposits
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18,636 10,170
20,563 14,926
6,892 -
46,091 25,096
9,000 16,012
27,661 22,265
= 14,187
36,661 52,464
31.12.2018 © 31.12.2017
€ €
6,810,133 5,790,434
30,910 37,271
382,107 1,151,687
7,223,150 6,979,392
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
No. No.
5 5
195 195
200 200
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
172,129 110,821
31.12.2018 31..12.20]?
€ €
172,129 110,821
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
99( 946
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INCOME TAX

Components of income tax expense

Income tax expense
Current income tax charge
(Over)/Under provision in respect of prior years

Deferred tax
Current deferred tax credit
Under provision in respect of prior years

Income tax expense reported in income statement

Reconciliation of income tax charge to accounting profit

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 19% (31.12.2017 - 19.25%)
Tax effect from (over)/under provisions in prior periods
Tax effect of deferred tax under provision in prior periods
Tax effect of rates in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of capital allowances

Income not subject to income tax

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Loss relief carried back '

Loss relief carried forward

Other relief

Deferred tax not récognised due to uncertainty

Under provision of tax expense in current year

Tax expense using effective rate

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €

141,050 66,180
(21,768) 41,926

119,282 108,106

26,238 (38,194)

51,334 2,603
77,572 (35,591)
196,854 72,515

31.12.2018  31.12.2017

€ €

1,132,387 (1,377,676)

215,154  (265,202)
(21,768) 41,926
51,334 2,603
(11,149)  (32,932)
(33452)  (34,126)
(112,013)  (33,801)
234,054 108,727
. (3,318)

11,639 78,493
(6,889)  (12,560)
(130,056) 231,517
- (8,812)

196,854 72,515

Finance (No.2) Act 2015 which received royal assent on 18 November 2015 enacted a corporation

tax rate of 19% from 1 April 2017 and a rate of 18% from 1 April 2020. A further change to reduce
the rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020 was announced in Finance Act 2016 and as this
change was enacted on 15 September 2016 deferred tax has been calculated based on a rate of 17%.

LOSS OF PARENT COMPANY

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the parent
company is not presented as part of these financial statements. The parent’s loss for the financial year

was €18,413 (2017: loss €731,193).
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Leasehold Plant and
At 31 December 2018 Improvements equipment

- €

Cost
At 1 January 2018 50,530 719,331
Additions 27,884 213,787
Disposals (21,669) (91,414)
Foreign currency exchange -
differences 977 2,512
At 31 December 2018 57,722 844,216
Depreciatiun ;
At 1 January 2018 (26,739) (472,374)
Charge for period ; (11,834) (166,237)
Elimination on disposals ' 20,928 81,014 -
Foreign currency exchange
differences ' 4) (1,082)
At 31 December 2018 _ ' (17,649) (558.,679)
Net book value
At 1 January 2018 23,791 246,957
At 31 December 2018 40,073 285,537
Group

Leasehold Plant and
At 31 December 2017 Improvements equipment

€ €

Cost
At 1 January 2017 30,169 567,810
Additions 20,996 216,823
Disposals - (64,984)
Foreign currency exchange
differences (635) (318)
At 31 December 2017 50,530 719,331
Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 (23,447) (355,323)
Charge for period (3,793) (178,974)
Elimination on disposals - 64,452
Foreign currency exchange
differences 501 (2,529)
At 31 December 2017 (26,739) (472,374)
Net book value :
At | January 2017 : 6,722 212,487
At 31 December 2017 . 23,791 246,957
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Total
€

769,861
241,671
(113,083)

3,489

901,938

(499,113)
(178,071)
101,942

(1,086)
576,328

270,748

325,610

Total
€

597,979
237,819
(64,984)
(953)
769,86

(378,770)
(182,767)
64,452
(2,028)
(499,113)

219,209

270,748
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
Plant and

At 31 December 2018 equipment
Cost

At 1 January 2018 and

31 December 2018 11,862
Depreciation

At 1 January 2018 and : '

31 December 2018 (11,862)
Net book value

At 1 January 2018 g
At 31 December 2018 "
Company

Plant and
At 31 December 2017 equipment
£

Cost

At 1 January 2017 and

31 December 2017 11,862
" Depreciation

At 1 January 2017 _ (11,411)
Charge for year : (451)
At 31 December 2017 _ i 3 (11,862) .
Net book value

At 1 January 2017 451

At 31 December 2017 5
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11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
At 31 December 2018

Cost

At 1 January 2018
Additions

Disposals

Foreign currency exchange
differences

At 31 December 2018

Amortisation

At 1 January 2018

Charge for period
Elimination on disposals
Foreign currency exchange
differences

At 31 December 2018

Net book value
At 1 January 2018

At 31 December 2018

Group
At 31 December 2017

Cost .

At 1 January 2017
Additions

Foreign currency exchange
differences

At 31 December 2017

Amortisation

At 1 January 2017

Charge for period

Foreign currency exchange
differences

At 31 December 2017

Net book value
At 1 January 2017

At 31 December 2017

Customer
Contract/
Intellectual
Software Property
£ £
333,389 567,382
79,498 -
(8,324) -
4,035 -
408,598 567,382
(296,306) (456,340)
(78,640) (111,042)
8,040 -
(3.580) =
(370,486) (567,382)
37,083 111,042
38,112 -
Customer
Contract/
Intellectual
Software Property
£ £
280,930 567,382
57,855 =
(5,396) -
333,38 567,382
(223,126) (289,156)
(77,589) (167,184)
4,409 -
(296,306) (456,340)
57,804 278,226
37,083 111,042
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Total
£

900,771
79,498
(8,324)

4,035
975,980

(752,646)

(189,682)
8,040

(3,580)
937,868

Total
£

848,312
57,855

(5.396)
900,771

(512,282)
(244,773)

4,409
(752,646)

336,030

148,125
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11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

On 7 August 2015, Computaris International Limited entered into an Assets Purchase Agreement
(APA) for acquisition of certain customer contracts and related intellectual property rights from the
subsidiary of a leading European telecommunication company for a maximum consideration of Euro -
0.70 million on fulfilment of certain conditions.

The Company completed the aforesaid business acquisition effective October 1, 2015. The purchase

price for the assets acquired amounts to €567,382. The total purchase consideration has been
allocated based on fair value to the following assets:-

Name of the assets Amount in Euro
Customer Contract €234,250
Intellectual Property Rights €333,132

The aforesaid assets acquired are amortized on the following basis:

Intangible assets Amortisation period
Customer Contract Over the period of respective customer contract
Intellectual Property Rights 3 years
The Company
Customer
At 31 December 2018 Contract/
Intellectual
Property
€
Cost
At 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018 _ 567,382
Amortisation ! , ‘
At 1 January 2018 ’ (456,340)
Charge for period (111,042)
At 31 December 2018 (567,382)
Net book value
At 1 January 2018 111,042

At 31 December 2018 i =
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

11.

12.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Company

At 31 December 2017

Cost

At | January 2017

Foreign currency exchange
differences

At 31 December 2017
Amortisation

At 1 January 2017
Charge for period

At 31 December 2017

Net book vélue
At 1 January 2017

At 31 December 2017

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Shares in Group undertakings
Cost

At 1 January 2018
Additions

‘Disposals

" At 31 December 2018

Customer
Contract/
Intellectual

Property
€
559,257

8,125
567,382

(289,156)
(167,184)

(456,340)

270,101

111,042

Subsidiary
undertakings
€
205,928
17,087
(78)

222,937

Investments in group undertakings are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration

paid.

Page 39



PUBLIZILMS ‘0007 ‘[238YINSN ‘6 10SILL NP any

‘somddITg 97ZT “AILD DENEIN 9Be[TIA 1dseSaT 00mS

ougmy "V’ A ISWI00 ‘9nudAY B[BAY $8/.9 ‘Iomo] ofIoeg ougny g1z
V'S0 “T9LS6 VO SIIH 0peio( [d ‘s g ‘DAL Aejdpuipy ‘0008

"BISAR[RJA ‘JoSue[og ‘eAR[ Sul[RIog (SEQY “BIRSURIR(] UR[R[
JO “T1/91 welef 6 ° eIesuewre(q 03[1J ‘g Jo0Id 01 [9A9T ‘5001 "ON

‘BAOPIOJA BOIqNdaY] “NBUISTY)) J1UD)) SSAUTSNE
Jomo], AS T10T — A “d NIPYO ‘8 I ‘€9 ON 19§ QeI ] NOTRIA

puB[od “MeSIBA\ S/ [-00 08 II B[Med Buef ‘8
BluBWOY “THy010

" 9sereyong ‘| JOJOAS ‘7 WOOY “JOOPPUNOID) ‘1S NUBA] 3YSI0aYLD) ¢
SSAIPPE PaI)SIFaY

o abeyq

VIN %001 puB[IaZ)IME  Sa0IAIRS Joynduio)) IT1
pue[ziMg suendwo))
%00T %00T sourddiigg ~ s901AIRS Jaundwo) ouy “pr1 9ld
. somddiyg suenduo))
2%00T PAAJOSSI(] VSN $901A198 JoIndUIo)) ou] (] suendumon
%001 %001 eISKR[R] se01AL0S 1opnduro) ‘aHd ‘Nds
eIsAefey suenduo))
%001 %001 BAOP[ON $901AI08 Jonduro) "TIS
) [euonewUy sueynduo))
00z
%001 %001 - pue[od oolades Tamndwo) ds eysfoq suenduon
%001 %001 BIUBUIOY sao1Ales Joynduro)) _ TS
_ eruewoy suendwon)

LIOTTIU'IE 8I0TTI'IE wonelodiodur  A)ianow [edpurig omeN

}seIAUY ©, JSAa AU o, Jo Anuno)

: are Aueduioo 21} Jo saurerprsqns 30a11p [edioutid oy |

(ponunuod) SATIVIAISANS NI INTIWLSAANTI 7T

8102 ¥39IN3030d L€ A3AN3 ¥VIA FHL ¥O04

(penunuod) SINJWILVLS TVIONVNI4 A3LVAITOSNOD FHL O1 SILON
A3LINIT TYNOILVNYELNI SIHVLINdINOD



COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Categories of financial instruments
The Group has the following categories of financial instruments at the balance sheet date:

Group, - 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 4,053,503 3,595,802

Cash and cash equivalents 1,807,599 2,428,020

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (981,467) (2,211,136)
Company -~ 31.12.2018 31.12.2017

' ; € €
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 3,509,546 2,778,365
Cash and cash equivalents 941,414 1,045,521

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,459,896) (791,676)

Capital risk management

The group aims to manage its overall capital so as to ensure the group continues to operate as a going
concern, whilst providing an adequate return to shareholders. There are no changes in capital risk
management since 2017.

The group's capital structure represents the equity attributable to shareholders of the company
together with cash and cash equivalents as follows:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €
Cash and short-term deposits ' ' (1,807,599) (2.428,020)
Net funds (1,807,599) (2,428,020)
Equity 4,694,698 3,688,374
Total capital 4,694,698 3,688,374
Capital and net funds ] _ 2,887,099 1,260,354
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Risk management objectives

The board is charged with the overall responsibility of establishing and monitoring the Group’s risk
management policies and processes. The Group’s risk management policies and processes are
determined in order to identify, analyse and monitor the risks that are faced by the Group. All treasury
transactions are reported to and approved by the Board. The Group does not enter into or trade
financial instruments for speculative purposes. ;

The principal risks to which the Group is exposed are market risk including currency risk and interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The principal ways in which the group is exposed to such
fluctuations are through currency risk.

Foreign currency risk

The group operates in a global industry and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises when
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity's functional currency.

The board monitors both the level of likely future foreign currency cash flows and forecasts of
exchange rate movements and manages foreign exchange risk by holding cash balances in the Euros.

Quantitative analysis :
The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the reporting dates is as follows:

P . 31.12.2018 31.12.2017.
Current assets $ $

US$ — trade and other receivables 624,433 718,202

US$ — cash and cash equivalents 544,434 595,156
: 1,168,867 1,313,358

Current liabilities
US$ — trade and other payables 150,704 440,206

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The company has used a sensitivity analysis technique that measures the estimated change to the
income statement and equity of a 10% strengthening or weakening in Euro against all other
currencies, with all other variables remaining constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and adjusts their translation at the
balance sheet date for a 10% change in the applicable foreign currency rate.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

Under this assumption, with a 10% strengthening or weakening of Euro against all exchange rates,
profit before tax would have decreased by €86,568 (2017: €73,066) or increased by €105,806 (2017:
€89,303) and equity would have decreased by €245,958 (2017: €194,490) or increased by €300,561
(2017: €212,155).

Intérest rate risk

The group has very limited exposure to interest rate risk at present as it has no interest bearing
borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to
discharge its obligation to the group.

The group trades only with recognised, creditworthy customers. All customers who wish to trade on
credit are subject to credit verification checks. Customer balances are checked regularly to ensure
that the risk of exposure to bad debts is minimised.

Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year, €1,870,043 (2017: €1,121,438) is due from
Nokia Siemens, the Group’s largest customer. Apart from this, the Group does not have significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related
entities. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and
unrelated.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables and other financial assets is
represented by their carrying amount.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The group has given responsibility of liquidity risk management to the board
who have formulated liquidity management tools to service this requirement.

Management of liquidity risk is achieved by monitoring budgets and forecasts and actual cash flows.
In addition, the Group benefits from strong cash flow from its normal trading activities.

At the balance sheet date the Group had no bank loans and borrowings or finance lease liabilities.

Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying values of all the company’s financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The company does not hold any financial instruments that are classified as fair value through profit
or loss or available for sale and therefore are measured at fair value.
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COMPUTARIS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Subsidiaries - The company has investments in the following subsidiaries :
Country of % Interest % Interest

Name - Principal activity incorporation 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Computaris Romania S.R.L. Computer services Romania 100% 100%
Computaris Polska sp zoo Computer services Poland 100% 100%
ICS Computaris International S.R.L. Computer services ~ Moldova 100% 100%
Computaris Malaysia SDN. BHD. Computer services Malaysia 100% 100%
Computaris USA Inc Computer services USA Dissolved 100%
Computaris Philippines Pte. Ltd. Inc Computer services  Philippines 100% 100%

- Computaris Switzerland LLC Computer services  Switzerland 100% N/A
Sale of services

During the period the company sold consuitancy services of €445,350 (2017: €552,620) to
Computaris Philippines Pte. Ltd. Inc, a group company. At the period end €255,223 (2017: €392,196)
was owed to the company by Computaris Philippines Pte. Ltd Inc in respect of these consultancy
services including foreign exchange variances. In addition to the above €55,581 (2017: €140,328) of
income was accrued and included in Revenue and Accrued Income of the company in respect of
services provided but not invoiced at the year-end date. At the year-end foreign exchange losses
incurred by Computaris Philippines Pte. Ltd. Inc of €]7 154 were recharged to company and is
mcluded in the balance owed at the year end.

During the period Computaris Romania S.R.L. provided consultancy services of €Nil (2017:
€480,488) to Computaris Polska sp zoo, a group company. At the period end €Nil (2017: €100,526)
was owed to Computaris Romania S.R.L. by Computaris Polska sp zoo in respect of consultancy
services including foreign exchange variances. In addition to the above €Nil (2017: €31,531) of
income was accrued and included in Revenue and Accrued Income of the company in respect of
services provided but not invoiced at the period end date.

During the period ICS Computaris International S.R.L.provided consultancy services of €50,229
(2017: €81,177) to Computaris Romania S.R.L., a group company. At the period end €1,927 (2017:
€28,409) was owed to ICS Computaris International S.R.L. by Computaris Romania S.R.L. in
respect of consultancy services including foreign cxchange variances.

Purchases of services

During the year the company incurred consultancy services of €340,758 (2017: €412,650) and
reimbursed expenses totalling €5,116 (2017: €13,053) from R Systems International Limited, the
parent undertaking. At the period end €39,297 (2017: €28,067) was owed by the company to R
Systems International Limited in respect of these consultancy and reimbursed expenses.

During the year the company incurred consultancy services of €890,978 (2017: €Nil) and reimbursed
expenses totalling €16,531 (2017: €Nil) from R Systems Inc, a group company. At the period end
€104,743 (2017: €Nil) was owed by the company to R Systems Inc in respect of these consultancy
and reimbursed expenses.

During the year Computaris USA, INC acquired services totalling €304,909 (2017: €1,501,483) and
incurred €6,349 (2017: €51,589) in respect of reimbursed expenses from R Systems Inc, a group
company. At the year-end €Nil (2017: €348,744) was owed by Computaris USA, INC to R Systems
Inc in respect of these services including foreign exchange variances.

During the period Computaris USA Inc. acquired services totalling €Nil (2017: €16,353) and
incurred €Nil (2017: €Nil) in respect of reimbursed expenses from R Systems Canada, a group
company. At the period end €Nil (2017: €Nil) was owed by Computaris USA Inc to R Systems

Canada in respect these services including foreign exchange differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

During the year computer consultancy services and related expenses were acquired from the
subsidiary undertakings as follows:
31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €
Computaris Romania S.R.L. 4,407,807 4,488,004
Computaris Polska sp zoo ’ 1,882,060 1,612,047
ICS Computaris International S.R.L. 512,131 531,089
Computaris Malaysia SDN. BHD. 181,197 184,494
Computaris USA Inc 310,059 1,343,213

7,293,254 8,158,847

At the year end the following amounts were due to/(from) the sub51d1ary undertakings in respect of
the above services supplied :

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €
Computaris Romania S.R.L. 602,115 403,730
Computaris Polska sp zoo 165,481 (19,862)
ICS Computaris International S, R.L. 48,081 66,975
Computaris USA Inc - 176,479

815,677 627,322

The amount due to/(from) the subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand unless otherwise stated.

Loan to subsidiary

On the 23 November 2017 the company entered into a loan agreement under normal commercial
terms with the subsidiary, Computaris Polska sp zoo, for a maximum up to €450,000. The amount
drawn-down by the year end was €450,000 (2017: €250,000) on which interest of €4,430 (2017:
€307) at a rate of 1.4% had been paid. The principal amount outstanding was due to be repaid in full
‘together with all interest and fees on 22 October 2018, however the original loan agreement was
replaced with a new agreement thereby extending the settlement daté to 1 October 2019.

Financial Support :
The company have agreed to provide financial support to its subsidiary, Computaris Polska sp zoo
in order for it to continue operate and meet its obligations.

Key management personnel ¢
The key management personnel are the directors of the company and the remuneration they have
received during the year is as follows:

31.12.2018  31.12.2017

€ €
Receivable from subsidiaries:
Short-term employee benefits 172,129 110,821
15. INVENTORIES
Group 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Consumables (At cost) 13,155 10,351
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Receivable from trade customers 3,396,042 2,737,741
Other receivables 161,135 165,358
Tax receivables 134,036 204,368

Accrued income 496,326 692,703
4,187,539 3,800,170

At 31 December 2018, trade and other receivables to the value of €80,096 (2017: €217,904) were
impaired and fully provided for.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables were as follows:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ - €
At 1 January 217,904 80,096
Provision for doubtful debts 939 137,312
Release of provision for doubtful debts (13,560) -
Provision for doubtful debts written off (124,248) -
Foreign currency exchange increases - 496
At 31 December 81,035 217,904
Company 31.12.2018  31.12.2017
; € €
Receivable from trade customers 12,639,513 1,860,853
Receivable from related parties 712,105 662,058
Tax receivables 10,731 10,265
Accrued income _ 157,928 255,454

3,520,277 |, 2,788,630

4

Amounts receivable from trade customers are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 day
terms.

At 31 December 2018, trade and other receivables to the value of €80,096 (2017: €100,879) were
impaired and fully provided for.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables were as follows:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

€ €
At 1 January 100,879 80,096
Provision for doubtful debts - 20,783
Release of provision for doubtful debts (13,560) -
Provision for doubtful debts written off (7,223) -

At 31 December 80,096 100,879
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17.

18.

19.

PREPAYMENTS
Group - 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Current
Prepaid expenses 159,005 83,912
Company 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
; € €
Current
Prepaid expenses 110,717 47,245
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group 31.12.2018  31.12.2017
€ €
Cash on hand 2,880 3,245
Cash at bank z 1,232,547 2,181,925
Short term deposits 572,172 242,850
1,807,599 2,428,020
Included in cash at bank is restricted funds of €60,521 (2017: €59,860).
Company 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
; € €
Cash at bank 766,589 1,045,521
Short term deposits ' 174,825 -
941,414 1,045,521
Included in cash at bank is restricted funds of €Nil (2017: €Nil).
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
No. € No. €
Ordinary share capital 106,500 747 106,500 747
Issued share capital '
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
No. € No. €
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary share capital 66,500 747 66,500 747

All issued share capital is classified as equity. The ordinary shares have a par value of 1p per share
and are fully paid. These shares carry no right to fixed income or have any preferences or restrictions

attached to them.
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20.

21,

OTHER RESERVES
Group ; Foreign
31 December 2018 Capital Legal and currency
Redemption statutory translation
Reserve reserve reserve Total
£ € € €
At 1 January 2018 168 911,203 282,716 1,194,087
Foreign currency exchange increase - - 70,791 70,791
Transfer to retained eami_ngs - (667,146) - (667.146
At 31 December 2018 168 244,057 353,507 891732
Group Foreign
31 December 2017 Capital Legal and currency
Redemption statutory translation
Reserve reserve reserve Total
€ € € €
At 1 January 2017 168 837,784 392,812 1,230,764
Foreign currency exchange increase - - (110,096) (110,096)
Transfer to retained earnings - 73.419 - 73,419
At 31 December 2017 168 911,203 282716 1.194.087

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Legal and statutory reserve

The legal and statutory reserves of €244,057 (2017: €911,203) are according to local applicable laws
and statutory regulations in the subsidiary jurisdictions of Romania, Moldova and Poland. They are
created and adjusted based on profit by transfers from retained earnings,

Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve represents the revaluations of overseas foreign subsidiaries.

DEFERRED TAX A.SSETS AND LIABILITIES

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Group Accelerated Other Revaluation

tax | timing of Financial

depreciation  differences Assets Tax Losses Total
€ € € € €

Balance at 1 January 2017 (1,006) 26,054 7,768 - 32,816
Charge to profit or loss (1,008) (699) (9,368) . 46,666 35,591
Foreign currency exchange 300 2,595 1,600 (2,722) 1,773
Balance at 1 January 2018 (1,714) 27,950 - 43,944 70,180
Charge to profit or loss 1,742  (34,663) - (44,651) (77,572
Foreign currency exchange 28) 3,571 - 707 4,250
Balance at 31 December 2018 - (3,142) - - (3,142)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused tax losses of €628,809 (2017: €644,549) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of €609,403
(2017: €534,221) of these losses as it is not considered probable that there will be future taxable
profits available.

These amounts have been classified in the statement of financial position as follows:

Group | 31.122018  31.12.2017
€ €
Deferred tax assets - 73,533
Deferred tax liabilities (3,142) (3,353)
(3,142) 70,180
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Payable to trade suppliers 397,522 998,603
Payable to related parties 144,040 376,811
Other payables 86,452 96,045
Accrued liabilities 353,453 739.677
Tax payable 278,057 233,969
1,259,524 2,445,105
Company 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Payable to trade suppliers 117,261 42,214
Payable to related parties 959,718 675,251
Other payables 87 1,612
- Accrued labilities 382,830 - 72,589
Tax payable - 10
1,459,896 791,676

The average credit period taken on trade payables is 30 days and no interest has been charged on

the payable balances.
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23. OPERATING LEASES

The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
€ €
Not later than one year 449,320 323,958
Later than one year and not later than five years 372,983 554,643
After more than five years - 17,283

822,303 895,884

The operating lease relates to the lease of buildings with an average lease terms between 3 months
to 6 years.

24. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The company’s immediate and ultimate parent undertaking is R Systems International Limited, a
company registered in India, which owns 100% of the company’s shares.

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the group are consolidated is headed by R
Systems International Limited. The consolidated financial statements of this company are available
to the public and may be obtained from its registered address, B-104A, Greater Kailash 1, New Delhi
— 110 048, India.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder
RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD., which comprise the
balance sheets as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and the statement of loss, deficit and
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statement, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of RSYS
TECHNOLOGIES LTD. as at December 31, 2018, and the result of its financial operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. | also:
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- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

fn Ppea

s

D Arora & Co.
Chartered Professional Accountant

Burnaby
January 25, 2019




RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Balance Sheet
As At December 31, 2018

Audited
2018 2017
CAD Equivalent & CAD Equivalent T
Note Dollars {(Unaudited) Dollars (Unaudited)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 87,730 ¥ 4,495,285 § 73814 ¥ 3,761,031
Accounts receivable 4, 227,120 11,637,629 43,668 2,225,540
Other current assets 5. 11,187 573,222 19,859 1,012,115
$ 326,037 ¥ 16,706,136 $ 137341 % 6,999,586
Property, plant & equipment 2. 11,594 594,077 1,689 86,080
Security deposit 8,258 423,140 6,600 336,369
Total Assets $ 345889 ¥ 17,723,353 $ 145830 ¥ 7,422,035

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 7. $ 168,042 T 8610472 § 69,381 T 3,536,005
Due to government agencies 9 12,516 641,320 5,399 275,160
Due to related parties 6. 540 27,670 572,264 29,165,435

$ 181,098 ¥ 9279462 § 647,044 T  32976.600

Equity
Share capital 12 1,100,000 56,364,000 100,000 5,086,500
Deficit (935,208) (47,920,109} (601,414) (30,651,065)
Total Equity 164,791 8,443,891 (501,414) (25,5654,565)
Total Liabilities & Equity $ 345889 ¥ 17,723,353 $ 145630 T 7422035
Exchange rate used for translation:.  § 1€ 512400 % 1 ¥ 50.9650

Approved on behalf of the Board:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

Statement of Deflcit
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited
2018 2017
CAD  Equivalent CAD  Equivalent
Dollars  (ynaudited) Dollars  (Unaudited)
Deficit - beginning of the year $ (601,414) ¥ (30,816,453) $ (336,257) ¥(17,137,338)
Net loss (333,795) (17,103,656) (265,167) {13,513,727)
Deficit - end of the year $ (935,209) ¥(47,920,109) $ (601,414) $(30,651,065)
Exchange rate used for translation: $ 1 ¥ 512400 § 1 & 50.9650
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
4
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Statement of Loss

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

2018 2017
CAD Equlvalent 2 CAD Equivalent ¥
Note Dollars {(Unaudited) Dollars (Unaudited)
Revenue from operation $ 518,619 T 26,574,038 §$ 328,182 ¥ 16,725,796
Commission Income 8.h. 314,442 16,112,008 141,943 7,234,125
$ 833,061 T 42,686,046 $ 470,125 ¥ 23,959,921
OQperating expenses
Salaries and wages 590,645 30,264,650 425,044 21,662,368
Subcontract 297,722 15,255,275 160,045 8,156,693
Travel expenses 84,775 4,343,872 39,287 2,002,262
Operation and other expenses 11. 63,517 3,254,611 30,560 1,557 491
Qffice expensaes 60,133 3,081,215 55,449 2,825,958
Professional fees 17,814 912,789 24.623 1,254,911
Interest and bank charges 10,31 528,336 6,819 347,530
Employee benefits 9,296 476,327 9,189 468,318
Advertising 4,020 205,985 4,086 208,243
Amortization 1,381 70,762 1,106 56,368
$ 1,139614 ¥ 58,393,822 § 756,208 ¥ 38,540,142
Loss from operations $ (306,553) ¥(15,707,776) $ (286,083) ¥(14,580,221)
{Gain)/loss on exchange
difference 27,242 1,395,880 (20,926) (1,066,494)
Net loss $ (333,795) ¥(17,103,656) $ (265,157) T (13,513,727)
Exchange rate used for translation: $ 12 51.2400 % 1 ¥ 50.9650
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

2018 2017
CAD Equivalent ¥ CAD Equivalent ¥
Dollars (Unaudlted) Dollars {(Unaudited)
Qperating activities
Net loss $ (333,795) ¢ (17,103,656) $ (265,157) ¥ (13,513,727)
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization 1,381 70,762 1,106 56,368
$ (332,414) ¥ (17,032894) $ (264,051) ¥ (13,457,359)
Changes In non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (183,451) (9,400,028) 75,790 3,862,637
Other current assets 8,671 444,302 10,145 517,040
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 98,661 5,055,390 (23,475) (1,196,403}
Due to government agencies 7,117 364,675 (8,917) {454,455)
Security deposit {(1,658) {84,956) - -
$ (70,660) T (3,620,617) % 53543 ¥ 2,728,819
Investing activitles
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment {11,286) (578,295) - -
$ (11,286) ¥  (578,295) 3 - p4 -
Financing actlvities
Due to related parties (571,724) (29,295,138) 153,747 7,835,716
Proceeds from issvance of shares 1,000,000 51,240,000 - -
$ 428,276 ¥ 21944862 $ 153,747 T  7.835716
Increase {decrease) in cash 13,916 713,056 {66,761) (2,892,824)
Net cash, beginning of a year 73,814 3,782,229 130,575 6,654,755
Net cash, end of a year $ 87,730 T 4,495285 § 73,814 ¥ 3,761,931
Exchange rate used for translation: $ 12 51,2400 $ 1 50.9650
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

1.

RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD., specializes in providing IT solutions and business process outsourcing
services to individuals, businesses, and communities. This company is a subsidiary of R Systems
International Limited (a publicly listed Indian Corporation). Currently, the company is in the process of
establishing its base in Canada.

Disclaimer - Convenience Translation

The Company provided the translations for the Canadian Dollar (CAD) amounts into Indian
Rupees (INR) at the closing rate at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The translations
should not be considered as a representation that such Canadian Dollar (CAD) amounts have
been, could have been or could be converted into Indian Rupees at any particular rate, the rate
stated above, or all. Accordingly, the franslated values are not in accordance with Canadian
GAAP. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the exchange rate to translate Canadian Dollars
(CAD) into Indian Rupees was 51.2400 and 50.9850 respectively. '

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for private enterprises. (ASPE)

Significant accounting policies

2. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when earned, specifically when ali the following conditions are
met:

Services are provided to customers,

There is clear evidence that an arrangement exists.
Amounts are fixed or can be determined.

The ability to collect is reasonably assured.

There is no significant obligation for future performance.

b. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and fiabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and may have financial impact on
future periods. Significant areas of estimation include accounts, estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, accrued liabilities and employee future benefits,

¢. Income taxes

The Company uses the taxes payable methed fo record income taxes. Only current income taxes
are recorded based on the determination of the income taxes for the current year, plus any income
tax recoveries as a result of carrying back losses to a previous year.

7
D. ARCRA & CO.

Chartered Professional Accountant —



RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financlal Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

1.  Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

d. Related parties

Parties are considered related to the company if the company has the ability to, directly or
indirectly, control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions or vice versa, or where the company and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be other entities or individuals.
Related party transactions are unsecured, non-interest bearing and without terms of repayment.
Related party transactions occurred during the normal course of business and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration agreed by the related parties.

.  Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, or deemed cost, less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is provided annually at rates and methods over their estimated useful lives as follows.
The estimates of useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually and, if needed, adjusted on a
prospective basis.

Assets Basis of resources used per year
Computer Hardware Straight Line 3Years
Office equipment Straight Line 5 years
Furniture & Fixture Straight Line 7 years
2. Property, plant & equipment
2018 2017
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost amortization Value Value
Computers hardware $ 5298 % (3,011) $ 2,287 % 1,689
Furniture & Fixures 8,640 - 8,640 -
Office equipment 666 - 666 -
Total $ 14,604 $ (3,010) $ 11,594 § 1,689

3. Economic dependence

During the year, the company provided 38% services to its associate company in USA (30% prior year)
and has undertaken, under the terms of a contract.

In addition, The Associate company (R. Systems Inc. (USA)) is providing advance to the company with
no interest and no terms of repayment.

8
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

4.

6.

7.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represents the amount due from customers for the services provided during normal

course of business and collectable within normal business terms and conditions.

2018 2017
Account receivable - company under common control $ 89,248 § 10,125
Account receivable - others 137,872 33,543

$ 227120 3 43,668

Other current assets

2018 2017
Advance to employees $ 2500 $ 11,450
Prepaid expenses 4,197 3,662
Advance to suppliers 4,022 4,747
Unbilled revenue 468 -

Total

$ 11,187 $ 19,859

Due to related parties

2018 2017
R. System international Ltd. (India) $ (1,304) $ 373
R. System Inc {USA) 1,844 571,891
$ 540 § 572,264
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
2018 2017
Vacation payable $ 35,564 3 16,677
Payable to employees 753 1,370

Accrued liability
Trade accounts payable

10,000 10,000
121,725 41,334

Total

$ 168,042 $§ 69,381

9
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

8, Related party transactions
Related party transactions are under:

a. R Systems Inc (USA), an assoclated company incorporated in USA

R Systems Inc. USA is wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems International India. Transaction in
the current year ended December 31, 2018 are follows:

2018 2017
Accounts Receivable $ 8,929 $ 10,125
Software development services $ 54,120 3 53,048
Advances $ 1,844 § 571,891

b. R System International USA Br., a Branch incorporated in USA

R Systems International USA Br. is wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems International, Noida
(India). Transaction in the current year ended December 31, 2018 are follows:

2018 2017
Commission Income $ 314442 % 141,943
Accounts Receivable $ 80,319 $ -

¢. R System International, Noida incorporated in India

RSYS Technologies Ltd. wholly owned subsidiary of R Systems International India. Transaction in
the current year ended December 31, 2018 are follows:

2018 2017
Accounts Payable $ 74,784 3 -
Advance (1,304) 373
Subcontract $ 152,347 § -

10
D. ARORA & CO.

Chartered Professional Accountant




RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

9. Due to Government agencies

2018 2017
GSTKQST $ (1,072) $ 5,393
Quebec taxes 174 6
Payroll Liability 13,414 -
Total $ 12,616 $ 5,399

10. Income taxes

The company has following non-capital losses for the tax year ending December 31, 2018, that can be
used to set off future taxable income. The tax benefits of these losses are not recognized in these
financial statements. These non-capital losses will expire 20 years from the respective tax years in which
they are incurred. Corporate tax returns are subject to audit and reassessment by the Canada Revenue
Agency. The results of any assessments will be accounted for in the year in which they are determined.

Tax Year Loss

2012 $ 9,838
2013 12,357
2014 42,926
2015 83,953
2016 187,432
2017 265,203
2018 334,526
Total $ 936,235

11. Operation and other expenses

2018 2017
Visa arrangement expense $ 43,607 § 18,218
Employee relocation expenses 14,790 10,022
Export tax 3,505 -
Insurance 968 1,034
Fees others 647 1,286

$ 63,517 % 30,560

11
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

12. Share Capital
Authorized shares
Class "A" voting common shares, no maximum, without par value, voting and participating

Class "B" preferred shares, no maximum, without par value, voting and participating

Issued shares

2018 2017

Class "A" Common shares

( 200 shares @%$1 per share) $ 200 $ 200
Class “B" Preferred shares

{ 25 shares @$3992 per share) 99,800 99,800
Class "B" Preferred shares

{ 250 shares @$4000 per share) 1,000,000 -
Total $ 1,100,000 $ 100,000

During the year, Company issued 250 Class "B" Preferred shares @$4000 per share.

13. Financial instruments

The company is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The company's financial
instruments consist of cash, receivables, payables and accrued liabilities. The following analysis provides
inbrm?tion about the company's risk exposure and concentration as at December 31, 2018

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that financial instrument fair values will fluctuate due to changes in market prices.
The significant market risks to which the company is exposed are foreign exchange risks and price risks

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet cash flow
commitments associated with financia! instruments. Liquidity risk is dependent on receipt of funds from
sales and confinued access to sufficient credit facilities to be able to pay liabilities as they become due

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Approximately 38% of the companies' revenue are in US
dollars and, consequently, accounts receivable & advance payable in US dollars are exposed to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Unless otherwise noted, management is of the opinion that the company is not exposed to significant
other price risks arising from theses financial instruments.

12
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RSYS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Audited

14. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's financial statements
presentation.

13
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IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Directors’ Statement

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for financial year ended
31 December 2018.

1.

2.

OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS
In the opinion of the directors,

(2) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheets and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of
the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Satinder Singh Rekhi
Harpreet Rekhi
(Gunalan Kalairajan

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other bady corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the
register of directors’ shareholdings, required to be kept under section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50, an interest in shares and share options of the Company and related
corporations as stated below;

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
names of directors deemed to have an interest
At beginning At end At beginning Atend
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares

The Company
Satinder Singh Rekhi - - [,151,000 1,151,000



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Litd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Directors® Statement — continued
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DIRECTORS® INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Holding registered in Holdings in which directors are
namies of directors deemed to have an inferest
At beginning Atend At beginning Atend
Name of directors of year of year of year of year

Ordinary shares of Rs. I each
The immediate and ultintate

holding company
- R Svstems Inrernctionol

Limited
Satinder Singh Rekhi 1,281,556 3,148,044 50,973,302 21,226,949
Harpreet Rekhi 760 1,508,452 - -

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year
had interests in shares, share options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related
corporations, either at the beginning of financial year or at the end of financial year.

OPTIONS ON SHARES TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group was granted,

OPTIONS EXERCISED

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group
issued by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER CPTION

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group under option.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The independent auditor, HLB Atrede LLP has expressed its willingness o accept re-appointment

as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors,

G ‘RW

Satinder Singh Rekhi Gunalan Kalairajan
Director Director
Singapore

30 JAN 208 "2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd,
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Litd. (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity of the Group and the Company, and consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group, the balance sheet and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act Chapter 50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (FRSs) so
as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Awuditing (SSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and
Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

QOther Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Statement but does not include the financial statements and cur auditor’s report thereon.

20 Peck Seah Streat #04-00
Singapore 079312
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Ofther Information (continued)

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient fo provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of frue and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
g gp

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with S8As will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor®s Report
to the member of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Likl. — continued
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

@ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group te cease to continue as
a going concern.

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of 1BIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. — continued
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries

(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2018

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
‘Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Contract assets

Amounts due from
subsidiary companies

Amounts due from related
companies

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Contract Habilities

Amounts due to subsidiary
companics

Tax payable

Net current assets
Net assets

Equity attributable teo
ewner of the Company

Share capital

Foreign currency
translation reserve

Accumulated profits

Total equity

Note

hoh b

W on -]

10

11
12

13
14
15

10
16

17

18

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
3 b 3 $
104,082 141,407 43,257 119,419
- ~ 1,064,545 1,064,545
14,139 6,281 - -
118,221 147,688 1,107,802 1,183,964
2,201,505 3,347,730 1,533,175 2,512,168
395,929 293,353 114,798 73,280
364,907 553,316 234,029 394,574
- - 519,600 443,144
153,840 - - _
2,557,182 1,353,649 227,443 275,594
5,673,363 5,548,048 2,629,045 3,699,360
1,494,633 1,551,743 1,114,614 1,177,399
§22,24] 977,002 294,765 596,034
1,051,092 1,079,857 550,853 869,406
- - 572,010 973,869
25,559 107,601 — 59,378
3,393,525 3,716,203 2,532,242 3,676,086
2,279,838 1,831,845 96,803 23274
2,398,059 1,979,533 1,204,605 1,207,238
1,151,000 1,151,000 1,151,000 1,151,000
42,140 34,204 - -
1,204,919 794,329 53,605 56,238
2,398,059 1,979,533 1,204,605 1,207,238

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



IBYZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Note

Revenue 19
Other operating income 20

Purchases of hardware/services
Subcontractor services
Staff costs 21
Allowance for expected credit losses
Contract assets written off
Depreciation
Finance cosis 22
Rental of premises
Reversal for allowance for impairment on trade

receivables
Bad debt written off
Other expenses 23
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 24
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:
Foreign currency iranslation
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

net of tax
Total comprehensive inconte for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owner of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owner of the Company

2018 2017
b 3
10,813,621 10,731,323
86,601 137,995
10,900,222 10,869,318
(2,408,951) (2,737,104)
(1,238,729) (1,383,207)
(5,121,518) (4,521,398)
(223,251) (104,660}
(51,683) -
(112,391) (97,946)
(1,041) (2,747)
(286,364) (254,153)
70,972 77,699
(430) -
(1,079,129) (872,636)
447,107 973,166
(37,117 (161,492)
410,590 811,674
7,936 (36,309)
7.936 (36,309)
418,526 775,365
410,550 811,674
418,526 775,365

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries

(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Group

Balance at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2018

Company

Balance at 1 January 2017
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Balance at 31 December 2017
Total comprehensive loss
for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018

Foreign
currency
translation
Share adjustment Accumulated
capital reserve profits Total
8 $ $ $
1,151,000 70,513 (17,345) 1,204,168
- (36,309) 811,674 775,365
1,151,000 34,204 794,329 1,979,533
— 7,936 410,590 418,526
1,151,000 42,140 1,204,919 2,398,059
1,151,000 - (64,343) 1,086,657
— - 120,581 120,581
1,151,000 - 56,238 1,207,238
- - (2,633) (2,633)
1,151,000 — 53,603 1,204,605

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statenents.



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Caonsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 447 707 973,166
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 112,391 97,941
Bad debt written off 430 -
Coniract assets written off 51,683 -
Interest income {(15,640) (5,119)
Interest expenses 1,041 2,747
Allowance for expected credit losses 223,251 104,660
Reversal of allowance for impairment on trade receivables (70,972) (77,699)
Plant and equipment written off - 2,344
Loss on disposal of equipment 101 -
Currency alignment (24,238) (32,105)
Operating profit before working capital changes 725,754 1,065,935
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables, contract assets 1,097,727 (2,029,634)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables, contract liabilities (240,0637) 1,157,143
Increase in amounts due from related companies (153,840) —
Cash generated from operations 1,429,004 193,444
Interest paid (1,041 (2,747
Interest received 15,640 5,119
Tax paid (164,852) (164,807)
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,278,751 31,009
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of plant and equipment {75,218) (50,007)
Net cash flows used in investing activity {75,218) (50,007
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in amount due to director — (669%)
Net cash flows nsed in financing activities — (669)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,203,533 (19,667)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,353,649 1,373,316
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 2,557,182 1,353,649

The aecompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of financial statements.

- 10 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

These notes are an integral part of and shounld be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Singapore,

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding is R Systems (Singapore) Pte Lid, incorporated in
Singapore and R Systems International Limited, incorporated in India respectively.

The registered office of the Company is located at 2 Jalan Kilang Barat, #04-01 Panasonic
Building, Singapore 159346.

The principal activities of the Company are to carry on the business of information technology
consuliing and general trading.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FPOLICIES
(a) Basis af preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of comprehensive
income, the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRS’).

The financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below,

The financial stafements are presented in Singapore Dollar (SGD or $) and all values are
rounded to the nearest one-dollar unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year
except in current financial year, the Group and the Company has adopted all applicable new
and revised FRS and INT FRS that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current
financial year. The adoption of these new and revised FRS and INT FRS did not result in any
changes to the Group and the Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on
the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.

The Group and the Company applied FRS 109 and FRS 115 for the first time. The nature and
effect of the changes as a result of the adopting of these new accounting standards are
described below:

FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 109 Financial Instruments replaces RS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Meuasurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all

three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement;
impairment; and hedge accounting,

- 11 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte, Ltd, and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

FRS 109 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement

Under FRS 109, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss, amortised cost, or fair value through OCL The classification is based on two criteria: the
Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual
cash flows represent ‘sclely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding,.

The assessment of the Group’s business mode] was made as of the date of initial application, 1
January 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial assets that were not
derecognised before 1 January 2018, The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on
debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts
and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of FRS 109 did not have a significant
impact on the Group. The loans and receivable that are previously measured at amottised cost
will continue to be accounted for using amortised cost under FRS 109,

Impairment

The adoption of FRS 109 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for impairment
losses for financial assets by replacing FRS 39°s incurred loss approach with a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach. FRS 109 requires the Group to recognise an
allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and
contract assets. FRS 109 requires the Group to record ECL on all debt securities, loans, trade
receivable and financial guarantee, either on a 12 months or lifetime basis. The Group has
applied the simplified approach and record lifetime ECL on all trade receivable. The change in
model did not have a material impact to the financial statements on initial recognition.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Custonters

FRS 115 supersedes FRS 11 Construction Contracts, FRS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with its customers. FRS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.

FRS 115 requires entifies to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of cbtaining a
contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

- 12 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Under FRS 1135, revenue is recognised when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transfer to the customer.

The Group provides IT contract services and accordingly revenue is recognised to their
performance obligation when control over the corresponding service is transferred to the
customer. The timing of revenue recognition of each of these performance obligations when
provision for the relevant services are completed, are consistent with previous practice.

The Group has changed the presentation of certain amount in the balance sheet to reflect the
terminology in FRS 115:

= Unbilled receivables in trade receivable from previous year were reclassified as part of
contract agsets.

*  Deferred revenue in other payables arising from service contract from previous year were
reclassified as part of contract liabilities,

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards that has been issued but not yet effective:
Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
FRS 116 Leases 1 January 2019
Improvements to FRSs (December 2016):
— Amendment to FRS 28: Long—term interests in Associate

and Joint venture 1 January 2019

Improvements to FRSs (March 2017):

— Amendment to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2019
— Amendment to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2019
INT FRS 123: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 Januvary 2019

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of
the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of the Amendments to FRS is
described below.

- 13 -



IBiZ Consulting Pte, 1 td. and its Subsidiaries
{Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
RS 116 Leases

FRS 116 requires lessees to recognise most leases on balance sheets. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low value’ assets and short-term leases.
FRS 116 is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019, At
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Group plans to adopt FRS 116 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment to the opening retained carnings at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

On the adoption of FRS 116, the Group expects to choose, on a lease-by-lease basis, to
measure the right-of-use asset at either:

(i} its carrying amount as if FRS 116 had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019; or

(ii} an amount equal to the lease lability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 Janvary 2019.

In addition, the Group plans to elect the following practical expedients:

(i) not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application
and to apply FRS 116 to all contracts that were previously identified as leases;

(i) to apply the exemption not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease liabilities to leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months as of 1 January 2019; or

(iii) to apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

The Group has performed a preliminary impact assessment based on currently available

information, and the assessment may be subject to changes arising from ongoing analysis until
the Group adopts FRS 116 in 2019,

- 14 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte, Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contirued)

(b) Basis of conselidation and business combination

(@

(ii)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared
for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
CLAsCs.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results
in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership inferest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets {including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

- Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in profit or
foss.

- 15 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte, Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 Pecember 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation and bustness combinations (continued)
(ii) Business combinations and goodwill {continued)

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling
interest in the acquiree (if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders fo a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liguidation, is recognised on
the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combinaticn, the amount of non-controiling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill, In
instanceg where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on
bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to the Group’s cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units.

The cash-generating units to which goodwill have been allocated is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit may be
impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of
each cash-generating unit {or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates.

(c) Foreign currency
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and

items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency,

- 16 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte. L{d. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2318

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{c) Foreign currency {continued)

Y

(i)

Trensactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of
the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional
currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting pericd. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net
investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign
currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on
disposal of the foreign operation.

Consolidated financial statements

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
into SGD at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or less.

In the case of & partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interest and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that are foreign
operations, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

- 17 -



IBIZ Consuiting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700F)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contizued)

(d} Piant and equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded af cost. Subsequent to recognition,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and
only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefinl lives of the assets
as follows:

Communication equipment - 3 years
Furniture and fitting - 5 years
Computer equipment —~ 1to3years
Leaseheld improvements - 3 years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

For acquisition and disposals of plant and equipment, depreciation is provided in the month of
acquisition and no depreciation is provided in the month of disposal.

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its vse or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

(e} Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investes
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment losses.

- 18 -



IBIZ: Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(£ Financial instrument

(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measuvement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the financial instrument.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or 1oss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services fo a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third party, if the trade receivables do
not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Investments in debt insiruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three
measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are:

v Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI Financial assets measured at FVQCE
are subseguently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair
value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses and interest calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset
is de-recognised.

- 19 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continned)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

@

(if)

Financial assets (continued)
®  Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Invesiments in equity instriments

On initial recognition of an investment in equity instrument that is not held for trading,
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCL
Dividends from such investments are to be recognised in profit or loss when the right to
receive payments is established. For investments in equity instruments which the Group
has not elected to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, changes in fair value
are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income for debt
instrugents is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial ligbilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
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IBIZ Consulting Pte. L4d. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E}

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D

()

Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (conrinued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(it} Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for ail debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee contracts. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic enviromment,

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 Pecember 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{(g) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in cerfain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset {o be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(iii) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession{s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(v} the disappcarance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off, However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)

(h)y Impairment of non-financial assets

0

(k)

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial
asset, may be impaired. If any such an indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If
this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an
impairment loss in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case,
such impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A confract assef is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the

customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
coniract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank, and demand deposits that are
readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral pait of the Group’s
cash management,

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade payables are normally settled on
30 to 60 days’ terms while other payables have an average term of six months.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Government grant

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government grant shall be recognised in profit or loss on a gystematic basis over the periods
in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in profit or loss, either
separately or under a general heading such as “Other operating income”. Alternatively, they
are deducted in reporting the related expenses.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provisicn due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(n} Employee benefits

(1} Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group
pays fixed confributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

In particular, the Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF?)

scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. These contributions are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

(i) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual Jeave are recognised as a lability when they accrue to

employees. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{0) Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownerships of the leased are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(p) Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the
good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time.
The amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

() IT Professional services

The Group provides IT system implementation and support services under fixed-price
and variable price contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue
is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the estimated total man days service to be provided because the customer
received and uses the benefits simultaneously. This is determined based on the actual
man days service performed relative to the total expected man days services.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or
costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise
to the revision become known by management.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as the sale of hardware and license,
and implementation supporting services, However, the implementation and support
service are simple and could be performed by another party. It is therefore accounted for
as a separate performance obligation. Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on the stand-alone selling prices. Where there are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus margin. If contracts include the sale of hardware
and license, revenue for the hardware and license is delivered, the legal title has passed
and the customer has accepted the hardware and license,
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Revenue (continued)

(i) Commission income

Commission income is recognised upon services rendered and for vendors.

(iii) Interest incame

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method)
unless collectability is in doubt.

{q) Taxes

(i) Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the faxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Current income taxes are recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that tax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to inferpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(i) Deferred tox

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred fax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
fo the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a
business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(iii) Sales tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

&« Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the goods and services tax is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

= Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

() Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and the

Company if that person:

(i)  Has control or joint control over the Company,

(i)  Has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a
parent of the Company.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r}) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions
applies:

@
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

)

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venfure of the other entity {or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a greup of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Company;

The entity is conirelled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

ity

(i

Judgement made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

©  Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of
the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

For the implementation and commissioning of IT services, revenue is recognised over
time based on the actual man days service preformed relative to the total estimated man
days to be performed. The estimated man days to be performed are based on contracted
amounts and, in respect of amounts not contracted for, management relies on past
experience and knowledge of the project engineers to make estimates of the amounts to
be incurred. In making these estimates, management takes into consideration the
historical trends of the amounts incurred in its similar implementation and
commissioning IT services.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.

e  Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for various customers segments
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
histarical ohserved default rates

When calculating ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking

information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES {continued)
(ii) Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractnal cash flows due and those that the lender would expect
to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions, At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in Note 7 and Note 9 respectively.

e Income tax

The Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is involved in determining the wide provision for income taxes. There are certain
transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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IBIZ Consulting Pte, Ltd, and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements -~ 31 December 2018

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unquoted shares, at cost
Less: Impairment loss

Company
2018 2017
$ s

1,324,834
(260,289)

1,324,834
(260,289)

1,064,545 1,064,545

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name and
principal activities

Held by the Company

IBIZ Consulting Services
Pte Lid

(I.T. integrated solution

services and I.T. support)

IB1Z Consulting Services
Sdn. Bhd.

(1T, integrated solution

services and L.T. support)

PT. IBIZCS Indonesia
(L.T. integrated sohution
services and LT, support)

IBIZ Consultancy Services
India Private Limited

(I.T. integrated solution

services and L.T. support)

IBIZ Consulting Services
Limited

(I.T. integrated solution

services and LT, support)

Held by direct subsidiary —

IBIZ Consulting Services

Limited

IBIZ Consulting Services
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd

(1.7, integrated solution

services and 1L.T. support)

Country of
incorporation

Singapore

Malaysia

Indonesia

India

Hong Kong

China

Proportion (%) of
Cost of investments ownership inferest
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 8 % %

799,000 799,000 109 100

176,675 176,675 100 100

336,725 336,725 100 100

10,575

10,575 100 100

1,859 1,85% 100 100

100 100

1,324,334

1,324,834
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IBIZ Consuiting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes o the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

6.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
3 3 § 5

Deferred tax assets:
Difference in depreciation 14,139 6,281 - -
Capital allowances carry

forward - 401 - -
Tax losses carry-forward — 3,291 - -
Other temporary differences - 7,677 - —
Total deferred tax assets 14,139 17,650 - -
Deferred tax assets on

temporary differences not

recognised - (11,369 - -
Balance 14,139 6,281 — -
Unrecognisad tax losses

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group and Company have unutilised tax losses and
capifal allowance of approximately $Nil (2017: $18,284) and $10,390 (2017: $2,226) that are
available for offsefting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses and
capital allowance arose, for which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to uncertainty of its
recoverability. The use of these tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and
compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the
companies operate.

The realisation of these future income tax benefits will only be obtained if the Group and the
Company derives future taxable income of a nature and of sufficient amount to enable the tax
benefits to be realised and the Group and the Company continues to comply with the conditions
imposed by the Jaw.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivabies 2,534,195 3,554,812 1,777,674 2,605,862
Less: Allowance for

Expected credit

losses (332,690) (207,082) {244,459) (93,694)

2,201,505 3,347,730 1,533,175 2,512,168

The average credit period con sale of goods is 30 to 90 days (2017: 30 to 90 days). No interest is
charged on the trade receivables. Loss allowance for trade receivables has always been measured at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The Group and Company have recognised a loss atlowance of 100% against all receivables over
180 days past due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally
not recoverable.
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IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements ~ 31 December 2018

7.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that are impaired

The table below shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach.

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
not credit credit
impaired impaired Total
Collectively
assessed
5 $ $
Group
Balance as at 1 January 2017 197,563 197,563
Allowance of expected credit loss 104,660 104,660
Amount written off (18,817) (18,817)
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement (77,698) (77,698)
Foreign exchange gain or loss 1,374 1,374
Balance as at 31 December 2017 207,082 207,082
Allowance of expected credit loss 223,251 223,251
Amount written off - -
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement (75,541) (75,541)
Foreign exchange gain or loss (22,102) (22,102)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 332,690 332,690
Company
Balance as at 1 January 2017 - -
Allowance of expected credit loss - -
Amount written off - -
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
settlement (77,698) (77,698)
Transfer from subsidiary 171,392 171,392
Foreign exchange gain or loss — -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 93,694 93,694
Allowance of expected credit loss 150,805 150,805
Change in loss allowance derecognised due to
seftlement - -
Foreign exchange gain or loss - -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 244,499 244,499

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the

current reporting period.
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been
written off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers
based on the Company’s provision matrix. As the historical credit loss experience does not show
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between the different customer
base.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables for individual customers as at 31 December 2018:

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
Y% § 5
Group
2018
Current (not past due) 0.03 481,506 144 No
1 to 90 days past due 0.04 1,263,862 506 No
90 to 180 days past due 0.11 333,896 367 No
More than 180 days past due 73.67 454,931 335,135* Yes
2,534,195 336,152
2017
Current (not past due) 0.03 927,590 278 No
1 to 90 days past due 0.04 2,093,421 837 No
90 to 180 days past due .11 322,989 355 No
More than 180 days past due 98.27 210,812 207,157* Yes
3,554,812 208,627
Company
2018
Current (not past due) 0.03 582,171 175 No
1 to 30 days past due 0.04 122,943 49 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.04 261,483 105 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.11 74,641 82 No
More than 90 days past due 34,56 735,833 254,326* Yes

1,777,674 254,737

* In case of non-collection the default rate is 100%.
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Gross impairment
Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
% 5 b

Company (continued)

2017

Cuwirent {not past due) 0.03 893,133 268 No

1 to 30 days past due 0.04 897,122 359 No
31 to 60 days past due 0.04 283,524 113 No
61 to 90 days past due 0.11 188,709 208 No
More than 90 days past due 28.74 343,373 08,688* Yes

2,605,861 99,636

The Group and the Company are not recognised the loss allowance that are no credit impaired
under collectively assessed of $3,462 and $10,238 (2017: $1,545 and $5,942) respectively.

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ $
Others 351,885 330,221 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 256,723 383,493 - -
Singapore Dollar 1,319,463 1,867,449 1,319,182 1,931,632
United States Dollar 273,434 760,567 213,993 580,536
2,201,505 3,347,730 1,533,175 2,512,168
8. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Deposits 96,386 87,809 39,741 40,741
Deferred costs 32,704 15,346 - 14,503
Prepayments 52,852 62,341 30,258 15,036
Staff advances — interest
free 15,274 20,151 3,000 3,000
Tax recoverable 128,337 69,545 41,799 -
Sundry receivables 70,376 38,161 - -
395,929 203353 114,798 73,280
Other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
Chinese Renminbi 1,221 1,265 - -
India Rupee 95,920 41,306 - -
Indonesia Rupiah 26,735 26,696 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 15,420 33,114 - -
Singapore Dollar 42,741 43,741 84,540 43,741
182,037 146,122 84,540 43741
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9. CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets primarily relate to the right to consideration for work completed but not yet billed
at reporting date for services rendered. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company invoices the customer.

There were no significant changes in the contract asset balances during the reporting period.
Management always estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount
equatl to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future prospects
of the Technology industry.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for contract
assets for individual customers as at 31 December 2018:

Gross impairment

Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
Yo A 5
Group
2018
Current (not past due) 0.03 153,644 46 No
1 to 90 days past due 0.04 137,355 54 No
90 10 180 days past due 0.11 34,589 38 Ne
More than 180 days past due 2.00 39,319 786 No
364,907 924
2017
Current (not past due) 0.03 459,071 150 No
1 to 90 days past due 0.04 54,245 22 No
90 to 180 days past due 0.11 - - No
More than 180 days past due 200 - - No
553,316 172
Company
2018
Current (1ot past due} 0.03 73,872 22 No
1 to 90 days past due 0.04 129,760 52 No
90 to 180 days past due 0.11 9,650 11 No
More than 180 days past due 2.00 20,747 415 No
234,029 500
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100

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Gross impairment
Weighted
average loss Carrying Loss Credit
rate amount allowance impaired
Yo N 5

Company (continued)

2017

Current {not past due) 0.03 340,259 102 No

1 to 90 days past due 0.04 54,315 22 No
90 to 180 days past due 0.1t - - No
More than 180 days past due 200 - - Neo

394,574 124

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the contract assets.

During the financial year, the Company had write off the contract asset of $51,683 for unbilled
project completed in year 2017 due to the project were in dispute and unable to bill.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TQ) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Company
2018 2017
$ 3

Amount due from subsidiary companies
Trade 516,611 440,755
Non-trade 2,989 2,989

319,600 443744

The amounts due from subsidiary companies are denominated in the following currencies:

Singapore Dollar 331,196 331,196
Hong Kong Doliar 148 -
TUnited States Dollar 188,256 112,548
319,600 443,744
Amount due to subsidiary companies
Trade (137,563) (102,310
Non-trade (434.447) {871,559)
(572,010) (973,869)
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10.

11‘

12.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (continued)

The amounts due to subsidiary companies are denominated in the following currencies:

Company
2018 2017
$ $
Malaysia Ringgit (35,566) (23,584)
Singapore Dollar {129,562} (625,624)
United States Dollar (406,882) (324,661)
(572,010) (973,869)

The amounts due are related, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in
cash.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are trade nature, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be
settled in cash.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
3 3 3 $
Cash at bank 1,988,472 1,351,301 227,442 275,593
Cash on hand 2,807 2.348 1 1
Short term deposit 565,903 - - -
2,557,182 1,353,649 227,443 275,594

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Chinese Renminbi 512,802 360,465 - -
Hong Kong Dollar 5,306 4,480 - -
India Rupee 93,664 112,124 - -
Indonesia Rupiah 967,085 331,995 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 297,646 29,734 - -
Singapore Dollar 548,804 239,640 174,013 228,003
United States dollar 131,876 75,211 53,430 47,591
2,557,182 1,353,649 227,443 275,594

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates, Short-term deposits
are made for a varying pericds of three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Company, and eam interests at the respective short term deposit rates range from 7% to 7.6%%
(2017: Nil%) per annum,
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13. TRADE PAYABLES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ 3
Third party 1,478,337 1,537,994 1,098,319 1,163,650
Related companies 16,295 13,749 16,295 13,749
1,494,633 1,551,743 1,114,614 1,177,399

Trade payable are denominated in the following currencies:

Others 64,527 130,200 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 171,085 225,818 - -
Singapore Dollar 790,545 741,163 750,544 740,665
United States dollar 468,466 454 562 324,070 436,734
1,494,633 1,551,743 1,114,614 1,177,399

14, OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued liabilities 179,583 482,658 124,520 256,956
Accrued salaries and related

cost 288,397 127,263 53,075 102,505
GST payables 168,486 187,995 75,716 145,500
Deferred grants 13,490 26,309 13,490 26,309
Advance from customer 15,317 - - -
Provision for unutilised

leave 39,328 45,696 29,690 42,884
Withholding tax payable 94,793 81,300 - -
Sundry payables 22,847 25,781 (1,726) 21,380

822241 977,002 294,765 596,034

Other payable are denominated in the following currencies:

Chinese Renminbi (1,017 49 264 - -
Hong Kong Dollar 2,558 2,360 - -
Malaysia Ringgit 48,746 61,002 - -
Singapore Dollar 194,645 425,954 175,869 424,225
India Rupee 84,281 78,850 - -
Indonesia Rupiah 161,613 104,853 - -
United States Dollar - — - -
490,827 722,283 175,869 424225

15. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Revenue relating to the customer pays up-front in full for those implementation and support
service, and hosting service. A contract lHability is recognised these services at the time of the
initial sales transaction and is released over the service period.

There were no significant changes in the contract liability balances during the reporting period,
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16, TAX PAYABLE

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
& 3 $ 8

Balance at beginning of year 107,601 105,714 59,378 -
Current year’s tax expense

on profit 88,478, 146,516 - 59,378
Currency alignment (2,415) 1,602 - -
Income tax paid (164,852) (164,807) (49,965) -
{Over)/under provision in

prior year (131,590) 18,576 (51,213) -
Reclassified as tax

recoverable 128,337 - 41,800 -
Balance af end of vear 25,559 107,601 - 59,378

17. SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2018 2017
Number Number
of shares b of shares 3

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares 1,151,000 1,151,000 1,151,000 1,151,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares have no par value carmry one vote per share without restriction.

18. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange difference arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that

of the presentation currency.

19. REVENUE

Tvpe of goods and services.

Sale of licence

Sale of hardware

Rendering of services

Annual maintenance and support service
Hosting service

- 42 .

Group
2018 2017
$ $

3,832,848 4,411,712
190,046 302,713
4,951,699 4,766,913
1,387,003 911,372
452,025 338,613
10,813,621 10,731,323
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19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

REVENUE (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition:
Goods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Govemnment grants — Special employment credit
— Wage credit scheme
— Temporary employment scheme
— PIC cash payout

Interest income

Commission income

Sundry income

STAFF COSTS

Salaries, bonuses and others
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Others

Total employee benefits

Skill development levy

FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense on:
— Overdraft bank

- related parties
— others

OTHER EXPENSES

The other expenses are arrived at after charging:
Loss on disposal of equipment

Plant and equipment written off
Foreign exchange adjustment, loss

- 43 .

Group
2018 2017
3 $

4,022,8%4 4,714,425
6,780,727 6,016,898
10,813,621 10,731,323
1,846 9,443
3,545 3,389
4,631 2,753
32,871 38,743
15,640 5,119
7.483 17,100
20,585 61,448
86,601 137,995
4,777,050 4,251,637
318,105 255,492
21,521 14,269
5,116,675 4,517,663
4,843 3,735
5,121,518 4,521,398
1,041 1,605
- 342
- 800
1,041 2,747

101 -
- 2,344
76,701 26,881
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24, INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(i) Major components of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 are:

Statement of comprehensive income:

Group
2018 2017
N $
Current tax 88,478 146,516
{Over)/under provision in prior year (51,213) 18,576
Deferred tax (148) {3,600)
37,117 161,492

(i) Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Profit before tax 447 707 073,166
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profit in the country

where the Group operates 76,110 165,438
Adjustments:
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in

determining taxable profit 77,018 131,950
Effect of differences in tax rates (3,020 (17,751)
Income not subject to tax (49,463) (80,050}
Tax exemption (2,518) (35,925)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised (5,000) (15,909
Over provision in current year - (4,837)
{Over)/under provision in prior year (51,213) 18,576
Oihers (4,797) —
Total tax expense 37,117 161,492

25, OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered into commercial leases mainly on equipment, networking, office premise
and furniture rental. These leases have an average life of between 2 and 5 years with no renewal
option or contingent rent provision included in the contracts, There are no restriction placed upon
the Company by entering into these leases,
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25,

26.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable leases as at 31 December are as
follows:

Group
2018 2017
$ $
Not later than one year 271,304 254,342
Later than one year but not later than five years 116,349 316,276
387,653 570,618

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to $286,364 (2017: $254,153).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
In addition to those related party information disclosed eisewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions between the Group and Company and related parties that took

place at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

(i) Significant related party transactions

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
5 i3 b b
Related party
Outsourcing services
income 643,813 - 597.566 -
Professional fee 154,322 48,150 56,000 48,150
Subsidiaries
Advances from - - 526,096 816,936
Net assets transferred - - - 669,932

(iiy Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Group are those persons having the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities, directly or indirectly, of the
Group. The directors of the Group and the general management of the Group are considered
as key management personnel of the Group.

Group
2018 2017
N b
Directors’ fee 2,006 1,927
Directors’ remuneration — Company 229,090 252,240
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group and the Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of
financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to, where appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group. The Group does not have any written financial risk management policies and guidelines
and there has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the financial risks
associated with financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments shouid a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from trade and other debtors. Guidelines on credit terms provided to trade customers are
established and continually monitored. For other financial assets including cash and short-
term deposits, the Gronp minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with reputable and well-
established local and foreign banks, and companies with high credit ratings and no history of
defaulis,

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposures. Credit policies with guidelines on credit terms and
limits set the basis for risk confrol. New customers are subject to credit evaluation while the
Group continues to monitor existing customers, especially those with repayment issnes. In
addition, appropriate allowances are made for probable losses when necessary for identified
debtors.

The Group does not hold any coliateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed and maintain the credit risk gradings
to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Group uses publicly
available financial information and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major
customers and other debtors. The Group exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)
(1) Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising
Category Description expected credit losses (ECL)

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default | 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts.

Doubtful Amount is >30 days past due or there has | Lifetime ECL — not credit-
been a significant increase in credit risk impaired
since initial recognition.

In default Amount is >90 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL - credit-
evidence indicating the asset is credit- impaired
impaired.

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
has no realistic prospect of recovery.

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well as maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

External  Internal Gross Net
credit credit 12-month or  carrying Loss carrying
Note  rating rating lifetime ECL amount  allewance ameunt
3 $ 3
Group
2018
Trade receivables 7 N.A. (a) Lifatime ECL 2,534,195 332,690 2,201,505
{stmplified
approach)
Other receivables 3 N.A. Performing 12m ECL 395,929 — 395,929
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 364,907 — 364,907
(simplified
approach)
Amounts due from 11 M.A. Performing 12m ECL 153,840 - 153,840
related compantes
332,690
2017
Trade receivables 7 N.A. {a) Lifetime ECL 1,777,674 244,499 1,533,175
(simplified
approach)
Other receivables 8 N.A. Performing  12m ECL 293,353 - 293,353
Contact assets 9 M.A. (a} Lifetime ECL 553,316 - 553,316
(simplified
approach)
244,499
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

External  Internal Gross Net
credit credit 12-menth or  carrying Loss carrying
Mote  rating rating lifetime ECL.  amount  allowance  amount
3 p 3
Company
2013
Trade reccivables 7 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 1,777,674 244,489 1,533,175
(siznplified
approach)
Other receivables 8 NA Performing 12m ECL 114,798 - 114,798
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 234,029 - 234029
(simplified
approach)
Amounts due from 10 NA Performming  [2m ECL 319,600 - 519,600

related companies

2017
Trade receivables 7 N.A. () Lifetime ECL 2,605,862 93,694 2512168
{simplified
approach)
Other receivables 8 N.A Performing 12m ECL 73,280 - 73,280
Contact assets 9 N.A. (a) Lifetime ECL 394,574 - 394,574
{simplified
approacli)
Amounts due from 10 N.A. Performing 12m ECL 443,744 - 443,744

related companies
93,694

(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in FRS 109 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on
histerical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as
appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.
Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presenied based on their past due
status in terms of the provision matrix (Note 7 and note 9),

Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance
sheet. No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

Credit visk concentration profile

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk due
to the Group's many varied customers.

It is the Group’s policy to sell to a diversity of creditworthy customers so as to reduce
concentration of credit risk.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(it Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign
currencies.

The Group operates and sells their goods and services in several countries other than
Singapore and transacts in foreign currencies. As a result, the Group is exposed to movements
in foreign cwrrency exchange rates arising from normal trading transactions, primarily with
respect to United States dollar (USD), Chinese Renminbi (RMB), Malaysia Ringgit (MYR)
and Indonesta Rupiali (IDR).

Sensitivity analysis for foreign curvency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD
and IDR, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax and equity.

Profit before tax
2018 2617
$ h)

UsD

— strengthened 2% (2017: 8%) (1,332) 28,059
~ weakened 2% (2017: 8%) 1,332 (28,059)
IDR

— strengthened 4% (2017: 8%) 49,008 33,561
— weakened 4% (2017: 8%) (49,008) (53,561)

(iii) Liguidity visk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and fiexibility through the use of standby
credit facilities.

The Group’s liquidity risk management policy is to monitor its working capital projections,
taking into account the available banking and other borrowings facilities of the Group, and
ensuring that the Group has adequate working capital to meet obligations and commitments
due.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted payments are due within one year.
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28, CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at
the end of the reporting period by FRS 109 categories.

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables
Other recelvables
Contract assets
Amounts due from
subsidiary companies

Amounts due from related

companies

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial Habilities at
amoriised cost

Trade payables

Other payables

Contract liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiary

companies

29.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
3 § $ 3

2,201,505 3,347,730 1,533,175 2,512,168
182,036 146,122 84,540 43,741
364,907 553,316 234,029 394,574
- - 519,600 443,744

153,840 - - _
2,557,182 1,353,649 227,443 275,594
5,459,470 5,400,817 2,598,787 3,666,821
1,494,633 1,551,743 1,114,614 1,177,399
490,827 635,702 175,869 424,225
1,051,092 1,079,857 550,853 869,406
- - 572,010 973,869
3,036,552 3,267,302 2,413,346 3,444,899

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The Group categories fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent
on the valuation inputs used as follows:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date,
—  Level 2~ Inputs other that quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

— Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group has no financial instruments that are carried at fair value at the end of each

reporting period.

- 50 -



IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
(Co. Reg. No. 200715700E)

Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2018

29,

30.

31.

32,

33.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Current trade and other receivables and payables (including amounts due from/(to) related
companies), cash and cash equivalents, and accrued operating expenses.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of
fair values, either due to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that
are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as fo maximise shareholder value,
In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may issue new shares,
funding from holding company or obtain new borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged for 2017 and it is not subject to exterally
imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors its cash flow, debt maturity profile and overall lguidity position on a
continuous basis.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY FOR FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Company has undertaken to provide financial support to one of its subsidiaries to enable it to
operate as a going concern and to meet its obligations for a period of not less than twelve months
from the date of the directors’ report.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequently to the balance sheet date, IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company is in the process of entering into a share purchase agreement with immediate holding
company, R Systems {Singapore) Pte. Ltd. at the consideration based on its net tangible assets as at
31 December 2018.

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 January 2019.
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Chartered Accountants | Propretor

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IBIZ CONSULTANCY
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31t December 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement
and Statement of Changes in Equity from 01.01.2018 to 31.12.2018, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, which is prepared based
on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section
143(11) of the Act..

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Flat No. 2, 2nd Floor, "Kamalini*, New No.31, Old No.16, CIT Colony Ist Main Road, Myla e, Cfiennai 600 004.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by

the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Matters

4. The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended December 31,

2017 and for the transition date opening balance sheet as at January 01, 2017 included in
these financial statements, are based on the financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS.
Adjustments made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS
have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restriction of use

5. Without modifying our opinion, we note that this special purpose financial information is

prepared for the purposes of providing information to IBIZ Group Pte Limited to enable it
to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the group. As a result, the special
purpose financial information is not a complete set of financial statements of IBIZ
CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED. The special purpose financial may
be filed with statutory authorities for required compliances. The special purpose financial
information also can be used by the auditors of IBIZ Group Pte Limited or R Systems
International Limited to issue any certificate in this regard.




Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st December 2018,
and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

7. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

Place :Chennai

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity, dealt with by this Report, are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act to the extent applicable for
preparation of this special purpose financial statement.

(e) Further, with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

For S. Ravi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. :-0092615

N Ao
)
=

Proprietor ~SP2ACCHC

Date :23.01.2019 Membership No. : 204618



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IBIZ
CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of December

31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at December 31, 2018, based on internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. Ravi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place :Chennai Proprietor
Date :23.01.2019 Membership No. : 204618



IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2018

(Rs. in '000)
Particulars Notes As at As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 January 1, 2017
ASSETS

A, Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Deferred tax assets(net)
(c) Non-current tax assets (net)
(d) Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets (A)

B. Current assets
(a) Financial assats
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iil) Unbilled revenue
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets (B)
Total assets (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A. Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total equity (A)

Liabilities

B. Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables

(ii ) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(b} Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities (B)

Total liabilities (B+C)
Total equity and liabilities (A+B)

Summary of significant accounting policy

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial

In terms of our report attached

For S Ravi & Associates
Chartered Accountapts s, |
FRN : 0092615

S Ravi
Proprietor
M No 204618

Place : Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019

10

11
12
13

478.77 316.32 781.85
795.17 299.75 225.95
3,299.81 1,820.85 1,706.23
1,212.90 1,212,90 1,212.90
5,786.65 3,649.82 3,926.93
6,799.17 8,667.64 7,324.78
4,774.62 5,349,91 1,782.84
1,272.83 1,205.80 -
3,822.34 679.03 195.41
16,668.96 15,902.38 9,303.03
22,455.61 19,552.20 13,229.96
500.00 500,00 500.00
(5,848.48) (4,009.77) (6,858.57)
(5,348.48) (3,509.77) (6,358.57)
473.77 444,03 320.75
5,093.94 4,309.37 2,570.64

- 549,99 -
22,236.38 17,758.58 16,697.14
27,804.09 23,061.97 19,588.53
27,804.09 23,061,97 19,588.53
22,455.61 19,552.20 13,229.96

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

A

K. Gunalan
Director
DIN: 02656902

Place: Singapore
Date: 23.01.2019

0 R

K. Sornanathan
Director
DIN:06954003

Place: Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019



IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Stat: t of Profit and Loss for the year ended Dec ber 31, 2018
(Rs. in '000)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
INCOME
I Revenue from operations 14 32,045.45 30,026.33
II Other income 15 - 45.29
III Total income (I+1I) 32,045.45 30,071.62
IV EXPENSES
(1) Third party expenses 16 6,623.96 5,828.36
(ii) Employee benefits expense 17 21,254.01 16,556.50
(i) Depreciation 3 308.74 339.90
(iv) Other expenses 18 5,932.95 4,021.87
Total expenses (IV) 34,119.66 26,746.63
V  (Loss)/Profit before tax (III-IV) (2,074.21) 3,324.99
VI Tax expense
(1) Current tax 19 259.92 545.95
(ii} Deferred tax (net of MAT credit entitlement) 19 (495.42) (73.80)
Total tax expense (235.50) 476.19
VII (Loss)/Profit after tax for the year (V-VI) (1,838.71) 2,848.80
VIII 5
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,838.71) 2,848.80
Earnings per share (EPS) 20
[Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year Rs. 10/- each)]
Basic (in Rs.) (36.77) 56.98
Diluted (in Rs.) (36.77) 56.98
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For S Ravi & Associates
Chartered Amcountaﬁ
FRN : 0092615 /%

S Rav
Proprietor
M No 204618

Place : Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019

X.l(xunalan

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

-
i

Director
DIN:02656902

Sinaapore
Date: 23.01.2019

Sornanathan
Director
DIN:06954003

Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019



IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2018

Particulars

a. Equity share capital (Rs. in '000D)

Balance at January 1 2017 500

Changes In equity share capital during the year -

Balance at December 31, 2017 500

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance at December 31, 2018 500

b. Other equity

Particular Retained earnings Total other equity

Balance at January 1 2017 (6,858.57) (6,858.57)

Profit for the year 2,848.80 2,848.80

Balance at December 31, 2017 (4,009.77) (4,009.77)

Profit for the year (1,838.71) (1,838.71)
(5,848.48) (5,848.48)

‘alance at December 31, 2018
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.

For S Ravi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

%

Place : Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019

K. Gunalan
Director
DIN:02656902

Place: Singapore
Date: 23.01.2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

K. Sornanathan

Director
DIN:06954003

Place: Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019




IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash flow stat: t for the year ended D ber 31, 2018
(Rs. in '000)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit / (loss) before tax (2,074.21) 3,324.99
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 308.74 339.90
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation 955.51 124,15
Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets (neat) - 106.92
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 1,301.03 239.16
Operating profit before working capital changes 491.07 4,135.12
Movements in working capital:
(Incraase) / Dacrease In trade receivables (388.07) (1,706.17)
(Increase) / Decrease in unbilled revenue (67.03) (1,205.80)
(Increase) / Decrease in others assets (3,143.31) (483.62)
Increasa [/ (Decrease) In Trade and other payable 4,507.54 1,184.72
Increasa / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 784.57 1,738.73
Cash generated from operations 2,184.77 3,662.98
Direct taxes paid, net of refunds (2,288.87) (114.62)
Net cash from operating activities (A) (104.10) 3,548.36
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (471.19) =
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 18.71
Net cash from investing activities (B) (471.19) 18.71
C. Cash flows used in financing activities - -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (575.29) 3,567.07
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,349.91 1,782.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 6) 4,774.62 5,349.91
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For S Ravi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants— IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
FRN : 0092615 -7 . ASSQ- )
<o [Honomn® Y, \RW
AR ; v, |
S Ravi K. Gunalan K. Sornanathan
Proprietor Director Director
M No 2048618 DIN:02656902 DIN:D6954003
Place : Chennai Place: Singapore Place: Chennal

Date: 23.01.2019 Date: 23.01.2019 Date: 23.01.2019



IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. Nature of operations

IBIZ Consultancy Services India Private Limited. (The "Company") is a subsidiary of IBIZ Consulting Pte
Ltd (Formerly IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd.), a company incorporated in Singapore. IBIZ Consulting Pte Ltd.’s
immediate holding company is R System (Singapore) Pte Ltd., a company incorporated in Singapore.
Further, R System (Singapore) Pte Ltd is subsidiary of R System International Limited, a company
incorporated in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Plot, No. NP 1&2, Industrial
Estate, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Guindy, Chennai — 600032.

The principal activities of the Company is to provide information technology, consulting and
implementing services on enterprise resource planning, customer relationship management, point of

sales, mobility, business intelligence and portals. Hence, the Company operates in only one business
segment.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These are the Company's first Ind AS financial
statements. The date of transition is January 1, 2017. Previous year’s numbers in the financial
statements have been restated to Ind AS. In accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards, the Company has presented a reconciliation from the presentation
of financial statements under Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India (“Previous GAAP") to Ind
AS of Shareholders’ equity as at December 31, 2017 and January 1, 2017 and of the
comprehensive net income and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2017 (refer Note
XX).

(b) Functional and presentation currency

These finance statement are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

(c) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual and going concern basis except for certain financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-current.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.




IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

(d)

(e)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property,
plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is disposed.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight line method ('SLM’) over the useful lives of the assets
estimated by the management. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each
financial year end or whenever there are indicators for review, and adjusted prospectively.

The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the
useful lives and residual values of fixed assets and are in align with Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013,

The management estimates the useful lives for the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Cateqory seful life
Air conditioners 5 years

Computer hardware and network installations (other 6 years
than end user devices)

End-user devices such as desktop, laptop, mobile phones 3 years

etc.
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Electrical Installation 10 years

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities




IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

(f)

(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classi jon of jal assets

(i) Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (except for debt instruments that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the
purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are
treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences
on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value
of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt

instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.




IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

(i)

(iv)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and
is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is
not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured
at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

“ it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a
financial guarantee.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for
trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see
above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the
FVTQCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial
assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Company, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
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(9)

amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit
or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

(i)  For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL,
the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

(if)  Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating
to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iii) For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt
instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
Financial liabilities
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified as:
- Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities such as loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the effective interest rate method. The change in measurements is recognized
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represented by contingent consideration are measured at fair
value with all change recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Com pany's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

The Company also derecognise a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial lability with modified terms
is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income”.
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The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

(h) Impairment

i Financial assets

The Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets
that are debts instruments and are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). ECL is the difference between contractual cash flows that are due and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For trade receivables, the Company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For other financial
assets, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

ii. Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each balance
sheet date or whenever there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. If any indications exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount of intangible under development that is not yet available for use is
estimated at least at each financial year end even if there is no indication that the asset
is impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value and
its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

(i) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement,

Where the Company is a lessee
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership

of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(j) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company, there is no uncertainty as to the ultimate collection and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

i) Income from software services
Rendering of services

Revenue from software development and maintenance services projects comprise income
from time-and-material and fixed-price contracts.

Revenue with respect to time and material basis is recognised when services are rendered.

Fixed-price contracts vary in duration depending on the terms of the work being performed.
Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, when reasonable progress has been made on the milestones achieved as specified
in the contracts. The stage of completion of project is determined by the proportion that
contract efforts incurred for work performed up to the balance sheet date bear to the
estimated total contract effort. Changes in contract performance, estimated profitability and
final contract settlements may result in revision to costs and revenue and are recognised in
the period in which the revisions are determined. If a loss is projected on any contract in
process, the entire projected loss is recognised immediately.

In terms of contracts, excess / shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year end is
carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue / unearned revenue separately.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of product (software and hardware) is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards associated with the ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from maintenance/subscription services is recognized over the term of subscription
period.

(k) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency of the Company, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non- monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at the date when the
values were determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on conversion / settlement of foreign currency monetary items and
on foreign currency liabilities relating to Property, Plant and Equipment acquisition are
recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.
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)

Employee benefits

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are
classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits.
The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined
contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides
service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits
to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The present
value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

(i) The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange

for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees
render the service.

(ii) The Company's contribution to provident fund and other social security plans are considered
as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees

(iii) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can
carry forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it
in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Company
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders
the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of
compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

(m) Income taxes

(n)

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as
current tax. MAT credit available is recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period, i.e., the
period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

Segment reporting

The Company provides information technology, consulting and implementing services for
customers primarily in India and South East Asia. The Board of Directors of the Company
evaluates the Company's performance as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable
segment for the Company.
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(o)

(p)

(q9)

(r)

(s)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares), if any occurred during the reporting period, that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable
to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect
of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises of cash at bank, cash in hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity period of three months or less.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of year. These
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical
experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

Critical accounting estimates
i. Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price
contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to estimate
the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be
expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards
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completion. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract
estimates at the reporting date.

ii. Income taxes

The Company’s major tax jurisdictions is India, though the Company also files tax returns
in other overseas jurisdictions. Significant judgements are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes.

The Company reviews carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

New standar nd interpretations not yet adopted

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration:
On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign
currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign
currency. The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated
the effect of this on the financial statements and the impact is not material.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers.
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively
to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

» Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the
date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach).

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1,
2018.

The Company will adopt the standard on January 1, 2019 by using the cumulative catch-up
transition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending December 31, 2018 will not
be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant,
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3. Property, plant and equipment

(Rs. in '000)

Particulars Computers & Furniture & Electrical Air Conditioner Total
Peripheral Fittings Equipments

Gross Block
As at January 1, 2017 7,019.67 303.58 102.09 74.60 7,499.94
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - (249.17) (102.09) (74.60) (425.86)
As at December 31, 2017 7,019.67 54.41 - - 7,074.08
Additions 471.19 - - - 471.19
Disposals 2 + -
As at December 31, 2018 7,490.86 54.41 - - 7,545.27
Accumulated Depreciation
As at January 1, 2017 6,387.65 197.10 58.74 74.60 6,718.09
Charge for the year 327.27 12.63 - - 339.90
Disposals - (166.89) (58.74) (74.60) (300.23)
As at December 31, 2017 6,714.92 42.84 - - 6,757.76
Charge for the year 301.64 7.10 308.74
Disposals -
As at December 31, 2018 7,016.56 49.94 - - 7,066.50
Carrying amount
As at January 1, 2017 632.02 106.48 43.35 - 781.85
As at December 31, 2017 304.75 11.57 - - 316.32
As at December 31, 2018 474.30 4.47 - - 478.77
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(Rs. in '000)

Particulars As at As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 January 1, 2017

a.

Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 1,212.90 1,212.90 1,212.80
1,212.90 1,212.90 1,212.90
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 6,799.17 8,667.64 7,324.78
Credit impaired 1,540.19 239.16 -
8,339.36 8,906.80 7,324.78
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss 1,540.19 239.16 -
allowance)
6,799.17 8,667.64 7,324.78

Also refer Note 24 for related party balances.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss towards expected risk of delays and default in collection.

The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables,
based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting
period. The provision matrix used to compute the expected credit loss allowance for different categories of trade receivables is as
follows.

Ageing Default rate *
Not due 0.03%
0-90 days 0.04%
90-180 days 0.11%
More than 180 days 2.00%

* In case of probability of non-collection, default rate is 100%

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year 239.16 - =
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on trade 1,301.03 239.16 =
receivables

Balance at the end of the year 1,540.19 239.16 -

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks. Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the Ind AS statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the
Ind AS balance sheet as follows:

(a) Cash on hand 6.06 1.18 6.02

(b) Balances with banks
(i} in current accounts 4,768.56 5,348.73 1,776.82
4,774.62 5,349,91 1,782.84

Other current assets

Advance to vendors - 26.30 117.60
Prepaid expenses 32.20 > -
Balances with government authorities 3,790.14 652.73 77.81

3,822.34 679.03 195.41
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(Rs. in '000)

Particulars

8. Share capital
Authorised
50000 (50000 as at December 31 2017; 50000 as

As at

As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

As at
January 1, 2017

500.00 500.00 500.00
at January 1 2017) equity shares of Rs.10 each

500.00 500.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
50000 (50000 as at December 31 2017; 50000 as 500.00 500.00 500.00
at January 1 2017) equity shares of Rs.10 each

500.00 500.00 500.00
Notes: .
() Reconciliation of number of shares and amount of share capital outstanding at the beginming and at the closing of the year
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Number Amount Number Amount
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
AL the beginning of the vear 50000 500.00 50000 500.00
Outstanding at the closing of the year 500.00 50000 500.00|
(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
(c) Shares held by holding company and fellow sul ¥y
Name of sharehold As at Dec 31 2018 As at Dec 31, 2017 As at January 1, 2017
Numt A t Number Amount Number Amount
(Rs. in '000) (Rs, in "000) (Rs. in '000) ]
IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd. Singapore 499.93 49399 499.99 49999| 499.95
(d) Details of shareholders holdi g more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of sharehold As at Dec 31 2018 As at Dec 31, 2017 As at January 1, 2017
No. of shares | % of Holding | No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares held % of Holding

IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd. Singapore 99.998% 45999 99.998% 49999 99,998% |
Kalairajan Sornanathan 0.002% 1 0.002% 1 0.002%
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(Rs. in '000)
Particulars As at As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

January 1, 2017

9. Other equity
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Deficit in statement of profit and |loss represents
losses incurred by the Company in previous years

(5,848.48) (4,009.77)

(6,858.57)
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(Rs. in '000)
' Particulars As at As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 January 1, 2017

10. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - . -
small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 473.77 444.03 320.75
micro enterprises and small enterprises

473.77 444.03 320.75
11. Other current financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 5,093.94 4,309.37 2,570.64
5,093.94 4,309.37 2,570.64
12. Provisions
Provision for tax . - 545.99 i
- 549.99 =
13. Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable
GST/ VAT Payable 3,945.42 340.03 -
TDS Payable 156.06 117.43 514,32
Service Tax Payable - 575.63 -
Other statutory dues payable 0.83 25.38 2.19
Advances from related parties - Ibiz Singapore 15,519.76 14,526.73 14,294.61
Unearned revenue 2,424 .64 2,173.38 1,886.02

Advance received from cutomers 189.67 = -
; 22,236.38 17,758.58 16,697.14
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(Rs. in '000)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
14, Revenue from operations
Software development service and sale
- Export 14,692.49 15,194.05
- Domestic 17,352.96 14,832.28
32,045.45 30,026.33

Segment information:

The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s revenue by geographical market:

India 17,352.96 14,832.28
South East Asia 13,831.32 12,001.02
Others 861.17 3,193.03
15. Other income
Interest on income tax refund - 45.29
- 45,29
16. Third party expenses
Purchase of Licenses for resale 5,212.16 3,821.01
Cost of Outsourced Recources 1,411.80 2,007.35
6,623.96 5,828.36
17. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 21,154.88 16,440.61
Contribution to provident and other funds 64.03 54.19
Staff welfare expenses 35.10 ~ 61.70
21,254.01 16,556.50
18. Other expenses
Rent 1,595.03 1,601.52
Power and fuel 471.21 466.55
Communication costs 61.54 47.33
Insurance 42.40 -
Printing and stationery 4.80 8.94
Traveling and conveyance 790.73 344.93
Legal and professional fees 245.49 178.32
Repair and maintenance - others 227.86 332.97
Advertising and sales promotion - 74.19
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 835.96 462.94
Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets (net) - 106.92
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 1,301.03 239.16
Auditors' remuneration (refer detail below) 160.00 145.00
Bank charges 8.52 13.10
Rates and taxes 90.63 -
Miscellaneous expenses 97.75 -
5,932.95 4,021.87
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory and tax audit fee 160.00 145.00

Other services

160.00
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(Rs. in '000)
For the year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Particulars

19, Income tax and deferred tax

Current income tax

In respect of the current year 259.92 549.99
Deferred tax )

In respect of the current year (495.42) (73.80)
Income tax exp T gnised in the st t of profit (235.50) 476.19
and loss

The reconciliation between the provision of incom

tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

€ tax of the Company and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income

Profit before tax (2,074.21) 3,324.99
Enacted income tax rate in India 26.00% 25.75%
Computed expected tax expense (539.29) B56.18
Effect of:

Income exempt from tax (12.24)
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses adjusted - (414.26)
against taxable income i

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - 27.53
Prior year expenses 445,09 =
Others (141.30) 18.98
Income tax expense recognised in the stat t of profit (235.50) 476.19
and loss

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) as at December 31, 2018 in relation to:

Particulars As at Recognised in As at

January 01, 2018

profit and loss

December 31, 2018

Property, plant and equipment 4.15 18.14 22,29
Provision for gratuity 281.14 {31.70) 249,44
Provision for compensated absence 14.46 6.07 20.53
Provision for doubtful debts - 428.48 428.48
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitiement - 74.43 74.43
Total 299.75 495.42 795.17

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) as at Dec

31, 2017 in relation to:

Particulars

As at
January 01, 2017

Recognised in
profit and loss

As at

December 31, 2017

Property, plant and equipment (26.27) 30.42 4.15
Provision for doubtful debts = =

Pravision for gratuity 237.93 43,21 281.14
Provision for compensated absence 14,29 0.17 14.46
Total 225.95 73.80 299.75
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20. Earnings per share
Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is set out

below:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS 50000 50000
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS 50000 50000

Earnings per share [Nominal value of shares Re. 1 (Previous year: Re. 1)]

Basic (Rs.) (36.77) 56.98
Diluted (Rs.) (36.77) 56.98
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21. Financial instruments

The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories are as follows: (Rs. in "000)
Particulars Basis of As at As at As at
measurement December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 January 01, 2017
Carrying value Fairvalue Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Assets
Trade receivables Amortised cost 6,799.17 6,799.17 8,667.64 8,667.64 7,324.78 7,324.78
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost 4,774.62 4,774.62 5,349.91 5,349.91 1,782.84 1,782.84
Unbilled revenue Amortised cost 1,272.83 1,272.83 1,205.80 1,205.80 - -
Total 12,846.62 12,846.62 15,223.35 15,223.35 9,107.62 9,107.62
Liabilities
Trade payables Amortised cost 1,466.80 1,466.80 444.03 444,03 320.75 320.75
Other financial liabilities Amortised cost 5,093.94 5,093.94 4,309.37 4,309.37 2,570.64 2,570.64
Total 6,560.74 6,560.74 4,753.40 4,753.40 2,891.39 2,891.39

Fair value hierarchy:

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation technigues that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and
consists of the following three levels:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model
based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data.

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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22. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors and risk management objectives
The Company’s activities expose it to foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary
market risk to the Company is foraign exchange risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
Foreign currency risk

The Company operates globally with its operations Spread across various geographies and consequently the Company is exposed to
foreign exchange risk, Around 70% to 80% of the Company's foreign currency exposure is in SGD,

The following table analyses Company's foreign currency exposure from non-derivative financial instruments as of December 31,
2018, December 31, 2017 and January 01, 2017:

(Rs. in '000)
As at December 31, 2018 SGD usp Total
Trade receivables 3,801.50 1,085.74 4,887.24
As at December 31, 2017 SGD usp Total
Trade receivables ) 3,628.82 1,611.66 5,240.48

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

For the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, every percentage paint depreciation / appreciation in the exchange
rate between the Indian rupee and foreign currencies, would affect the Company’s profit before tax margin ( PBT) by approximately
2.66% and 1.68% respectively,

Credit risk

contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investment securities, Credit risk
arises from deposits held with banks, investments with financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including
outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, The demographics of
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit
risk assessment,

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers:

Particulars For the year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Revenue from top customer 12,563.84 10,738.38
Revenue from top 5 customer 20,3590.80 17,232.65

One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 and trade receivables as an
December 31, 2018, One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 and trade
receivables as at December 31, 2017,

Liquidity risk

The Company‘s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations, The

Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had a working capital of Rs. 6,285.88 ('000) including cash and cash equivalents of Rs,

4,774.62 ('000). As at December 31, 2017, the Company had a warking capital of Rs. 10,469.95 ('000) including cash and cash

equivalents of Rs. 5,349.91 ('000). Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Particulars As at As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31,2017 January 1, 2017

Less than 1 year
Trade payables 473.77 444.03 320.75
Other financial liabilities 5,093.94 4,309.37 2,570.64
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23. Capital Management

The Company’s policy Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Company’s objective, when managing capital, is to maintain an optimal structure so as to
maximize shareholder value. The capital structure is as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 January 01, 2017

Total equity attributable to the equity share (5,343) (3,510) (6,359)

holders of the Company

As per ge of total ital 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Total capital (equity and borrowings) (5,348) (3,510) (6,359)

The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 5,848.48 thousand as at December 31, 2018 (as at December 31, 2017 Rs. 4,0058.77
thousand), resulting in erosion of its net werth. This indicate the existence of a uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company has incurred loss of Rs,
1,838.71 thousand (previous year profit of Rs. 2,848.80 thousand). The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is
dependent on the improvement of the Company's future operations and continued financial support from holding company. The
financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis that the Company is a2 going concern, as the holding company
has confirmed to provide requisite financial support for the continued cperations of the Company, as and when required. Accordingly,
the financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or
to the classification of liabilities that might be necessary, should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
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24. Related Party Disclosures

(i) Names of related parties:

Holding company | IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore

R Systems (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore

(formerly known as IBIZCS Group Pte Ltd., Singapore)

(Holding company of IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore)

Ultimate holding | R Systems International Limited

company
Fellow » IBIZ Consulting Services Pte Ltd, Singapore |
subsidiaries » IBIZ Consulting Services Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia |
» PT. IBIZCS Indonesia., Indonesia
» IBIZ Consulting Services Limited, Hong Kong (IBIZ HK)
- IBIZ Consulting Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, People's Republic of
China (wholly owned subsidiary of IBIZ HK)
Key K Gunalan, Director
management K Sornanathan, Director
personne|

(ii) Details of transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2018 and

December 31, 2017:

(Rs. in '000)
Year ended December 31,
2018 2017

Revenue from services rendered to .
IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore 12,563.84 10,738.38
PT. IBIZCS Indonesia., Indonesia 80.35
R Systems International Limited, India 2,335.49 :
Total 14,979.68 10,738.38
Director Remuneration
K Sornanathan 612.00 540.00 |
Total 612.00 540.00

(iii) Outstanding balances of related parties as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

(Rs. in *000)

Balance outstanding

As at December 31,

2018 2017
Receivables
IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore 3,554.27 3,628.82
PT. IBIZCS Indonesia., Indonesia 81.56 =
Total 3,635.83 3,628.82
Payables
IBIZ Consulting Pte. Ltd., Singapore 15,519.76 14,526.73
Total 15,519.76 14,526.73
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25, Leases
Operating Lease - Company as lessee

The Company has operating lease for office premises. The future minimum rentals payable

under non-cancellable operating leases period as at year-end are as follows:

(Rs. in '000)
Year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Lease payments for the year 1,595.03 1,601.52
Non-cancellable operating lease obligation:

Not later than one year 18.86 1,403.03

Later than one year but not later than - 18.86

five years

Later than five years =

The operating lease arrangements extend for a maximum period of 5 years from their respective
dates of inception. Some of the operating lease arrangements have price escalation and option
of renewal clause as mutually agreed between the parties and there are no restrictions impased

on lease arrangements.

26. During the year ended December 31, 2006, Government of India has promulgated an Act namely
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which comes into force with
effect from October 2, 2006. As per the Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro, Small
and Medium suppliers and pay interest to micro and small enterprises on overdue beyond the
specified period irrespective of the terms agreed with the suppliers. For the purpose of
identification of such. suppliers, the Company has sent confirmations to all its suppliers, Based
upon the confirmations received so far and the supplier profile available with the Company, the

management believes that there are no dues to such suppliers.

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as As at As at

per MSMED Act, 2006 December | December
31,2018 | 31,2017

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid Nil Nil

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of Nil Nil

the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil

each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil
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27. First time adoption of Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financials prepared under Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2018, the comparative information presented in these financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and in the preparation of opening Ind AS
balance sheet at January 01, 2017. In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company
has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with
the accounting standards notified under Section 133, of the Act and other relevant provisions
contained in the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). In its transition from previous GAAP to Ind
AS, the Company has also applied mandatory exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101,

An explanation of how this transition has affected the Company’s financial performance and cash
flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A. Mandatory exceptions
a. Estimates

An entity’s estimate on the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments
to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that
those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at January 01, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the
same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for
the following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not
required under previous GAAP:

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model;

- Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities.

b. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS
109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind-AS.
However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition
requirements under Ind AS 109, retrospectively from a date of the entity’s choosing,
provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and
liabilities de-recognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of
initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provision of Ind AS 109
prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

c. Classification and measurement of financial assets
As required under Ind AS 101, the Company has classified and measured the financial
assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition to
Ind AS.

B. Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences
arising from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:

- Equity as at January 01, 2017;

- Equity as at December 31, 2017;

- Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017; and

- Explanation of material adjustments to cash flow statements.

In the reconciliations mentioned above, certain reclassifications have been made to previous
GAAP financial information to align with the Ind AS presentation.
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a. Balance sheet reconciliation as at January 01, 2017 and December 31, 2017
(Rs. in '000)

Particulars Notes As at January 01, 2017 As at December 31, 2017
Amount as Effect of Amount Amount as Effect of Amount as
per previous transition to as per Ind per previous transition to per Ind AS
GAAP* Ind AS AS GAAP* Ind AS
ASSETS
A. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 781.85 - 781.85 316.32 - 316.32
(b) Deferred tax assets(net) 225.95 5 225.95 299.75 & 299.75
(c) Other non-current assets 1,212.90 - 1,212.90 1,212.90 - 1,212.90
Total non-current assets (A) 2,220.7 - 2,220.7 1,828.97 - 1,828.97
B. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7,324.78 = 7,324.78 9,873.44 - 9,873.44
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,782.84 - 1,782.84 5,349.91 - 5,349.91
(b) Current tax assets (net) 1,706.23 - 1,706.23 1,270.86 - 1,270.86
(c) Other current assets 195.41 - 195.41 679.03 = 679.03
Total current assets (B) 11,009.26 - 11,009.26 17,173.24 - 17,173.24
Total assets (A+B) 13,229.96 - 13,229.96 19,002.21 - 19,002.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00
(b) Other equity (6,858.56) - (6,858.56) (4,009.76) - (4,009.76)
Total equity (A) (6,358.56) - (6,358.56) (3,509.76) - (3,509.76)
B. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 320.75 - 320.75 444.03 - 444,03
(ii) Other financial liabilities 4,456.66 = 4,456.66 6,482.75 - 6,482.75
~__(b) Other current liabilities 14,811.12 - 14,811.12 15,585.20 - 15,585.20
Total current liabilities (B) 19,588.53 - 19,588.53 22,511.98 - 22,511.98
Total equity and liabilities (A+B) 13,229.97 - 13,229.97 19,002.22 - 19,002.22

* Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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b. Reconciliation of total equity as at January 01, 2017 and December 31, 2017
(Rs. in '000)
Particulars As at As at
January 01, 2017 December 31, 2017

Total equity (shareholders’ fund) as per
previous GAAP

Ind AS adjustments Nil Nil
Total equity as per Ind AS (6,358.56) (3,509.76)

(6,358.56) (3,509.76)

c. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017
(Rs. in '000)

Particulars For the year ended
December 31, 2017
As per Effect of Amount as
previous transition perInd AS
GAAP* to Ind AS

Income
Revenue from operations 30,026.33 - 30,026.33
Other income 45,29 - 45.29
Total income 30,071.62 - 30,071.62
Expenses
Purchases 5,828.36 - 5,828.36
Employee benefits expense 16,556.50 = 16,556.50
Depreciation and amortisation expense 339.90 = 339.90
Other expenses 4,021.87 - 4,021.87
Total expenses 26,746.63 -  26,746.63
Profit before tax 3,324.99 - 3,324,99
Income tax expense
Current tax 549.99 = 549.99
Deferred tax (73.80) - (73.80)
Total tax expense 476.19 - 476.19
Profit for the year 2,848.80 - 2,848.80
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - = -
Total comprehensive income 2,848.80 - 2,848.80

d. Impact of Ind AS adjustments on the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
December 31, 2017

(Rs. in '000)

Particulars As per Effect of Amount as
previous  transition per Ind AS
GAAP* to Ind AS

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 3,548.36 - 3,548.36

Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 18.71 - 18.71

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities = # =

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 3,567.07 - 3,567.07
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as on January 01, 2017 1,782.84 - 1,782.84

Cash and cash equivalents as on December 31, 2017 5,349.91 - 5,349.91
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28. The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January

23, 2019.

As per our report of even date.

For S Ravi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
M. No. 204618

Place: Chennai
Date: 23.01.2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IBIZ CONSULTANCY SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

&\WW | “(\‘f) o

K Gunalan K Sornanathan
Director Director
DIN:02656902 DIN:06954003
Place: Singapore Place: Chennai

Date: 23.01.2019 Date: 23.01.2019
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